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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW & FUTURE OUTLOOK

The overall economic situation in the county is looking better and the basic 

parameters of the Indian economy are moving in the right direction. According to 

Knight Frank India’s Logistics and Warehousing Report, 2014, India’s warehousing 

requirement is expected to grow at an annual average rate of 9% to 1,439 million sq. ft 

in 2019 from 919 million sq. ft in 2014. The Government renewed focus on 

incentivizing the manufacturing sector is key to the growth of warehousing. 

Accordingly the industrial operations are likely to revive in the coming quarters. 

Beside the implementation of Goods and Service Tax (GST), which is stuck for a long 

time, is also likely to get momentum under the new Government. All these are likely to 

have chain impact and shall create demand for warehousing sector.

The warehousing and logistics real estate segment benefitted immensely from the 

expansion in e-commerce over the last two years, with 2014 witnessing considerable 

traction from leading players for leasing large sized warehouses and storage spaces in 

peripheral locations of key cities. According to CBRE Research, the emerging retail 

segment took up approximately 1.7 million sq. ft. of warehousing space across Mumbai, 

Chennai, Bangalore and the Delhi National Capital Region in 2014.

Further, the government has taken several initiatives to encourage the development in 

the sector, the key ones such as clearance of Real Estate (Regulation and 

Development) Bill, 2013 by the Union Cabinet, relaxation in the norms to allow 

foreign direct investment (FDI) in the construction development sector, introduction 

of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 etc.

As India awaits policy reforms to pick up speed, your Company firmly believes that the 

demand for Real Estate & Warehousing in India should remain strong in the medium to 

long term.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Company has purchased a land at Kheda, 

Ahmedabad admeasuring about 12235 sq. mtrs which will be developed into a 

warehouse. For this purpose, necessary approvals/clearances have been initiated. 

Development process will start on completion of all the statutory requirements and 

other necessary approvals.

TCI Distribution Centers Ltd, one of the subsidiary of the company had made various 

purchases of small plots, which are surrounded by existing land of the company 

situated near Chennai. The whole land, admeasuring about 43 acres, will be developed 

into warehousing and truck terminal project. For this purpose the necessary steps 

have already been taken such as, a major part of the land had already been registered 

and processes for various clearances/approval have been initiated & the same are in 

process.

A housing project at Pune, which was constructed by the company in the financial year 

2012-13, has still been facing difficulties due to disputes between two government 

departments. The sale of the flats in the whole adjoining area has been put on hold by 

the authorities. The matter is still under judicial consideration with the Hon'ble High 

Court of Bombay.

THREATS, RISKS & CONCERN

The real estate & warehousing business is impacted by, interalia, regulatory and 

monetary policies and investment outlook. The Company's operations and its ability 

for future development has to be viewed in light of the many factors such as land 

acquisition, permitted land use, approval from multiple government authorities, 

development of land and construction thereon, unanticipated delays in project 

approvals, availability of accomplished and trained labour force, increased cost of 

manpower, rising cost of construction, stringent environmental and safety standards 

etc. 

Your Company aims to understand, measure and monitor the various risks to which it 

is exposed and to ensure that it adheres, as far as reasonably and practically possible, to 

the policies and procedures established by it to mitigate these risks.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, other 

applicable rules and regulations and also as per the generally accepted accounting principles, 

policies and practices prevalent in India. The Company's financial performance is discussed in 

details under the head “Financial Results”  in Directors' Report to the Members. 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS

The Company considers its employees to be the most valuable asset and is committed to 

providing a healthy & motivating work environment to enable each individual employee to 

fully realize his or her potential. The company has adequate human resources to maintain its 

various operational & commercial activities. The company reviews its manpower 

requirement from time to time and inducts suitable personnel as per requirement. Regular 

and detailed performance appraisal system is in place to evaluate the performance of all the 

employees and necessary steps are taken to strengthen the areas in which they need 

improvement. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  AND ITS  ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control system, commensurate with size and nature 

of its business. The system is supported by documented policies, guidelines and procedures 

to monitor business and operational performance which are aimed at ensuring business 

integrity and promoting operational efficiency. These internal controls are designed to 

ensure that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial information and 

other reports, and for maintaining regular accountability of the Company's assets and 

operations.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control 

system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and 

policies of the Company and its subsidiaries. Reports of the internal auditor are regularly 

reviewed at the Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests improvements for 

strengthening them.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and 

Analysis, describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may 

constitute 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and 

regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied.

Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
During the year under review, on standalone basis, your Company earned total revenue of 
Rs. 41,781,150/- as compared to Rs. 24,437,205/- in the previous year and Profit after tax is 
Rs. 24,562,690/- as against Rs. 5,302,583/- in the previous year.

During the year under review, on consolidated basis, your Company's total revenue is Rs. 
101,488,046/-as compared to Rs. 31,769,547/- in the previous year and Profit after tax is 
Rs. 31,854,217/- as against Rs. 5,871,553/- in the previous year.

DIVIDEND & RESERVES
The Board of Directors have recommended a fixed dividend @ 5% on 42,30,000 Non-
cumulative Non- Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, subject to 
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the Board 
of Directors have not recommended any dividend on equity shares of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

The total cash outflow on account of dividend on preference shares for the financial year 
2014-15 would result in payout of Rs. 21,15,000/-(excluding dividend distribution tax of Rs. 
4,22,876).

 During the year under review, no amount was transferred to General Reserve.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, no changes were made in the share capital of the Company

SUBSIDARY AND ASSOCIATED PARTNERSHIP FIRMS
As on March 31, 2015, Your Company has three subsidiaries viz. TCI Infrastructure 
Limited, TCI Properties(West) Ltd and TCI Distribution Centers Limited. Further there 
has been no material change in the nature of business of the subsidiaries.

Subsequent to March 31, 2015, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary 
thviz. TDL Warehousing Parks Limited w.e.f. 17  April, 2015.

As on March 31,2015, there are five partnership firms in which the Company and two of its 
subsidiaries are partners viz. TCI Properties (Guj); TCI Properties(NCR);TCI 
Properties(Delhi);TCI Properties(NCR) and TCI Warehousing(MH).

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and 
associated partnership firms as per the Companies Act, 2013 is set out in the prescribed 
form AOC - 1, to the consolidated financial statement and hence not repeated here for the 
sake of brevity.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the Annual Return as provided under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is enclosed as Annexure-A in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms an integral 
part of this report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors met 4 times during the financial year 2014-2015. The details of the 
Board meeting and attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 7th annual report on the business and operations of the Company together with the audited results for the financial year ended March 
31, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The standalone and consolidated financial results of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 are summarised below:

(Amount in `)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Income 101,488,046 31,769,547 41,781,150 24,437,205
Profit before Interest, Depreciation &Tax 81,296,946 9,313,313 24,483,798 3,303,074
Less: Interest Cost 27,103,454 140,251 126,474 135,365

Depreciation 14,600,699 2,316,629 1,199,007 830,426
Profit before Tax 39,592,793 6,856,433 23,158,317 2,337,283
Less: Provision for Tax 

– Current 9,213,000 3,940,000 - -
– Taxes for Earlier Years (115,124) 10,180 (114,073) -
– MAT Credit (69000) - - -
– Deferred (1,290,300) (2,965,300) (1,290,300) (2,965,300)

Profit after Tax 31,854,217 5,871,553 24,562,690 5,302,583
Minority Interest (480,356) (239,023) - -
Add:  Balance brought forward 26,121,049 20,488,519 25,080,322 19,777,739
Profit available for appropriation 57,494,910 26,121,049 49,643,012 25,080,322
Appropriations:
Adjustment against accumulated Depreciation (31,591) - (31,591) -
Proposed dividend

-On preference shares (2,115,000) - (2,115,000) -
- On equity shares - - - -

Dividend Tax (422,876) - (422,876) -
Balance carried forward 54,925,443 26,121,049 47,073,545 25,080,322

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, Mrs. Manisha Agarwal was appointed as Independent 
Director of the Company by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 
23rd July 2014.

Further, Mr. Rajesh Dhyani was appointed as Dy. CFO of the Company w.e.f. 24th 
May, 2014 in terms of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules 
made there under.

In terms of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vineet Agarwal, director 
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has 
offered himself for re-appointment. A brief resume of Mr. Vineet Agarwal has been 
incorporate in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting forming part of this 
Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION 
In Compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the performance evaluation of the Board was carried out during the 
year under review. More details on the same is given in the corporate Governance 
Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the listing 
Agreement, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration of the various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the 
Board and its committees and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. The 
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy, Mr. Amitava Ghosh, Mr. Ashok B Lall and Mrs. Manisha 
Agarwal who are Independent Directors, have submitted a declaration that each of 
them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Further, 
there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 
independent director during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 
explanations obtained by us, your Directors make the following statement in terms 
of section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures if any;

(b) selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

Directors’ Report
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2012-13, has still been facing difficulties due to disputes between two government 

departments. The sale of the flats in the whole adjoining area has been put on hold by 

the authorities. The matter is still under judicial consideration with the Hon'ble High 
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The real estate & warehousing business is impacted by, interalia, regulatory and 

monetary policies and investment outlook. The Company's operations and its ability 

for future development has to be viewed in light of the many factors such as land 

acquisition, permitted land use, approval from multiple government authorities, 

development of land and construction thereon, unanticipated delays in project 

approvals, availability of accomplished and trained labour force, increased cost of 

manpower, rising cost of construction, stringent environmental and safety standards 

etc. 

Your Company aims to understand, measure and monitor the various risks to which it 

is exposed and to ensure that it adheres, as far as reasonably and practically possible, to 

the policies and procedures established by it to mitigate these risks.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, other 

applicable rules and regulations and also as per the generally accepted accounting principles, 

policies and practices prevalent in India. The Company's financial performance is discussed in 

details under the head “Financial Results”  in Directors' Report to the Members. 
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RELATIONS

The Company considers its employees to be the most valuable asset and is committed to 

providing a healthy & motivating work environment to enable each individual employee to 

fully realize his or her potential. The company has adequate human resources to maintain its 

various operational & commercial activities. The company reviews its manpower 

requirement from time to time and inducts suitable personnel as per requirement. Regular 

and detailed performance appraisal system is in place to evaluate the performance of all the 

employees and necessary steps are taken to strengthen the areas in which they need 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  AND ITS  ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control system, commensurate with size and nature 

of its business. The system is supported by documented policies, guidelines and procedures 

to monitor business and operational performance which are aimed at ensuring business 

integrity and promoting operational efficiency. These internal controls are designed to 

ensure that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial information and 

other reports, and for maintaining regular accountability of the Company's assets and 

operations.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control 

system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and 

policies of the Company and its subsidiaries. Reports of the internal auditor are regularly 

reviewed at the Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests improvements for 

strengthening them.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and 

Analysis, describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may 

constitute 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and 

regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied.

Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
During the year under review, on standalone basis, your Company earned total revenue of 
Rs. 41,781,150/- as compared to Rs. 24,437,205/- in the previous year and Profit after tax is 
Rs. 24,562,690/- as against Rs. 5,302,583/- in the previous year.

During the year under review, on consolidated basis, your Company's total revenue is Rs. 
101,488,046/-as compared to Rs. 31,769,547/- in the previous year and Profit after tax is 
Rs. 31,854,217/- as against Rs. 5,871,553/- in the previous year.

DIVIDEND & RESERVES
The Board of Directors have recommended a fixed dividend @ 5% on 42,30,000 Non-
cumulative Non- Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, subject to 
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the Board 
of Directors have not recommended any dividend on equity shares of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

The total cash outflow on account of dividend on preference shares for the financial year 
2014-15 would result in payout of Rs. 21,15,000/-(excluding dividend distribution tax of Rs. 
4,22,876).

 During the year under review, no amount was transferred to General Reserve.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, no changes were made in the share capital of the Company

SUBSIDARY AND ASSOCIATED PARTNERSHIP FIRMS
As on March 31, 2015, Your Company has three subsidiaries viz. TCI Infrastructure 
Limited, TCI Properties(West) Ltd and TCI Distribution Centers Limited. Further there 
has been no material change in the nature of business of the subsidiaries.

Subsequent to March 31, 2015, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary 
thviz. TDL Warehousing Parks Limited w.e.f. 17  April, 2015.

As on March 31,2015, there are five partnership firms in which the Company and two of its 
subsidiaries are partners viz. TCI Properties (Guj); TCI Properties(NCR);TCI 
Properties(Delhi);TCI Properties(NCR) and TCI Warehousing(MH).

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and 
associated partnership firms as per the Companies Act, 2013 is set out in the prescribed 
form AOC - 1, to the consolidated financial statement and hence not repeated here for the 
sake of brevity.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the Annual Return as provided under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is enclosed as Annexure-A in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms an integral 
part of this report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors met 4 times during the financial year 2014-2015. The details of the 
Board meeting and attendance of the Directors are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 7th annual report on the business and operations of the Company together with the audited results for the financial year ended March 
31, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The standalone and consolidated financial results of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 are summarised below:

(Amount in `)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Income 101,488,046 31,769,547 41,781,150 24,437,205
Profit before Interest, Depreciation &Tax 81,296,946 9,313,313 24,483,798 3,303,074
Less: Interest Cost 27,103,454 140,251 126,474 135,365

Depreciation 14,600,699 2,316,629 1,199,007 830,426
Profit before Tax 39,592,793 6,856,433 23,158,317 2,337,283
Less: Provision for Tax 

– Current 9,213,000 3,940,000 - -
– Taxes for Earlier Years (115,124) 10,180 (114,073) -
– MAT Credit (69000) - - -
– Deferred (1,290,300) (2,965,300) (1,290,300) (2,965,300)

Profit after Tax 31,854,217 5,871,553 24,562,690 5,302,583
Minority Interest (480,356) (239,023) - -
Add:  Balance brought forward 26,121,049 20,488,519 25,080,322 19,777,739
Profit available for appropriation 57,494,910 26,121,049 49,643,012 25,080,322
Appropriations:
Adjustment against accumulated Depreciation (31,591) - (31,591) -
Proposed dividend

-On preference shares (2,115,000) - (2,115,000) -
- On equity shares - - - -

Dividend Tax (422,876) - (422,876) -
Balance carried forward 54,925,443 26,121,049 47,073,545 25,080,322

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, Mrs. Manisha Agarwal was appointed as Independent 
Director of the Company by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 
23rd July 2014.

Further, Mr. Rajesh Dhyani was appointed as Dy. CFO of the Company w.e.f. 24th 
May, 2014 in terms of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules 
made there under.

In terms of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vineet Agarwal, director 
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has 
offered himself for re-appointment. A brief resume of Mr. Vineet Agarwal has been 
incorporate in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting forming part of this 
Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION 
In Compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, the performance evaluation of the Board was carried out during the 
year under review. More details on the same is given in the corporate Governance 
Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the listing 
Agreement, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration of the various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the 
Board and its committees and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. The 
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was 
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy, Mr. Amitava Ghosh, Mr. Ashok B Lall and Mrs. Manisha 
Agarwal who are Independent Directors, have submitted a declaration that each of 
them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Further, 
there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 
independent director during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 
explanations obtained by us, your Directors make the following statement in terms 
of section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2015, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures if any;

(b) selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

Directors’ Report
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and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2015  and of 
the profit of the company for the year ended on that date;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

STATUTORY AUDIT 

M/s M Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company will hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment as per Section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.The Company has received a letter from M/s Gandhi & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the 
prescribed limits under section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act,2013 and that they 
are not disqualified from being appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company.

The Auditor’s Report does not have any qualification and is self- explanatory, hence 
does not call for any comment of Board.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed Ms. Sonia Singh, a Practising Company Secretary to 
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2014-15 under the 
provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended March 31, 2015 is included as 
Annexure-B and forms an integral part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark.

RISK MANAGEMENT 

During the year under review, the Company has adopted a policy on identification 
of risk & minimization of risk as approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk 
Management is overseen by the Audit Committee of the Company on a continuous 
basis. The Committee oversees Company’s process and policies for determining 
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and comparison of overall 
risk tolerance to established levels. Major risks identified by the businesses and 
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuous 
basis. 

REMUNERATION POLICY
During the year under review, the Company has adopted a policy on Directors 
Appointment and remuneration of Directors and senior management employees. 
This policy has been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee & 
the Board. The more details on the same is given in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
No employee of the Company was in receipt of the remuneration which exceeds 
the limits as prescribed under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under 
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annual 
Report are forming part of this report as Annexure-C.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and 
other matters provided under section 178(3) of the Act are covered in Corporate 
Governance Report which forms part of this Report. Further, information about 
elements of remuneration package of individual directors is provided in the extract 
of Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, is enclosed at 
Annexure-A in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATIONS OR COURTS
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that 
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on 
account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the 
date of the Balance Sheet.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS  AND  THEIR  ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. The Internal Audit is entrusted to Mr. Rajiv Ranjan- Cost 
Accountant, an employee of the Company. The main thrust of internal audit is to test and 
review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of 
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies of the Company and its subsidiaries. Based on the 
report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and 
corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 
regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not attracted to the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud 
and mismanagement, if any. The details of Policy is explained in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
are as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

The operations of the Company, being Real Estate & Warehousing, require 
normal consumption of electricity. The Company is taking every necessary step 
to reduce the consumption of energy.

(ii)The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

Your Company has explored the potential of using alternate sources of energy 
which may be considered for implementation in future.

(iii)The capital investment on energy conservation equipments; The Company 
continuously endeavors to economies the use of energy and fuel. However no 
specific proposals are being implemented.

B. Technology Absorption
In view of the nature of business of the Company, the required information in the 
prescribed manner is considered to be not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo
During the year under review, there were no inflow & Outgo of Foreign Exchange.

TRANSACTIONS  WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s 
length basis and in the ordinary course of Business, hence provisions of Section 188(1) of 
the Act are not applicable. Thus Disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF  THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial 
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &  ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Clause 49 of the 
listing agreement with the stock exchanges forms part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate section 
on corporate governance practices followed by the Company, together with a certificate 
from the Company's Auditors confirming compliance forms part of this Report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their gratitude for the valuable assistance 
and co-operation extended by the bankers, vendors, customers, advisors and the  general 
public and also  for the valued efforts and dedication shown by the Company employees 
at all levels. Your Directors also sincerely acknowledge the confidence and faith reposed 
by the shareholders of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place: Gurgaon D P Agarwal 
Date: May 25, 2015 Chairman
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Annexure [A] to Directors’ Report
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I CIN L70102TG2008PLC059173

ii Registration Date 14/05/2008

iii Name of the Company TCI Developers Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares/IndianNon-Government Company

v Address of the Registered office & contact details Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor, Ashoka Bhoopal  Chambers, S.P. Road,

Secunderabad - 500003 (Telangana)

vi Whether listed company Yes 

vii Name, Address & contact details of the M/s. Big Share Services Pvt Ltd, 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.  E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar , Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400072, 

Tel No.022-40430200 E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF  THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated.

S No Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the products/services % to total turnover of the company
1 Rental or leasing services of factories, office buildings, ware houses 99721121 28.10

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S No Name &  Address of the Company CIN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE

SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD

1 TCI Infrastructure Limited U45400TG2008PLC059182 Subsidiary 100.00 2(87)
Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor
Ashoka Bhoopal , Chambers, S.P. Road
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500003

2 TCI Properties (West) Limited U45201TG2000PLC065904 Subsidiary 60.00 2(87)
Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor
Ashoka Bhoopal , Chambers, S.P. Road
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500003

3 TCI Distribution Centers Limited U51909DL2005PLC13878 Subsidiary 94.10* 2(87)
10, Rambag, Old Rothak Road, Delhi - 110007

% has been calculated after taking into consideration the convertible preference shares as per rule 2(1) (r) of the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014.

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

i. Category-wise shareholding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at 
beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) the end of the year(as on 31.03.2015)  

 Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total 
 Shares Shares

A.  Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 941289 - 941289 25.24 941229 - 941229 25.24 -

b) Central Govt. or  State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporates 1849131 - 1849131 49.58 1849191 - 1849191 49.58

d) Bank/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL: (A) (1) 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 -

(2)Foreign    -    - -

a) NRI- Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding of Promoter 

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 -

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING       

(1) Institutions    -    - -

a) Mutual Funds - 25 25 - - 25 25 - -

b) Banks/FI - 1031 1031 0.03 - 1031 1031 0.03 -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Fund - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FIIS - 274 274 0.01 - 274 274 0.01 -

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

I) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): - 1330 1330 0.04 - 1330 1330 0.04 -
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and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2015  and of 
the profit of the company for the year ended on that date;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

STATUTORY AUDIT 

M/s M Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company will hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment as per Section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.The Company has received a letter from M/s Gandhi & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the 
prescribed limits under section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act,2013 and that they 
are not disqualified from being appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company.

The Auditor’s Report does not have any qualification and is self- explanatory, hence 
does not call for any comment of Board.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The Board has appointed Ms. Sonia Singh, a Practising Company Secretary to 
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2014-15 under the 
provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended March 31, 2015 is included as 
Annexure-B and forms an integral part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark.

RISK MANAGEMENT 

During the year under review, the Company has adopted a policy on identification 
of risk & minimization of risk as approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk 
Management is overseen by the Audit Committee of the Company on a continuous 
basis. The Committee oversees Company’s process and policies for determining 
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and comparison of overall 
risk tolerance to established levels. Major risks identified by the businesses and 
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuous 
basis. 

REMUNERATION POLICY
During the year under review, the Company has adopted a policy on Directors 
Appointment and remuneration of Directors and senior management employees. 
This policy has been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee & 
the Board. The more details on the same is given in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
No employee of the Company was in receipt of the remuneration which exceeds 
the limits as prescribed under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under 
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annual 
Report are forming part of this report as Annexure-C.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria 
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and 
other matters provided under section 178(3) of the Act are covered in Corporate 
Governance Report which forms part of this Report. Further, information about 
elements of remuneration package of individual directors is provided in the extract 
of Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, is enclosed at 
Annexure-A in the prescribed form MGT-9 and forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATIONS OR COURTS
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that 
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on 
account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the 
date of the Balance Sheet.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS  AND  THEIR  ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. The Internal Audit is entrusted to Mr. Rajiv Ranjan- Cost 
Accountant, an employee of the Company. The main thrust of internal audit is to test and 
review controls, appraisal of risks and business processes.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of 
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies of the Company and its subsidiaries. Based on the 
report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and 
corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 
regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not attracted to the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud 
and mismanagement, if any. The details of Policy is explained in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
are as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

The operations of the Company, being Real Estate & Warehousing, require 
normal consumption of electricity. The Company is taking every necessary step 
to reduce the consumption of energy.

(ii)The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

Your Company has explored the potential of using alternate sources of energy 
which may be considered for implementation in future.

(iii)The capital investment on energy conservation equipments; The Company 
continuously endeavors to economies the use of energy and fuel. However no 
specific proposals are being implemented.

B. Technology Absorption
In view of the nature of business of the Company, the required information in the 
prescribed manner is considered to be not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo
During the year under review, there were no inflow & Outgo of Foreign Exchange.

TRANSACTIONS  WITH RELATED PARTIES
All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s 
length basis and in the ordinary course of Business, hence provisions of Section 188(1) of 
the Act are not applicable. Thus Disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF  THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial 
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &  ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Clause 49 of the 
listing agreement with the stock exchanges forms part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate section 
on corporate governance practices followed by the Company, together with a certificate 
from the Company's Auditors confirming compliance forms part of this Report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their gratitude for the valuable assistance 
and co-operation extended by the bankers, vendors, customers, advisors and the  general 
public and also  for the valued efforts and dedication shown by the Company employees 
at all levels. Your Directors also sincerely acknowledge the confidence and faith reposed 
by the shareholders of the Company.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place: Gurgaon D P Agarwal 
Date: May 25, 2015 Chairman
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Annexure [A] to Directors’ Report
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2015
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

I CIN L70102TG2008PLC059173

ii Registration Date 14/05/2008

iii Name of the Company TCI Developers Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares/IndianNon-Government Company

v Address of the Registered office & contact details Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor, Ashoka Bhoopal  Chambers, S.P. Road,

Secunderabad - 500003 (Telangana)

vi Whether listed company Yes 

vii Name, Address & contact details of the M/s. Big Share Services Pvt Ltd, 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.  E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar , Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400072, 

Tel No.022-40430200 E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF  THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated.

S No Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the products/services % to total turnover of the company
1 Rental or leasing services of factories, office buildings, ware houses 99721121 28.10

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S No Name &  Address of the Company CIN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE

SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD

1 TCI Infrastructure Limited U45400TG2008PLC059182 Subsidiary 100.00 2(87)
Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor
Ashoka Bhoopal , Chambers, S.P. Road
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500003

2 TCI Properties (West) Limited U45201TG2000PLC065904 Subsidiary 60.00 2(87)
Flat No. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 To 273, 3rd Floor
Ashoka Bhoopal , Chambers, S.P. Road
Secunderabad, Telangana - 500003

3 TCI Distribution Centers Limited U51909DL2005PLC13878 Subsidiary 94.10* 2(87)
10, Rambag, Old Rothak Road, Delhi - 110007

% has been calculated after taking into consideration the convertible preference shares as per rule 2(1) (r) of the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014.

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

i. Category-wise shareholding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at 
beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) the end of the year(as on 31.03.2015)  

 Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total 
 Shares Shares

A.  Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 941289 - 941289 25.24 941229 - 941229 25.24 -

b) Central Govt. or  State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporates 1849131 - 1849131 49.58 1849191 - 1849191 49.58

d) Bank/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL: (A) (1) 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 -

(2)Foreign    -    - -

a) NRI- Individuals - - - - - - - - -

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any other - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding of Promoter 

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 2790420 - 2790420 74.82 -

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING       

(1) Institutions    -    - -

a) Mutual Funds - 25 25 - - 25 25 - -

b) Banks/FI - 1031 1031 0.03 - 1031 1031 0.03 -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt. - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Fund - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FIIS - 274 274 0.01 - 274 274 0.01 -

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

I) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): - 1330 1330 0.04 - 1330 1330 0.04 -
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% change
during the

year

1 Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd. 798489 21.41 - 798489 21.41 - -

2 Bhoruka International(P) Ltd. 557910 14.96 - 557910 14.96 - -

3  D P Agarwal-TCI Trading 248749 6.67 - 248749 6.67 - -

4  TCI India Ltd. 211548 5.67 - 211548 5.67 - -

5 Vineet Agarwal 171685 4.60 - 171685 4.60 - -

6 Priyanka Agarwal 117260 3.14 - 117260 3.14 - -

7  TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  114595 3.07 - 114595 3.07 - -

8 Dharmpal-HUF 108107 2.90 - 108107 2.90 - -

9  Chander Agarwal 106451 2.85 - 106451 2.85 - -

10  Transport Corpotaion of India Ltd. 100000 2.68 - 100000 2.68 - -

11 Urmila Agarwal 86186 2.31 - 86186 2.31 - -

12 Dharmpal Agarwal 54154 1.45 - 54154 1.45 - -

13  XPS Cargo Services Ltd. 49242 1.32 - 49242 1.32 - -

14 Chandrima Agarwal 47209 1.27 - 47209 1.27 - -

15  TCI Exim(P)Ltd 17407 0.47 - 17407 0.47 - -

16 Vineet Agarwal 1038 0.03 - 1038 0.03 - -

17  Master Vihaan Agarwal 349 0.01 - 349 0.01 - -

18  Master Nav Agarwal 41 0.00 - 41 0.00 - -

 Total 2790420 74.82 - 2790420 74.82 - -

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

iii. Change in promoters' shareholding 

Sl. No. Shareholding at Cumulative Shareholding
the beginning of theY ear during the year

No of % of total shares No of shares % of total shares
Shares of the company of the company

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease 
(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year

No Change during the year
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders ( other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl No. Name of the shareholders Shareholding at the beginning  Change in shareholding Shareholding at the end of
  of the year (as on 01.04.2014) during the year the year (as on 31.03.2015)

No of % of total No of % of total No of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of shares shares of 

the company the company the company

1 Deepa Bagla 179871 4.82 54 0.00 179925 4.82
2 Arcee Holdings  Limited-OCB 101548 2.72 - - 101548 2.72
3 Sangeeta Nirmal Bang - 0.00 51745 1.39 51745 1.39
4 Sushma Chamaria-NRI 33733 0.90 - - 33733 0.90
5 Motilal Oswal Financial Services Limited 20278 0.54 6500 0.17 26778 0.72
6 K.Swapna 24641 0.66 1669 0.04 26310 0.71
7 Pradeep Aggarwal 16838 0.45 2828 0.08 19666 0.53
8 Padmavati Properties & Trust Pvt. Ltd 18500 0.50 - - 18500 0.50
9 Sapna Pradeep Agarwal 16066 0.43 1500 0.04 17566 0.47
10 Ramesh S Damani 12925 0.35 - - 12925 0.35

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (s) :

Shareholding at the Date Increase/ (Decrease) Reason Shareholding at 
Sr. No Name  beginning of the year in shareholding the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares No. of shares 
of the Company of the Company

1 Mukesh Jain - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

2 Rajesh Dhyani - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

 V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Amount in Rs.)

Secured Loans excluding Unsecured Deposits Total
deposits Loans Total  Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1,554,550 29,400,000 - 30,954,550
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,554,550 29,400,000 - 30,954,550

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Additions - 11,950,000 - 11,950,000
Reduction 647,946 - - 647,946

Net Change (647,946) 11,950,000 - 11,302,054
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 906,604 41,350,000 - 42,256,604
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 906,604 41,350,000 - 42,256,604

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the  No. of Shares held at 

beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) the end of the year(as on 31.03.2015)  

 Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total 
 Shares Shares

(2) Non Institutions    

a) Bodies corporates       

i) Indian 88269 2324 90593 2.43 87235 2308 89543 2.40 0.03

ii) Overseas - 101548 101548 2.72 - 101548 101548 2.72 -

b) Individuals    -    - -

i) Individual shareholders  

holding nominal share capital  

upto Rs.1 lakhs 261388 106854 368242 9.87 265782 104626 370408 9.93 (0.06)

ii) Individuals shareholders  

holding nominal share capital  

in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs 241592 - 241592 6.48 243467 - 243467 6.53 (0.05)

c) Others (specify)

Trusts 50 - 50 - 50 - 50 - -

Non Resident Indians 12549 46474 59023 1.58 12319 46225 58544 1.57 0.01

Clearing Members 381 - 381 0.01 1056 - 1056 0.03 (0.02)

Hindu Undivided Families 76252 - 76252 2.04 73065 - 73065 1.96 0.09

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 680481 257200 937681 25.14 682974 254707 937681 25.14 -

Total Public Shareholding

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 680481 258530 939011 25.18 682974 256037 939011 25.18 -

C.  Shares held by Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3470901 258530 3729431 100.00 3473394 256037 3729431 100.00 -

ii. Share Holding of Promoters

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the 
Sl Shareholders Name beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) end of the year (as on 31.03.2015)
No. No of shares % of total % of shares No of shares % of total % of shares

shares pledged shares pledged
of the encumbered of the of the

company to total shares company to total shares

Shareholding at the Date Increase/ (Decrease) Reason Shareholding at 
Sr. No Name  beginning of the year in shareholding the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares No. of shares
of the Company of the Company

A. Directors

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal 54154  1.45 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
54154 1.45 31.03.2015 - during the year 54154 1.45

2 Mr. Vineet Agarwal 171685 4.60 01-04-2014 - Nil movement
171685 4.60 31.03-2015 - during the year 171685 4.60

3 Mr. Chander Agarwal 106451 2.85 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
106451 2.85 31.03.2015 - during the year 106451 2.85

4 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

5 Mr. Ashok B Lall - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

6 Mr. Amitava Ghosh - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

7 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
(w.e.f. 23.07.2014) - - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 127 0.00 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
127 0.00 31.03.2015 - during the year 127 0.00
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% change
during the

year

1 Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd. 798489 21.41 - 798489 21.41 - -

2 Bhoruka International(P) Ltd. 557910 14.96 - 557910 14.96 - -

3  D P Agarwal-TCI Trading 248749 6.67 - 248749 6.67 - -

4  TCI India Ltd. 211548 5.67 - 211548 5.67 - -

5 Vineet Agarwal 171685 4.60 - 171685 4.60 - -

6 Priyanka Agarwal 117260 3.14 - 117260 3.14 - -

7  TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  114595 3.07 - 114595 3.07 - -

8 Dharmpal-HUF 108107 2.90 - 108107 2.90 - -

9  Chander Agarwal 106451 2.85 - 106451 2.85 - -

10  Transport Corpotaion of India Ltd. 100000 2.68 - 100000 2.68 - -

11 Urmila Agarwal 86186 2.31 - 86186 2.31 - -

12 Dharmpal Agarwal 54154 1.45 - 54154 1.45 - -

13  XPS Cargo Services Ltd. 49242 1.32 - 49242 1.32 - -

14 Chandrima Agarwal 47209 1.27 - 47209 1.27 - -

15  TCI Exim(P)Ltd 17407 0.47 - 17407 0.47 - -

16 Vineet Agarwal 1038 0.03 - 1038 0.03 - -

17  Master Vihaan Agarwal 349 0.01 - 349 0.01 - -

18  Master Nav Agarwal 41 0.00 - 41 0.00 - -

 Total 2790420 74.82 - 2790420 74.82 - -

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

iii. Change in promoters' shareholding 

Sl. No. Shareholding at Cumulative Shareholding
the beginning of theY ear during the year

No of % of total shares No of shares % of total shares
Shares of the company of the company

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease 
(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year

No Change during the year
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iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders ( other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl No. Name of the shareholders Shareholding at the beginning  Change in shareholding Shareholding at the end of
  of the year (as on 01.04.2014) during the year the year (as on 31.03.2015)

No of % of total No of % of total No of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of shares shares of 

the company the company the company

1 Deepa Bagla 179871 4.82 54 0.00 179925 4.82
2 Arcee Holdings  Limited-OCB 101548 2.72 - - 101548 2.72
3 Sangeeta Nirmal Bang - 0.00 51745 1.39 51745 1.39
4 Sushma Chamaria-NRI 33733 0.90 - - 33733 0.90
5 Motilal Oswal Financial Services Limited 20278 0.54 6500 0.17 26778 0.72
6 K.Swapna 24641 0.66 1669 0.04 26310 0.71
7 Pradeep Aggarwal 16838 0.45 2828 0.08 19666 0.53
8 Padmavati Properties & Trust Pvt. Ltd 18500 0.50 - - 18500 0.50
9 Sapna Pradeep Agarwal 16066 0.43 1500 0.04 17566 0.47
10 Ramesh S Damani 12925 0.35 - - 12925 0.35

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (s) :

Shareholding at the Date Increase/ (Decrease) Reason Shareholding at 
Sr. No Name  beginning of the year in shareholding the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares No. of shares 
of the Company of the Company

1 Mukesh Jain - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

2 Rajesh Dhyani - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

 V. INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Amount in Rs.)

Secured Loans excluding Unsecured Deposits Total
deposits Loans Total  Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 1,554,550 29,400,000 - 30,954,550
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,554,550 29,400,000 - 30,954,550

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Additions - 11,950,000 - 11,950,000
Reduction 647,946 - - 647,946

Net Change (647,946) 11,950,000 - 11,302,054
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 906,604 41,350,000 - 42,256,604
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 906,604 41,350,000 - 42,256,604

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the  No. of Shares held at 

beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) the end of the year(as on 31.03.2015)  

 Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total Demat Physical Total Shares % of  Total 
 Shares Shares

(2) Non Institutions    

a) Bodies corporates       

i) Indian 88269 2324 90593 2.43 87235 2308 89543 2.40 0.03

ii) Overseas - 101548 101548 2.72 - 101548 101548 2.72 -

b) Individuals    -    - -

i) Individual shareholders  

holding nominal share capital  

upto Rs.1 lakhs 261388 106854 368242 9.87 265782 104626 370408 9.93 (0.06)

ii) Individuals shareholders  

holding nominal share capital  

in excess of Rs. 1 lakhs 241592 - 241592 6.48 243467 - 243467 6.53 (0.05)

c) Others (specify)

Trusts 50 - 50 - 50 - 50 - -

Non Resident Indians 12549 46474 59023 1.58 12319 46225 58544 1.57 0.01

Clearing Members 381 - 381 0.01 1056 - 1056 0.03 (0.02)

Hindu Undivided Families 76252 - 76252 2.04 73065 - 73065 1.96 0.09

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 680481 257200 937681 25.14 682974 254707 937681 25.14 -

Total Public Shareholding

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 680481 258530 939011 25.18 682974 256037 939011 25.18 -

C.  Shares held by Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3470901 258530 3729431 100.00 3473394 256037 3729431 100.00 -

ii. Share Holding of Promoters

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the 
Sl Shareholders Name beginning of the year (as on 01.04.2014) end of the year (as on 31.03.2015)
No. No of shares % of total % of shares No of shares % of total % of shares

shares pledged shares pledged
of the encumbered of the of the

company to total shares company to total shares

Shareholding at the Date Increase/ (Decrease) Reason Shareholding at 
Sr. No Name  beginning of the year in shareholding the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares No. of shares
of the Company of the Company

A. Directors

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal 54154  1.45 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
54154 1.45 31.03.2015 - during the year 54154 1.45

2 Mr. Vineet Agarwal 171685 4.60 01-04-2014 - Nil movement
171685 4.60 31.03-2015 - during the year 171685 4.60

3 Mr. Chander Agarwal 106451 2.85 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
106451 2.85 31.03.2015 - during the year 106451 2.85

4 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

5 Mr. Ashok B Lall - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

6 Mr. Amitava Ghosh - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
- - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

7 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal - - 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
(w.e.f. 23.07.2014) - - 31.03.2015 - during the year - -

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 127 0.00 01.04.2014 - Nil movement
127 0.00 31.03.2015 - during the year 127 0.00
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended on March 31, 2015
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members

TCI Developers Limited

Flat Nos. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 to 273

Third Floor, AshokaBhoopal Chambers

S.P. Road, Secunderabad-500003 (Telangana)

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by TCI Developers Limited (hereinafter 

called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinions thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

period covering the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made thereinafter:-

I have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms e-return filed and other records 

maintained by the company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015, according to the 

provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rules made there 

under.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the regulations and byelaws 

framed there under.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, 

External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeover) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading 

Regulations), 1992;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2009; (Not applicable to the 

Company during Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

f) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993.regarding the Companies act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

I have also examined compliances with applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Not 

notified hence not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).\

(b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s):

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rule(s) and Regulation(s), Guideline(s), Standard(s) etc. mentioned above.

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 

Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance 

thereof, on the test check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws 

applicable to the Company. 

(i) Warehousing (Development and Regulations) Act, 2007;

(ii) Building and other Construction Workers (Regulations of Employment and 

Conditions of Service) Act, 1996;

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Director that took place 

during the period under review were carried out in compliances with the provision of 

the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any are 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and to ensure 

compliance with applicable law(s), rule(s), regulation(s), and guideline(s).

I further report that during the audit period the Company has passed following 

Special Resolutions; 

(i) Creation of Charges/mortgages in favour of Financial Institutions, Banks etc. 

under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(ii) Borrowing limits under Section 180(1) (c ) of the Companies Act, 2013; and

(iii) Keeping of Register of Members & other related documents u/s 94 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 at a place other than its Registered Office.

For  Sonia Singh & Co, 

Sonia Singh

Practicing Company Secretary

Place : Delhi ACS No. 24442

Date : May 25, 2015 CP No. 14279

Annexure [B] to Directors’ Report
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C. Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel Other than WTD

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary CFO

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 409,921 770,176 1,180,097

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 - - -

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -

2. Stock option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission - as % of profit - - -

5. Others - Employer Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 24,060 50,400 74,460

Total 433,981 820,576 1,254,557

Total

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Whole Time Director

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Naresh Kumar Baranwal Total 
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the  Income Tax. 1961. 4,503,458 4,503,458
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 21,600 21,600
(c )  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the  Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - -
5 Others - Employer Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 251,419 251,419

Total 4,776,477 4,776,477

B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Name of Director Fee for attending 
Board/ committee meetings Commission Others Total

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 32,000  -    -    32,000
Mr. Amitava Ghosh  24,000  -    -    24,000
Mr. Ashok B. Lall 16,000  -    -    16,000
Mrs. Manisha Agarwal  5,000  -    -    5,000

Total (1) 77,000 

2. Non-Executive/Promoter Directors:

Name of Director Fee for attending 
Board/ committee meetings Commission Others Total

Mr. D P Agarwal -  -    -    -
Mr. Vineet Agarwal  -  -    -    -
Mr. Chander Agarwal -  -    -    -
Total (2)          -

Total (1+2) 77,000 

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended on March 31, 2015
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members

TCI Developers Limited

Flat Nos. 306 & 307, 1-8-271 to 273

Third Floor, AshokaBhoopal Chambers

S.P. Road, Secunderabad-500003 (Telangana)

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by TCI Developers Limited (hereinafter 

called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinions thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

period covering the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made thereinafter:-

I have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms e-return filed and other records 

maintained by the company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015, according to the 

provisions of:

(I) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rules made there 

under.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the regulations and byelaws 

framed there under.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, 

External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeover) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading 

Regulations), 1992;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2009; (Not applicable to the 

Company during Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

f) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993.regarding the Companies act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

I have also examined compliances with applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Not 

notified hence not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).\

(b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange(s):

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rule(s) and Regulation(s), Guideline(s), Standard(s) etc. mentioned above.

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 

Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance 

thereof, on the test check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws 

applicable to the Company. 

(i) Warehousing (Development and Regulations) Act, 2007;

(ii) Building and other Construction Workers (Regulations of Employment and 

Conditions of Service) Act, 1996;

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 

proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Director that took place 

during the period under review were carried out in compliances with the provision of 

the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any are 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and to ensure 

compliance with applicable law(s), rule(s), regulation(s), and guideline(s).

I further report that during the audit period the Company has passed following 

Special Resolutions; 

(i) Creation of Charges/mortgages in favour of Financial Institutions, Banks etc. 

under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(ii) Borrowing limits under Section 180(1) (c ) of the Companies Act, 2013; and

(iii) Keeping of Register of Members & other related documents u/s 94 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 at a place other than its Registered Office.

For  Sonia Singh & Co, 

Sonia Singh

Practicing Company Secretary

Place : Delhi ACS No. 24442

Date : May 25, 2015 CP No. 14279

Annexure [B] to Directors’ Report
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C. Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel Other than WTD

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary CFO

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 409,921 770,176 1,180,097

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 - - -

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -

2. Stock option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission - as % of profit - - -

5. Others - Employer Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 24,060 50,400 74,460

Total 433,981 820,576 1,254,557

Total

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Whole Time Director

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Naresh Kumar Baranwal Total 
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the  Income Tax. 1961. 4,503,458 4,503,458
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 21,600 21,600
(c )  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the  Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - as % of profit - -
5 Others - Employer Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 251,419 251,419

Total 4,776,477 4,776,477

B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Directors

Name of Director Fee for attending 
Board/ committee meetings Commission Others Total

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 32,000  -    -    32,000
Mr. Amitava Ghosh  24,000  -    -    24,000
Mr. Ashok B. Lall 16,000  -    -    16,000
Mrs. Manisha Agarwal  5,000  -    -    5,000

Total (1) 77,000 

2. Non-Executive/Promoter Directors:

Name of Director Fee for attending 
Board/ committee meetings Commission Others Total

Mr. D P Agarwal -  -    -    -
Mr. Vineet Agarwal  -  -    -    -
Mr. Chander Agarwal -  -    -    -
Total (2)          -

Total (1+2) 77,000 

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)

(Amount in `)
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as a part of TCI Group is committed to attain highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance emanates from 
Group’s commitment for the highest level of transparency and accountability towards its Shareholders, Customers, Employees, Financial Institutions & Banks and the Government 
while maintaining steady focus for creation of wealth for stakeholders on sustainable basis.

Every Corporate Strategy needs to be dynamic, vibrant, responsive to the changing economic scenario and flexible enough to absorb environmental and fiscal fluctuations. It must 
harness the inherent strengths of available human resources and materials and have the capacity to learn from success or failure and more importantly, ensure growth with human face. 
This has always been the guiding philosophy in the Company and will continue to be so in future.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Composition, Meeting and Attendance

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including independent directors who plays a crucial role in Board processes 
and provides independent judgement on issues of strategy and performance.

i. As on March 31, 2015, the Board comprises of eight members, comprising of a Non-Executive Promoter Chairman, One Whole Time Director, Four Independent Director and 
Two Non-Executive Promoter Directors.

ii. Four Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which the said Meetings were held are as follows:

May 24, 2014; July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014 and January 29, 2015.

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

iii. None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees across all the public companies in which they are 
Directors. All the Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in companies as on March 31, 2015 have been made by the Directors.

iv. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and the number of Directorships and Committee 
Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in companies are given herein below. 

S.No Name of Director Category Number of Whether attended
Board Meetings  last AGM held on  Held positions held 

Attended July 23, 2014

1. Mr. D.P. Agarwal Chairman, Non-Executive, 

2. Mr. O. Swaminatha Reddy Non-Executive, Independent 4 YES 8 1 5 1

3. Mr. Amitava Ghosh Non-Executive, Independent 3 YES 4 - 2 -

4. Mr. Ashok B. Lall Non-Executive,  Independent 2 NO 1 - 1 -

5. Mrs. Manisha Agarwal Non-Executive, Independent 1 - 1 2 - -

6. Mr. Vineet Agarwal Non-Executive, Promoter 4 YES 3 4 - 5

7. Mr. Chander Agarwal Non-Executive, Promoter 4 YES 3 2 - 1

8. Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal Whole Time Director 4 YES 1 2 - -

No. of Number of Committee
Directorship 

Promoter 4 YES 5 - - 2

Public Private Chairman Member

Notes :

1. Mrs. Manisha Agarwal was appointed as an independent woman director of the Company w.e.f. 23rd July, 2014.

2. Chairmanship/Membershipof Committee only includes two Committees viz. Audit Committee and the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in Indian Public Limited Companies including TCI Developers Limited.

3. Directorship exclude Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Alternate Directoitrship.

B. Information supplied to the Board & Statutory Compliance

The Board of Directors has complete access to all information available with the 
Company. The agenda notes prepared for the meetings of the Board of Directors cover all 
items specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to the extent applicable to the 
Company. In addition, the following items are also provided and reviewed by the Board of 
Directors on a regular basis:

a) Report on statutory compliance with all applicable laws by the Company, as well as 
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of noncompliance, if any;

b) Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of all the subsidiary companies of 
the Company;

c) Statement of all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by/with the 
subsidiary companies; and

d) Such other matters as may be deemed fit for consideration and approval of the board.

C. Familiarisation Programme for Directors

At the time of appointing a Director, formal letter of appointment is given, which inter alia 
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as Director of the 
Company. The Director is also explained in detail the Compliance required from him 
under the Companies Act, 2013, Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and other relevant 
regulations. The Company has put in place a system to familarise the independent 
Directors about the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature 
of the industry in which the Company operates, business model, operations of the 
Company, etc. 

The familiarization programme for Independent Directors interms of provisions of Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be 
accessed through at the link: http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp

D. Committees of Board of Directors

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement & the SEBI regulations 
thereof, the Board has constitutes various committees with detailed terms of reference & 
scope. The Committees are constituted to handle specific activities and ensure speedy 
resolution of the diverse matters. Details on the role and composition of these 
committees, including the number of meetings held during Financial Year 2014-15 and the 
attendance are provided below.

1. Audit Committee

As on March 31, 2015, the Audit Committee comprises of four non-executive 
Directors three of whom are Independent Directors. The Company Secretary is the 
secretary to the Committee.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

• Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, 
sufficient and credible;

• The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment 
of auditors of the Company.

• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by 
the statutory auditors;

• Reviewing, with the management, annual financial statements before submission 
to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

– Matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statement, 
which form part of the Board’s report in terms of clause© section 134(3) of 
the Companies Act,2013

– Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

– Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management;

– Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings;

– Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements.

– Disclosure of any related party transactions.

– Qualifications in the draft audit report;

• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval;

• Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and 
effectiveness of audit process. 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 
related parties.

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Annexure [C] to Directors’ Report Reports on Corporate Governance
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Information required under sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014.

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year;

Non-Executive Directors

Name of Director Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 0.08

Mr. Amitava Ghosh 0.06

Mr. Ashok B Lall 0.04

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal 0.01

Mr. D.P Agarwal NIL

Mr. Vineet Agarwal NIL

Mr. Chander Agarwal NIL

Whole Time Director

Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 13.98

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year;

During the year under review, the percentage increase in the remuneration of Whole Time Director, CFO & the Company Secretary are as follows:

S. No. Name of Key Managerial Person Designation % increase in Remuneration

1 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal   Whole Time Director 13.04

2 Mr. Rajesh Dhyani Chief Financial Officer 17.85

3 Mr. Mukesh Jain Company Secretary 17.21

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year;
During the year under review, the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees is 16.20%.

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company;
As on March 31, 2015 the total number of permanent employees on the rolls of company were 16 (sixteen). 

e) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance;
During the financial year 2014-15, average salary increase was 13.65 % which is in line with the business growth of the Company.

f) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company.
The comparison of remuneration of each of the Key Managerial personnel against the performance of the Company is as under:

Particulars Whole Time Director Chief Financial offer Company Secretary

Remuneration 45,25,058 7,70,176 4,09,921

Revenue 41,781,150 41,781,150 41,781,150

Remuneration( as % of revenue) 10.83% 1.84% 0.98%

Profits before tax(PBT) 23,158,317 23,158,317 23,158,317

Remuneration( as % of PBT) 19.54% 3.32% 1.77%

g) Company Related Information
a. Variations in the market capitalization of the Company: The market capitalization as on 31st March, 2015 was Rs. 1,073,516,713 as compared to Rs. 5,635,170,24 as on 31st 

March, 2014.

b. Price Earning ratio: Price Earning ratio as on 31st March, 2015 was 48.71 as compared to 106.41 as on 31st March, 2014. 

c. Percent increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company as compared to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer in the 
year: Not Applicable

h) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration;
74.1

i) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;
There is no variable component in the remuneration of Directors.

j) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest 
paid director during the year.
Not Applicable.

k) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors., Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees as per the remuneration policy of the Company
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as a part of TCI Group is committed to attain highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance emanates from 
Group’s commitment for the highest level of transparency and accountability towards its Shareholders, Customers, Employees, Financial Institutions & Banks and the Government 
while maintaining steady focus for creation of wealth for stakeholders on sustainable basis.

Every Corporate Strategy needs to be dynamic, vibrant, responsive to the changing economic scenario and flexible enough to absorb environmental and fiscal fluctuations. It must 
harness the inherent strengths of available human resources and materials and have the capacity to learn from success or failure and more importantly, ensure growth with human face. 
This has always been the guiding philosophy in the Company and will continue to be so in future.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Composition, Meeting and Attendance

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including independent directors who plays a crucial role in Board processes 
and provides independent judgement on issues of strategy and performance.

i. As on March 31, 2015, the Board comprises of eight members, comprising of a Non-Executive Promoter Chairman, One Whole Time Director, Four Independent Director and 
Two Non-Executive Promoter Directors.

ii. Four Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which the said Meetings were held are as follows:

May 24, 2014; July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014 and January 29, 2015.

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

iii. None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees across all the public companies in which they are 
Directors. All the Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in companies as on March 31, 2015 have been made by the Directors.

iv. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and the number of Directorships and Committee 
Chairmanships/Memberships held by them in companies are given herein below. 

S.No Name of Director Category Number of Whether attended
Board Meetings  last AGM held on  Held positions held 

Attended July 23, 2014

1. Mr. D.P. Agarwal Chairman, Non-Executive, 

2. Mr. O. Swaminatha Reddy Non-Executive, Independent 4 YES 8 1 5 1

3. Mr. Amitava Ghosh Non-Executive, Independent 3 YES 4 - 2 -

4. Mr. Ashok B. Lall Non-Executive,  Independent 2 NO 1 - 1 -

5. Mrs. Manisha Agarwal Non-Executive, Independent 1 - 1 2 - -

6. Mr. Vineet Agarwal Non-Executive, Promoter 4 YES 3 4 - 5

7. Mr. Chander Agarwal Non-Executive, Promoter 4 YES 3 2 - 1

8. Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal Whole Time Director 4 YES 1 2 - -

No. of Number of Committee
Directorship 

Promoter 4 YES 5 - - 2

Public Private Chairman Member

Notes :

1. Mrs. Manisha Agarwal was appointed as an independent woman director of the Company w.e.f. 23rd July, 2014.

2. Chairmanship/Membershipof Committee only includes two Committees viz. Audit Committee and the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in Indian Public Limited Companies including TCI Developers Limited.

3. Directorship exclude Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Alternate Directoitrship.

B. Information supplied to the Board & Statutory Compliance

The Board of Directors has complete access to all information available with the 
Company. The agenda notes prepared for the meetings of the Board of Directors cover all 
items specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement to the extent applicable to the 
Company. In addition, the following items are also provided and reviewed by the Board of 
Directors on a regular basis:

a) Report on statutory compliance with all applicable laws by the Company, as well as 
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of noncompliance, if any;

b) Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of all the subsidiary companies of 
the Company;

c) Statement of all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by/with the 
subsidiary companies; and

d) Such other matters as may be deemed fit for consideration and approval of the board.

C. Familiarisation Programme for Directors

At the time of appointing a Director, formal letter of appointment is given, which inter alia 
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as Director of the 
Company. The Director is also explained in detail the Compliance required from him 
under the Companies Act, 2013, Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and other relevant 
regulations. The Company has put in place a system to familarise the independent 
Directors about the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature 
of the industry in which the Company operates, business model, operations of the 
Company, etc. 

The familiarization programme for Independent Directors interms of provisions of Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be 
accessed through at the link: http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp

D. Committees of Board of Directors

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement & the SEBI regulations 
thereof, the Board has constitutes various committees with detailed terms of reference & 
scope. The Committees are constituted to handle specific activities and ensure speedy 
resolution of the diverse matters. Details on the role and composition of these 
committees, including the number of meetings held during Financial Year 2014-15 and the 
attendance are provided below.

1. Audit Committee

As on March 31, 2015, the Audit Committee comprises of four non-executive 
Directors three of whom are Independent Directors. The Company Secretary is the 
secretary to the Committee.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

• Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, 
sufficient and credible;

• The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment 
of auditors of the Company.

• Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by 
the statutory auditors;

• Reviewing, with the management, annual financial statements before submission 
to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

– Matters required to be included in the directors’ responsibility statement, 
which form part of the Board’s report in terms of clause© section 134(3) of 
the Companies Act,2013

– Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

– Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management;

– Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings;

– Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements.

– Disclosure of any related party transactions.

– Qualifications in the draft audit report;

• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval;

• Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and 
effectiveness of audit process. 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 
related parties.

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Annexure [C] to Directors’ Report Reports on Corporate Governance

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 - 15 | 1312  | TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

Information required under sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014.

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year;

Non-Executive Directors

Name of Director Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 0.08

Mr. Amitava Ghosh 0.06

Mr. Ashok B Lall 0.04

Mrs. Manisha Agarwal 0.01

Mr. D.P Agarwal NIL

Mr. Vineet Agarwal NIL

Mr. Chander Agarwal NIL

Whole Time Director

Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 13.98

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year;

During the year under review, the percentage increase in the remuneration of Whole Time Director, CFO & the Company Secretary are as follows:

S. No. Name of Key Managerial Person Designation % increase in Remuneration

1 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal   Whole Time Director 13.04

2 Mr. Rajesh Dhyani Chief Financial Officer 17.85

3 Mr. Mukesh Jain Company Secretary 17.21

c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year;
During the year under review, the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees is 16.20%.

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company;
As on March 31, 2015 the total number of permanent employees on the rolls of company were 16 (sixteen). 

e) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance;
During the financial year 2014-15, average salary increase was 13.65 % which is in line with the business growth of the Company.

f) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company.
The comparison of remuneration of each of the Key Managerial personnel against the performance of the Company is as under:

Particulars Whole Time Director Chief Financial offer Company Secretary

Remuneration 45,25,058 7,70,176 4,09,921

Revenue 41,781,150 41,781,150 41,781,150

Remuneration( as % of revenue) 10.83% 1.84% 0.98%

Profits before tax(PBT) 23,158,317 23,158,317 23,158,317

Remuneration( as % of PBT) 19.54% 3.32% 1.77%

g) Company Related Information
a. Variations in the market capitalization of the Company: The market capitalization as on 31st March, 2015 was Rs. 1,073,516,713 as compared to Rs. 5,635,170,24 as on 31st 

March, 2014.

b. Price Earning ratio: Price Earning ratio as on 31st March, 2015 was 48.71 as compared to 106.41 as on 31st March, 2014. 

c. Percent increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company as compared to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer in the 
year: Not Applicable

h) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration;
74.1

i) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;
There is no variable component in the remuneration of Directors.

j) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest 
paid director during the year.
Not Applicable.

k) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors., Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees as per the remuneration policy of the Company
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3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the nomenclature of this Committee was 
changed from Remuneration Committee to Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement. The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are as follows:

1. Determining the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

2. Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees;

3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the 
Board their appointment & removal;

4. To ensure remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals:

5. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

6. Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

7. Any other matter as the Board may decide from time to time.

Meetings and Attendance

The Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the details of 
meetings attended by the Directors during the year are given below:

Member Director Position Category No. of  No. of
meetings meetings

held  Attended

Mr. Ashok B. Lall Chairman  Independent Director 2 1

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy Member Independent Director 2 2

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Member Independent Director 2 1

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 2 2

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement, the Board 
of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, adopted a policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel & Other Employees in their 
meeting held on January 29, 2015.

(A) Whole Time Director

The remuneration paid/payable to the Whole Time Director is in accordance with the limits 
fixed by the Board based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the shareholders and central government wherever required. 
The total remuneration comprises fixed component consisting of salary and perquisites in 
accordance with the policy of the Company. Annual increments are linked to the 
performance and are decided by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
recommended to the Board for approval thereof.

Presently, the Company does not have a scheme for grant of stock options or performance 
linked incentives for its Directors.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the Company has paid the following 
remuneration to the Whole Time Director.

(Amount in Rs.)

Name of Director Salary Perquisites Total

Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 4,503,458 21,600 4,525,058

(B) Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the 
Board and Committee meetings, plus the reimbursement directly related to the actual 
travel and out of pocket expenses if any incurred by them.  A sitting fee of Rs. 5000/- for 
attendance at each meeting of the Board and Rs.3000/- for Audit Committee is paid to 
its members excluding whole time director & those non-executive promoter directors 
who have voluntarily chosen not to take any sitting fee.

stThe amount paid/payable for the financial year ended 31  March, 2015 is summarized 
below:

S.No Name of Director Sitting fees ( Amount in Rs.)

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal NIL

2 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 32000

3 Mr. Amitava Ghosh 24000

4 Mr. Ashok B.Lall 16000

5 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal 5000

6 Mr. Vineet Agarwal NIL

7 Mr. Chander Agarwal NIL

stDetails of shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31  March, 2015 are given 
below:

S. No Name of Director Number of Shares

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal 54154

2 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy NIL

3 Mr. Amitava Ghosh NIL

4 Mr. Ashok B.Lall NIL

5 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal NIL

6 Mr. Vineet Agarwal 171685

7 Mr. Chander Agarwal 106451

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 127

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as 
level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding 
the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was 
carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a meeting of the Independent 

thDirectors of the Company was held on 25  May, 2015, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the management.

All the Independent Directors were present for this meeting.

4. Share Transfer Committee

In order to provide efficient services to investors, the Board of Directors has delegated the 
power of approving transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, split 
up/sub division and consolidation of shares and other related formalities to the Share 
Transfer Committee. The Committee meets every fortnight to approve the share transfer 
and other related matters.

The Composition of the Share Transfer Committee is given below:

S. No. Name of Director Position Category

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Director

2 Mr. Amitava Ghosh Member Non- Executive Independent

3 Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Annual General Meeting

The details of Annual General Meetings convened during the last three years are as follows:

Details Date & Time Venue No of Special 

Resolution (s) passed

2013-14 23rd July, 2014 Surana Udyog Hall, The Federation

10.00 a.m.  of Andhra Pradesh Chambers of 

Commerce and Industry, 11-6-841 4 (Four)

Red Hills, Hyderabad-500004

2012-13 25th July, 2013 1 (One)

10.30 a.m. ------------Do-----------

2011-12  26th July,2012 NIL

10.30 a.m. ------------Do-----------

All special resolutions set out in the notices for the Annual General Meetings were passed by 
the shareholders at the respective meetings with requisite majority.

b) Extra Ordinary General Meeting

No Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders was held during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2015.

c) Postal ballot

The Company has not passed any resolution through postal ballot during the year 
under review.

DISCLOSURES

1. Related Party Transactions

The statements containing the transactions with related parties were submitted 
periodically to the Audit Committee. There were no materially significant related 
party transactions with the Company’s promoters, Directors, management or their 
relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company. There were no material individual transactions with related parties 
during the year, which were not in the normal course of business as well as not on an 
arm’s length basis. Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of 
related party transactions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions between the Company and its 

related parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Rules thereunder and the listing Agreement.

This Policy was considered and approved by the Board at its Meeting held on 
29th January, 2015. The policy has also been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.tcidevelopers.com & can be accessed at the following link : 
http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp

2. Compliance with Regulations

Your Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock 
Exchange(s) and the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on matters 
relating to Capital Markets. There were no penalties imposed or strictures 
passed against the Company by the Statutory authorities in this regard.

3. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

As stipulated by SEBI, A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out 
quarterly Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited and the total issued and listed capital. The audit 
confirmed that the total issued/ paid-up capital was in agreement with the 
aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and total number of 
dematerialized shares held in NSDL and CDSL.

4. Risk Management

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the 
Company. The assessment is periodically examined by the Audit Committee 
and the Board. 

5. Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the 
Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act,2013. 
In preparation of financial statements, no treatment different from that 
prescribed in an Accounting Standards has been followed by the Company.

6. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act,2013 and Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a Whistle-Blower 
Policy/Vigil Mechanism which provides a formal mechanism for all employees 
as well as directors of the Company & its subsidiaries and associates to report 
their genuine concerns or grievances and instances of unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or 
ethics policy and make protective disclosures to the Ombudsperson about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's 
Code of Conduct.

The disclosures reported are addressed in the manner and within the time 
frames prescribed in the Policy. The Company affirms that no 
employee/director of the Company or its subsidiaries and associates has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy is placed on the website of the Company. 

7. Code of Conduct

In compliance of the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the 
Company has revised the conduct for all Board members and senior 
management of the Company. Duties of the Independent Directors are duly 
incorporated in the said code of conduct. This Code of Conduct is duly 
posted on the website of the Company. All the Board Members and the 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the said 
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015. The 
declaration to this effect signed by Mr. D P Agarwal, Chairman of the 
Company forms part of the report.

8. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company’s Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading covers all 
the Directors, senior management personnel, persons forming part of 
promoter(s)/promotergroup(s) and such other designated employees of the 
Company, who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive 
information relating to the Company. The Directors, their relatives, senior 
management personnel, persons forming part of promoter(s)/promoter 
group(s),designated employees etc. are restricted in purchasing, selling and 
dealing in the shares of the Company while in possession of unpublished price 
sensitive information about the Company as well as during closure of Trading 
Window. All the Directors, senior management personnel, persons forming 
part of promoter(s)/ promoter group(s) and other designated employees of 
the Company are restricted from entering into opposite transaction, i.e.,buy 
or sell any number of shares during the next six months following the prior 
transaction. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25th May 2015 
approved and adopted the ‘TCI Developers Limited - Code of Conduct& Fair 
Disclosure to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders in line with 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and the same can be 
accessed at the link: http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 - 15 | 1514  | TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

• Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there 
on;

• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the 
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area 
of concern;

• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the 
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of 
declared dividends) and creditors;

• To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

• Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any 
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after 
assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Such other function, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from time to 
time or as may be stipulated under any law, rule or regulation including the Listing 
Agreement and the Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings,  Attendance and Composition

During the financial year 2014-15, the Committee met four times during the year 
under review: on May 24, 2014, July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014 and January 29, 
2015. The time gap between any two meetings was less than four months.

The composition and the attendance of members at the meetings held during the 
financial year 2014-15, are given below:

Member Director Position Category No. of  No. of
meetings meetings

held  Attended

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Chairman Independent Director 4 3

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy Member Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Ashok B. Lall Member Independent Director 4 2

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 4 4

2. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the nomenclature of this Committee 
was changed from “Shareholder/Investors Grievances Committee” to “Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee” pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The composition of the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Terms of reference

• Providing guidance and making recommendations to improve investor service 
levels for the investors;

• To assess the status of investors' complaints;

• Compliance of Listing Agreement and periodical reporting to NSDL/CDSL

• Evaluating performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent of the Company

• To review Dematerlisation Status of the Company

• Any other matter as may be deemed fit for consideration of the Committee

Meetings,  Attendance and Composition:

During the financial year 2014-2015, the Committee met four times i.e. on May 24, 2014, 
July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014, and January 29, 2015. The composition and the 
attendance of members at the meetings held during the financial year 2014-15, are given 
below:

Member Position Category No. of No. of
 Director meetings meetings
 held Attended

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 3

Mr. Chander Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter 4 4

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter 4 4

Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer
Mr. Mukesh Jain, Company Secretary has been designated as Compliance Officer of 
the Company in line with the requirement of Listing Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges and can be contacted at:
TCI House, 69 Institutional Area
Sector-32, Gurgaon-122207 Haryana
Tel 91-124-238-1603-07Fax: 91-124-238-1611
Email:  Website: www.tcidevelopers.com

During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Company has not received any investors 
complaints.
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3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the nomenclature of this Committee was 
changed from Remuneration Committee to Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement. The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are as follows:

1. Determining the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

2. Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees;

3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the 
Board their appointment & removal;

4. To ensure remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals:

5. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

6. Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

7. Any other matter as the Board may decide from time to time.

Meetings and Attendance

The Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the details of 
meetings attended by the Directors during the year are given below:

Member Director Position Category No. of  No. of
meetings meetings

held  Attended

Mr. Ashok B. Lall Chairman  Independent Director 2 1

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy Member Independent Director 2 2

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Member Independent Director 2 1

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 2 2

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement, the Board 
of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, adopted a policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel & Other Employees in their 
meeting held on January 29, 2015.

(A) Whole Time Director

The remuneration paid/payable to the Whole Time Director is in accordance with the limits 
fixed by the Board based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the shareholders and central government wherever required. 
The total remuneration comprises fixed component consisting of salary and perquisites in 
accordance with the policy of the Company. Annual increments are linked to the 
performance and are decided by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
recommended to the Board for approval thereof.

Presently, the Company does not have a scheme for grant of stock options or performance 
linked incentives for its Directors.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the Company has paid the following 
remuneration to the Whole Time Director.

(Amount in Rs.)

Name of Director Salary Perquisites Total

Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 4,503,458 21,600 4,525,058

(B) Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the 
Board and Committee meetings, plus the reimbursement directly related to the actual 
travel and out of pocket expenses if any incurred by them.  A sitting fee of Rs. 5000/- for 
attendance at each meeting of the Board and Rs.3000/- for Audit Committee is paid to 
its members excluding whole time director & those non-executive promoter directors 
who have voluntarily chosen not to take any sitting fee.

stThe amount paid/payable for the financial year ended 31  March, 2015 is summarized 
below:

S.No Name of Director Sitting fees ( Amount in Rs.)

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal NIL

2 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy 32000

3 Mr. Amitava Ghosh 24000

4 Mr. Ashok B.Lall 16000

5 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal 5000

6 Mr. Vineet Agarwal NIL

7 Mr. Chander Agarwal NIL

stDetails of shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31  March, 2015 are given 
below:

S. No Name of Director Number of Shares

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal 54154

2 Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy NIL

3 Mr. Amitava Ghosh NIL

4 Mr. Ashok B.Lall NIL

5 Mrs. Manisha Agarwal NIL

6 Mr. Vineet Agarwal 171685

7 Mr. Chander Agarwal 106451

8 Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal 127

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as 
level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding 
the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was 
carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Independent Directors’ Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a meeting of the Independent 

thDirectors of the Company was held on 25  May, 2015, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and members of the management.

All the Independent Directors were present for this meeting.

4. Share Transfer Committee

In order to provide efficient services to investors, the Board of Directors has delegated the 
power of approving transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, split 
up/sub division and consolidation of shares and other related formalities to the Share 
Transfer Committee. The Committee meets every fortnight to approve the share transfer 
and other related matters.

The Composition of the Share Transfer Committee is given below:

S. No. Name of Director Position Category

1 Mr. D.P. Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive Director

2 Mr. Amitava Ghosh Member Non- Executive Independent

3 Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Annual General Meeting

The details of Annual General Meetings convened during the last three years are as follows:

Details Date & Time Venue No of Special 

Resolution (s) passed

2013-14 23rd July, 2014 Surana Udyog Hall, The Federation

10.00 a.m.  of Andhra Pradesh Chambers of 

Commerce and Industry, 11-6-841 4 (Four)

Red Hills, Hyderabad-500004

2012-13 25th July, 2013 1 (One)

10.30 a.m. ------------Do-----------

2011-12  26th July,2012 NIL

10.30 a.m. ------------Do-----------

All special resolutions set out in the notices for the Annual General Meetings were passed by 
the shareholders at the respective meetings with requisite majority.

b) Extra Ordinary General Meeting

No Extra- Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders was held during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2015.

c) Postal ballot

The Company has not passed any resolution through postal ballot during the year 
under review.

DISCLOSURES

1. Related Party Transactions

The statements containing the transactions with related parties were submitted 
periodically to the Audit Committee. There were no materially significant related 
party transactions with the Company’s promoters, Directors, management or their 
relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company. There were no material individual transactions with related parties 
during the year, which were not in the normal course of business as well as not on an 
arm’s length basis. Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of 
related party transactions.

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions between the Company and its 

related parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Rules thereunder and the listing Agreement.

This Policy was considered and approved by the Board at its Meeting held on 
29th January, 2015. The policy has also been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.tcidevelopers.com & can be accessed at the following link : 
http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp

2. Compliance with Regulations

Your Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock 
Exchange(s) and the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on matters 
relating to Capital Markets. There were no penalties imposed or strictures 
passed against the Company by the Statutory authorities in this regard.

3. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

As stipulated by SEBI, A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out 
quarterly Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited and the total issued and listed capital. The audit 
confirmed that the total issued/ paid-up capital was in agreement with the 
aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and total number of 
dematerialized shares held in NSDL and CDSL.

4. Risk Management

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the 
Company. The assessment is periodically examined by the Audit Committee 
and the Board. 

5. Accounting Treatment

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the 
Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act,2013. 
In preparation of financial statements, no treatment different from that 
prescribed in an Accounting Standards has been followed by the Company.

6. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act,2013 and Clause 49 
of the Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a Whistle-Blower 
Policy/Vigil Mechanism which provides a formal mechanism for all employees 
as well as directors of the Company & its subsidiaries and associates to report 
their genuine concerns or grievances and instances of unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or 
ethics policy and make protective disclosures to the Ombudsperson about 
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's 
Code of Conduct.

The disclosures reported are addressed in the manner and within the time 
frames prescribed in the Policy. The Company affirms that no 
employee/director of the Company or its subsidiaries and associates has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy is placed on the website of the Company. 

7. Code of Conduct

In compliance of the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the 
Company has revised the conduct for all Board members and senior 
management of the Company. Duties of the Independent Directors are duly 
incorporated in the said code of conduct. This Code of Conduct is duly 
posted on the website of the Company. All the Board Members and the 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the said 
Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015. The 
declaration to this effect signed by Mr. D P Agarwal, Chairman of the 
Company forms part of the report.

8. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company’s Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading covers all 
the Directors, senior management personnel, persons forming part of 
promoter(s)/promotergroup(s) and such other designated employees of the 
Company, who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive 
information relating to the Company. The Directors, their relatives, senior 
management personnel, persons forming part of promoter(s)/promoter 
group(s),designated employees etc. are restricted in purchasing, selling and 
dealing in the shares of the Company while in possession of unpublished price 
sensitive information about the Company as well as during closure of Trading 
Window. All the Directors, senior management personnel, persons forming 
part of promoter(s)/ promoter group(s) and other designated employees of 
the Company are restricted from entering into opposite transaction, i.e.,buy 
or sell any number of shares during the next six months following the prior 
transaction. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25th May 2015 
approved and adopted the ‘TCI Developers Limited - Code of Conduct& Fair 
Disclosure to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders in line with 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and the same can be 
accessed at the link: http://tcidevelopers.com/policies.asp
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• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

• Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there 
on;

• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the 
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area 
of concern;

• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the 
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of 
declared dividends) and creditors;

• To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

• Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any 
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after 
assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Such other function, as may be assigned by the Board of directors from time to 
time or as may be stipulated under any law, rule or regulation including the Listing 
Agreement and the Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings,  Attendance and Composition

During the financial year 2014-15, the Committee met four times during the year 
under review: on May 24, 2014, July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014 and January 29, 
2015. The time gap between any two meetings was less than four months.

The composition and the attendance of members at the meetings held during the 
financial year 2014-15, are given below:

Member Director Position Category No. of  No. of
meetings meetings

held  Attended

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Chairman Independent Director 4 3

Mr. O Swaminatha Reddy Member Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Ashok B. Lall Member Independent Director 4 2

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Director 4 4

2. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the nomenclature of this Committee 
was changed from “Shareholder/Investors Grievances Committee” to “Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee” pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The composition of the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Terms of reference

• Providing guidance and making recommendations to improve investor service 
levels for the investors;

• To assess the status of investors' complaints;

• Compliance of Listing Agreement and periodical reporting to NSDL/CDSL

• Evaluating performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent of the Company

• To review Dematerlisation Status of the Company

• Any other matter as may be deemed fit for consideration of the Committee

Meetings,  Attendance and Composition:

During the financial year 2014-2015, the Committee met four times i.e. on May 24, 2014, 
July 23, 2014, October 31, 2014, and January 29, 2015. The composition and the 
attendance of members at the meetings held during the financial year 2014-15, are given 
below:

Member Position Category No. of No. of
 Director meetings meetings
 held Attended

Mr. Amitava Ghosh Chairman Non-Executive Independent 4 3

Mr. Chander Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter 4 4

Mr. Vineet Agarwal Member Non-Executive Promoter 4 4

Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer
Mr. Mukesh Jain, Company Secretary has been designated as Compliance Officer of 
the Company in line with the requirement of Listing Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges and can be contacted at:
TCI House, 69 Institutional Area
Sector-32, Gurgaon-122207 Haryana
Tel 91-124-238-1603-07Fax: 91-124-238-1611
Email:  Website: www.tcidevelopers.com

During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Company has not received any investors 
complaints.
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9. Non-Mandatory Requirements

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement is being reviewed by the Board from time to time.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

1. Financial Results: The quarterly, half yearly, nine-monthly and annual 
financial results are normally published in English and vernacular language 
newspaper, viz., The Hindu Business Line (All Editions) and Andhra Prabha 
(Telugu-Hyderabad edition) 

2. Website: The 'Investors' section on Company’s website provides 
comprehensive and up to date information to the shareholders on matters 
such as shareholding pattern, status of unclaimed dividend, Annual Report, 
Quarterly/Annual Financial Results along with the applicable policies of the 
Company.

3. Stock Exchange: Your Company makes timely disclosures of necessary 
information to BSE Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) in terms of the Listing Agreement(s) and other rules and 
regulations issued by SEBI. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

I. Annual General Meeting

Date Saturday, 1st August, 2015

Time 10.00 a.m.

Venue: KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of 
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of 
Commerce and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation 
House,11-6-841, FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 
500004 (Telangana)

II.  Financial Calendar

Financial Year- 1st April to 31st March

The tentative financial calendar for the ongoing financial year i.e. April 01, 2015 
to March 31, 2016 is given hereunder:

First quarter ended June 30, 2015 1st August, 2015

Second quarter and half year ended September 30, 2015 29th October, 2015

Third quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2015 28th January, 2016

Fourth quarter and year ended March 31, 2016 24th May, 2016

III. Date of Book Closure
th stThe dates of book closure shall be from 25  July 2015 to 1 August 2015 (both 

days inclusive).

IV.Dividend Payment Date

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 25th May,2015, recommended 
a fixed dividend @ 5% on 42, 30,000 Non-cumulative Non- Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, subject to the approval of the 
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the Board of 
Directors have not recommended any dividend on equity shares of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

V. Unclaimed Dividend/fractional entitlement

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, dividends/fractions 
entitlements lying unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the date of their transfer to 
unpaid/unclaimed account have to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) constituted and administrated by the Central Government. No 
claim would be lie against the IEPF or the Company after transfer. The details of 
unclaimed dividend is posted on the website of the Company.

Details of Unclaimed Dividend and due dates for transfer are as follows as on March 31, 
2015.

Month
BSE NSE

High Low Volume

(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

164.00 144.00 9053 168.50 142.00 50270

175.00 150.00 3350 184.45 149.00 11167

220.00 151.00 10848 217.95 151.50 34004

252.00 191.00 6176 248.95 186.00 3374

239.00 204.30 1627 242.75 215.00 11322

288.95 220.00 15818 288.85 222.05 20891

292.40 211.60 2833 274.95 221.10 6447

339.60 250.00 8010 359.00 252.50 14887

329.95 262.50 3706 320.00 258.00 8240

329.95 280.00 16776 329.85 280.00 7993

324.00 270.00 28138 312.00 261.00 29039

307.00 263.80 11911 338.00 270.50 25812

High Low Volume

Apr-14

May-14

Jun-14

Jul-14

Aug-14

Sep-14

Oct-14

Nov-14

Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

VIII. Market Price Data

The monthly high and low prices of the Company’s equity shares at BSE and NSE for the financial year 2014-15 are given as follows:

X. Registrar and Transfer Agents

The Members are requested to correspond to the Company’s Registrars & Share 
Transfer Agents - M/s Big Share Services Private Ltdquoting their Folio Number, Client 
ID and DP ID at the following address:

Big Share Services Private Ltd

E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate 

Saki Vihar Road, Sakinaka

Andheri(E), Mumbai-400072

Tel: 022-40430200, Fax no. 022-28475207

Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

Website: 

XI. Share Transfer System

The share transfer activities in respect of the shares in physical mode are carried out by 
the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA). The shares lodged for transfer are 
processed and share certificates duly endorsed are returned within the stipulated time, 
subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects. The requests for 
dematerialisation of shares are also processed by the R&T agent within stipulated 
period and uploaded with the concerned depositories. In terms of Clause 47(c) of the 

www.bigshareonline.com

Share 
of Nominal Value Total Holders

UP TO 500 14996 99.13 282585 7.58

501  - 1000 49 0.32 37588 1.01

1001 - 2000 35 0.23 46720 1.25

2001 - 3000 12 0.08 28886 0.77

3001 – 4000 4 0.03 14305 0.38

4001 – 5000 1 0.01 4176 0.11

5001 – 10000 6 0.04 37503 1.01

10001 AND ABOVE 25 0.17 3277668 87.89

Grand-Total 15128 100.00 3729431 100.00

Holding % of No. of Shares % of Equity
 Share Holders

No. of  

Listing Agreement, Company Secretary in practice examines the records and 
procedure of transfers and issues half yearly certificate which is being sent to the 
stock exchanges, where shares of the Company are listed.

XII. Dematerlisation of shares and liquidity

As on March 31, 2015, 93.13% of the total share capital is held in dematerialized 
form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services Limited (CDSL).

Those shareholders whose shares are held in physical form are requested to 
dematerialized the same at the earliest in their own interest. The demat security 
code (ISIN) for the equity shares is INE662L01016.

Break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 31st March, 2015:

S.No Category  of Total
Shareholders Shares Held Dematerialized Shares Held

A PROMOTERS/PROMOTERS GROUP

1 Indian

Individual 11 941229 941229 25.24

Bodies Corporate 7 1849191 1849191 49.58

Foreign 0 0 0 0

Total(A) 18 2790420 2790420 74.82

B PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

1 Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI 1 25 0 0.00

Financial Institutions / Banks 7 1031 0 0.03

Foreign Institutional Investors 4 274 0 0.01

Sub Total (B)(1) 12 1330 0 0.04

2 Non Institutions

Bodies Corporate 206 89543 87235 2.40

Individuals 14082 613875 509249 16.46

Trusts 1 50 50 0.00

Clearing Members 26 1056 1056 0.03

Non Resident Indians 642 58544 12319 1.57

Overseas Corporate Bodies 1 101548 0 2.72

HUF 140 73065 73065 1.96

Sub Total (B) (2) 15098 937681 682974 25.14

Total (B) 15110 939011 682974 25.18

Grand Total (A)+(B) 15128 3729431 3473394 100.00

Numbers Numbers of Numbers of Shares % of 

IX. Performance in comparison to broad-based Indices

The Chart below shows the comparison of your Company's share price movement on BSE vis-à-vis the movement of the BSESensex for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2015 (based on month end closing):

Note: Base 100 = April 2014
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XIII. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2015
The categories of shareholders are shown hereunder:

Financial 
fractional

entitlement as on
31st March, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

2012-13 Dividend 25th July, 2013 42,843 24th August, 2020
2011-12 Dividend 26th July,2012 44,017 25th August, 2019
2010-11 Dividend 28th July, 2011 39,837 27th August, 2018
2010-11 Fractional amount 30th May, 2011 4,45,902 29th June,  2018

Dividend/ 
Declaration Dividend/fraction transfer to IEPF
Date of Unpaid Due Date for

VI. Listing On Stock Exchange

Name of Stock Exchanges Stock Code

BSE Limited (BSE) 533393 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) TCIDEVELOP

The Company has paid the listing fees to the above Stock Exchange(s) for the financial year 
2015-16.

VII. Distribution of Shareholding 

Distribution of shareholding of shares held as on March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Source: BSE and NSE website

Note: High and low are in rupees per traded share. Volume is the total monthly volume of trade (in numbers) in the shares of the Company on BSE and NSE.

Category No of % to Total No of Shares % to Equity
shareholders holders

PHYSICAL 8270 54.67 2,56,037 6.87

NSDL 5130 33.91 33,28,755 89.26

CDSL 1728 11.42 1,44,639 3.88

Total 15128 100.00 37,29,431 100.00
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9. Non-Mandatory Requirements

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement is being reviewed by the Board from time to time.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

1. Financial Results: The quarterly, half yearly, nine-monthly and annual 
financial results are normally published in English and vernacular language 
newspaper, viz., The Hindu Business Line (All Editions) and Andhra Prabha 
(Telugu-Hyderabad edition) 

2. Website: The 'Investors' section on Company’s website provides 
comprehensive and up to date information to the shareholders on matters 
such as shareholding pattern, status of unclaimed dividend, Annual Report, 
Quarterly/Annual Financial Results along with the applicable policies of the 
Company.

3. Stock Exchange: Your Company makes timely disclosures of necessary 
information to BSE Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) in terms of the Listing Agreement(s) and other rules and 
regulations issued by SEBI. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

I. Annual General Meeting

Date Saturday, 1st August, 2015

Time 10.00 a.m.

Venue: KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of 
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of 
Commerce and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation 
House,11-6-841, FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 
500004 (Telangana)

II.  Financial Calendar

Financial Year- 1st April to 31st March

The tentative financial calendar for the ongoing financial year i.e. April 01, 2015 
to March 31, 2016 is given hereunder:

First quarter ended June 30, 2015 1st August, 2015

Second quarter and half year ended September 30, 2015 29th October, 2015

Third quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2015 28th January, 2016

Fourth quarter and year ended March 31, 2016 24th May, 2016

III. Date of Book Closure
th stThe dates of book closure shall be from 25  July 2015 to 1 August 2015 (both 

days inclusive).

IV.Dividend Payment Date

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 25th May,2015, recommended 
a fixed dividend @ 5% on 42, 30,000 Non-cumulative Non- Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each, subject to the approval of the 
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. However, the Board of 
Directors have not recommended any dividend on equity shares of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

V. Unclaimed Dividend/fractional entitlement

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, dividends/fractions 
entitlements lying unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the date of their transfer to 
unpaid/unclaimed account have to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) constituted and administrated by the Central Government. No 
claim would be lie against the IEPF or the Company after transfer. The details of 
unclaimed dividend is posted on the website of the Company.

Details of Unclaimed Dividend and due dates for transfer are as follows as on March 31, 
2015.

Month
BSE NSE

High Low Volume

(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

164.00 144.00 9053 168.50 142.00 50270

175.00 150.00 3350 184.45 149.00 11167

220.00 151.00 10848 217.95 151.50 34004

252.00 191.00 6176 248.95 186.00 3374

239.00 204.30 1627 242.75 215.00 11322

288.95 220.00 15818 288.85 222.05 20891

292.40 211.60 2833 274.95 221.10 6447

339.60 250.00 8010 359.00 252.50 14887

329.95 262.50 3706 320.00 258.00 8240

329.95 280.00 16776 329.85 280.00 7993

324.00 270.00 28138 312.00 261.00 29039

307.00 263.80 11911 338.00 270.50 25812
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VIII. Market Price Data

The monthly high and low prices of the Company’s equity shares at BSE and NSE for the financial year 2014-15 are given as follows:

X. Registrar and Transfer Agents

The Members are requested to correspond to the Company’s Registrars & Share 
Transfer Agents - M/s Big Share Services Private Ltdquoting their Folio Number, Client 
ID and DP ID at the following address:

Big Share Services Private Ltd

E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate 

Saki Vihar Road, Sakinaka

Andheri(E), Mumbai-400072

Tel: 022-40430200, Fax no. 022-28475207

Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

Website: 

XI. Share Transfer System

The share transfer activities in respect of the shares in physical mode are carried out by 
the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA). The shares lodged for transfer are 
processed and share certificates duly endorsed are returned within the stipulated time, 
subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects. The requests for 
dematerialisation of shares are also processed by the R&T agent within stipulated 
period and uploaded with the concerned depositories. In terms of Clause 47(c) of the 
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1001 - 2000 35 0.23 46720 1.25
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10001 AND ABOVE 25 0.17 3277668 87.89
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Listing Agreement, Company Secretary in practice examines the records and 
procedure of transfers and issues half yearly certificate which is being sent to the 
stock exchanges, where shares of the Company are listed.

XII. Dematerlisation of shares and liquidity

As on March 31, 2015, 93.13% of the total share capital is held in dematerialized 
form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services Limited (CDSL).

Those shareholders whose shares are held in physical form are requested to 
dematerialized the same at the earliest in their own interest. The demat security 
code (ISIN) for the equity shares is INE662L01016.

Break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 31st March, 2015:

S.No Category  of Total
Shareholders Shares Held Dematerialized Shares Held

A PROMOTERS/PROMOTERS GROUP

1 Indian

Individual 11 941229 941229 25.24

Bodies Corporate 7 1849191 1849191 49.58

Foreign 0 0 0 0

Total(A) 18 2790420 2790420 74.82

B PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

1 Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI 1 25 0 0.00

Financial Institutions / Banks 7 1031 0 0.03

Foreign Institutional Investors 4 274 0 0.01

Sub Total (B)(1) 12 1330 0 0.04

2 Non Institutions

Bodies Corporate 206 89543 87235 2.40

Individuals 14082 613875 509249 16.46

Trusts 1 50 50 0.00

Clearing Members 26 1056 1056 0.03

Non Resident Indians 642 58544 12319 1.57

Overseas Corporate Bodies 1 101548 0 2.72

HUF 140 73065 73065 1.96

Sub Total (B) (2) 15098 937681 682974 25.14

Total (B) 15110 939011 682974 25.18

Grand Total (A)+(B) 15128 3729431 3473394 100.00

Numbers Numbers of Numbers of Shares % of 

IX. Performance in comparison to broad-based Indices

The Chart below shows the comparison of your Company's share price movement on BSE vis-à-vis the movement of the BSESensex for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2015 (based on month end closing):

Note: Base 100 = April 2014
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XIII. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2015
The categories of shareholders are shown hereunder:

Financial 
fractional

entitlement as on
31st March, 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

2012-13 Dividend 25th July, 2013 42,843 24th August, 2020
2011-12 Dividend 26th July,2012 44,017 25th August, 2019
2010-11 Dividend 28th July, 2011 39,837 27th August, 2018
2010-11 Fractional amount 30th May, 2011 4,45,902 29th June,  2018

Dividend/ 
Declaration Dividend/fraction transfer to IEPF
Date of Unpaid Due Date for

VI. Listing On Stock Exchange

Name of Stock Exchanges Stock Code

BSE Limited (BSE) 533393 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) TCIDEVELOP

The Company has paid the listing fees to the above Stock Exchange(s) for the financial year 
2015-16.

VII. Distribution of Shareholding 

Distribution of shareholding of shares held as on March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Source: BSE and NSE website

Note: High and low are in rupees per traded share. Volume is the total monthly volume of trade (in numbers) in the shares of the Company on BSE and NSE.

Category No of % to Total No of Shares % to Equity
shareholders holders

PHYSICAL 8270 54.67 2,56,037 6.87

NSDL 5130 33.91 33,28,755 89.26
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Total 15128 100.00 37,29,431 100.00
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XIV. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments and their impact on equity

The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants/Convertible Instruments as on 31st March, 2015.

XV.  Plant locations

The Company is not a manufacturing unit and thus not having any Plant.

XVI. Address for Correspondence

For any queries relating to the shares of the Company, correspondence may please be addressed to M/s Big Share Services Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company 
or at the Investor Service Department at Corporate Office of the Company at below addresses:

COMPLIANCE  WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel affirmation(s) that they have complied with the Code of Conduct 
for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2015.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Gurgaon D.P. Agarwal
Date: May 25, 2015 Chairman

CEO/CFO Certification
The Board of Directors
TCI Developers Limited
Gurgaon (Haryana)

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of TCI Developers Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our 
knowledge and belief certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 and based on our knowledge and belief, we 
state that:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statements that might be misleading.

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws 
and regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal 
or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We hereby declare that all the members and senior managerial personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the financial reporting of the Company 
and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(e) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

(i) significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role 
in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place : Gurgaon Rajesh Dhyani Naresh Kumar Baranwal
Date : May 25, 2015 Dy. CFO Whole Time Director

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by TCI Developers Limited during the financial year ended 31st March 2015, in accordance with 
the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements executed by the Company with Stock Exchanges where equity shares of the Company are listed. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination has been limited to the procedures adopted by the Company 
and implementation thereof for ensuring proper compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance.  Our examination may not be construed as an audit or an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreements.

We state such compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is not an assurance on the future viability of the Company or the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
affairs of the Company have been conducted.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
Camp : Gurgaon (Proprietor)
Date   : May 25, 2015 Membership No. 022958

Auditors’ Certificate On Corporate Governance
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1. Big Share Services Pvt Ltd

Unit: TCI Developers Limited

E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Sakinaka, Andheri(E), 
Mumbai - 400072 Tel: 022-40430200, Fax no. 022-28475207

Email:  Website: www.bigshareonline.cominvestor@bigshareonline.com,

2. The Asst. Company Secretary

TCI Developers Limited

TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector-32, Gurgaon-122207

Tel 91-124-238-1603-07, Fax: 91-124-238-1611

Email:  Website: www.tcidevelopers.comsecretarial@tcidevelopers.com,

Auditors’ Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of  TCI Developers Limited

Report on the Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TCI Developers Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in 

Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation 

of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and 

auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 

the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 

preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 

Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion 

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31st March 2015, its profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 

we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order. 

8. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 

the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

e. on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 

March 31, 2015, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

(I) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact 

its financial position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material 

foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

(iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does 

not arise.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgoan
Date:    May 25, 2015
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XIV. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Convertible Instruments and their impact on equity

The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants/Convertible Instruments as on 31st March, 2015.

XV.  Plant locations

The Company is not a manufacturing unit and thus not having any Plant.

XVI. Address for Correspondence

For any queries relating to the shares of the Company, correspondence may please be addressed to M/s Big Share Services Pvt. Ltd, Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company 
or at the Investor Service Department at Corporate Office of the Company at below addresses:

COMPLIANCE  WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel affirmation(s) that they have complied with the Code of Conduct 
for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2015.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Gurgaon D.P. Agarwal
Date: May 25, 2015 Chairman

CEO/CFO Certification
The Board of Directors
TCI Developers Limited
Gurgaon (Haryana)

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of TCI Developers Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our 
knowledge and belief certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 and based on our knowledge and belief, we 
state that:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statements that might be misleading.

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws 
and regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal 
or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We hereby declare that all the members and senior managerial personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the financial reporting of the Company 
and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 
steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(e) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

(i) significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role 
in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place : Gurgaon Rajesh Dhyani Naresh Kumar Baranwal
Date : May 25, 2015 Dy. CFO Whole Time Director

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by TCI Developers Limited during the financial year ended 31st March 2015, in accordance with 
the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements executed by the Company with Stock Exchanges where equity shares of the Company are listed. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination has been limited to the procedures adopted by the Company 
and implementation thereof for ensuring proper compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance.  Our examination may not be construed as an audit or an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreements.

We state such compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is not an assurance on the future viability of the Company or the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
affairs of the Company have been conducted.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
Camp : Gurgaon (Proprietor)
Date   : May 25, 2015 Membership No. 022958
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1. Big Share Services Pvt Ltd

Unit: TCI Developers Limited

E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Sakinaka, Andheri(E), 
Mumbai - 400072 Tel: 022-40430200, Fax no. 022-28475207

Email:  Website: www.bigshareonline.cominvestor@bigshareonline.com,

2. The Asst. Company Secretary

TCI Developers Limited

TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector-32, Gurgaon-122207

Tel 91-124-238-1603-07, Fax: 91-124-238-1611

Email:  Website: www.tcidevelopers.comsecretarial@tcidevelopers.com,

Auditors’ Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of  TCI Developers Limited

Report on the Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TCI Developers Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in 

Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation 

of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and 

auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 

the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 

preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 

Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion 

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31st March 2015, its profits and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 

we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order. 

8. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 

the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

e. on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 

March 31, 2015, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us: 

(I) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact 

its financial position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material 

foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

(iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does 

not arise.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgoan
Date:    May 25, 2015
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On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the 

information and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report 

that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 

assets;

(b) As explained to us, some fixed assets have been physically verified by 

the management at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanation given us, no material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification; 

(ii) (a) The inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals 

by the management.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories 

followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 

relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. 

(iii) The company had granted unsecured interest free loans to a wholly 

owned subsidiary company as covered in the register maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years. The opening 

balance of the loan is Rs 640 lacs and the balance at the end of the 

accounting year amounts to Rs. 640 lakhs.

(a) there are no stipulation about the repayment of principal. 

(b) in our opinion the interest not charged is prima facie prejudicial to 

the interest of the company as per section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. As per the management opinion, this interest free loan 

was given for real estate development before the commencement of 

the Companies Act 2013 and the loan amount came to the company 

books as per the scheme of arrangement between the company and 

Transport Corporation of India Limited in the accounting year 

2010-11 approved by the Honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh 

vide its order dated 15-09-2010. Hence the interest need not be 

charged.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, there is adequate internal control system commensurate with the size 

of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed 

assets and for the sale of services. Further, on the basis of our examination 

of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, no major weakness has not been 

noticed or reported. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered 

under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 

Act. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on the records of the company examined by us, the company is 

generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, 

including Provident Fund, , Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 

Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and 

other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities 

in India; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on the records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of 

Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty and 

Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any 

disputes; 

(c) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of reporting delay in transferring such sums 

does not arise. 

(viii) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year under 

audit. The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year 

covered by audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the 

information and explanations given to us, the company has not availed of any 

loans from any financial institution or banks and has not issued debentures. 

(x) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by others from a bank 

or financial institution during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the company has not raised any term loans during the year. 

(xii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon 
Date: May 25, 2015   

Auditors’ Report
stAnnexure referred to in paragraph 7 Our Report of even date to the members of  TCI Developers Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31  

March, 2015 

stBalance Sheet as at 31  March 2015

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

    Share Capital 3  79,594,310  79,594,310 

    Reserves And Surplus 4  531,915,230  509,922,007 

Non-Current Liabilities

    Long Term Borrowings 5  41,540,597  30,306,412 

    Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  1,071,200  2,361,500 

    Long Term Provisions 7  372,364  210,162 

Current Liabilities

    Other Current Liabilities 8  15,813,631  23,184,464 

    Short Term Provisions 9  2,950,938  795,536 

Total  673,258,270  646,374,391 

II. ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

       Tangible Assets 10  158,399,949  149,008,613 

       Intangible Assets  20,314  40,628 

       Capital Work-In-Progress  100,770,769  98,797,084 

Non-Current Investments 11  301,855,154  301,855,154 

Long Term Loans And Advances 12  65,411,152  64,047,018 

Current Assets

Inventories 13  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Cash And Cash Equivalents 14  594,914  1,094,204 

Trade Receivables 15  901,792  65,511 

Short Term Loans And Advances 16  17,389,060  3,551,013 

Total  673,258,270  646,374,391 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 27

(Amount in `)
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On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the 

information and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report 

that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 

assets;

(b) As explained to us, some fixed assets have been physically verified by 

the management at reasonable intervals. According to the 

information and explanation given us, no material discrepancies 

were noticed on such verification; 

(ii) (a) The inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals 

by the management.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories 

followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 

relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. 

(iii) The company had granted unsecured interest free loans to a wholly 

owned subsidiary company as covered in the register maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years. The opening 

balance of the loan is Rs 640 lacs and the balance at the end of the 

accounting year amounts to Rs. 640 lakhs.

(a) there are no stipulation about the repayment of principal. 

(b) in our opinion the interest not charged is prima facie prejudicial to 

the interest of the company as per section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. As per the management opinion, this interest free loan 

was given for real estate development before the commencement of 

the Companies Act 2013 and the loan amount came to the company 

books as per the scheme of arrangement between the company and 

Transport Corporation of India Limited in the accounting year 

2010-11 approved by the Honorable High court of Andhra Pradesh 

vide its order dated 15-09-2010. Hence the interest need not be 

charged.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, there is adequate internal control system commensurate with the size 

of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed 

assets and for the sale of services. Further, on the basis of our examination 

of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, no major weakness has not been 

noticed or reported. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered 

under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed 

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 

Act. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on the records of the company examined by us, the company is 

generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, 

including Provident Fund, , Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 

Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and 

other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities 

in India; 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on the records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of 

Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty and 

Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any 

disputes; 

(c) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of reporting delay in transferring such sums 

does not arise. 

(viii) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year under 

audit. The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year 

covered by audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the 

information and explanations given to us, the company has not availed of any 

loans from any financial institution or banks and has not issued debentures. 

(x) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by others from a bank 

or financial institution during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the company has not raised any term loans during the year. 

(xii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon 
Date: May 25, 2015   

Auditors’ Report
stAnnexure referred to in paragraph 7 Our Report of even date to the members of  TCI Developers Limited on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31  

March, 2015 

stBalance Sheet as at 31  March 2015

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

    Share Capital 3  79,594,310  79,594,310 

    Reserves And Surplus 4  531,915,230  509,922,007 

Non-Current Liabilities

    Long Term Borrowings 5  41,540,597  30,306,412 

    Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  1,071,200  2,361,500 

    Long Term Provisions 7  372,364  210,162 

Current Liabilities

    Other Current Liabilities 8  15,813,631  23,184,464 

    Short Term Provisions 9  2,950,938  795,536 

Total  673,258,270  646,374,391 

II. ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

       Tangible Assets 10  158,399,949  149,008,613 

       Intangible Assets  20,314  40,628 

       Capital Work-In-Progress  100,770,769  98,797,084 

Non-Current Investments 11  301,855,154  301,855,154 

Long Term Loans And Advances 12  65,411,152  64,047,018 

Current Assets

Inventories 13  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Cash And Cash Equivalents 14  594,914  1,094,204 

Trade Receivables 15  901,792  65,511 

Short Term Loans And Advances 16  17,389,060  3,551,013 

Total  673,258,270  646,374,391 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 27
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stStatement of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended 31  March 2015

Particulars Note No 2014-15 2013-14

Revenue:

Revenue from Operations

- Rental Income  11,739,900  10,540,284 

- Project Management Services  2,594,000  1,946,000 

Other Income 17  27,447,250  11,950,921 

Total Revenue  41,781,150  24,437,205 

Expenses:

Operating Expenses 18  -    1,103,344 

(Increase) / decrease in Inventories 19  -    (1,103,344)

Employee Benefits Expense 20  12,257,746  11,128,790 

Financial Cost (Interest Expense)  126,474  135,365 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 10  1,199,007  830,426 

Other Expenses 21  5,039,606  10,005,341 

Total Expenses  18,622,833  22,099,922 

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Exceptional Items  -    - 

Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Profit Before Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Tax Expense:

Current tax  -    -   

Taxes for earlier years  (114,073)  -   

Deferred tax  (1,290,300)  (2,965,300)

Profit for the Year  24,562,690  5,302,583 

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic  5.91  1.42 

(2) Diluted  5.91  1.42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 27

(Amount in `)
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stCash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015 (Amount in `)

PARTICULARS 2014-15 2013-14
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit (Loss) before Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283
Adjustments for Non-Operating Activities:
Depreciation  1,199,007  830,426 
Share of Loss (Profit) in partnership Firms  (27,446,182)  (11,918,797)
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets  -    4,087,395 
Interest paid  126,474  135,365 
Interest Received  (1,068)  (32,124)

 (26,121,769)  (6,897,735)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (2,963,452) (4,560,452)
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Inventories  -   (1,103,344)
Trade Receivables  (836,281) (65,511)
Long Term Loans and Advances  (1,364,134) (2,018)
Short Term Loans and Advances  (458,349) (22,104)
Long Term Provisions  162,202 73,402 
Payable to Partnership Firms  (6,234,826) 3,829,504 
Other Current Liabilities  (1,538,728)  3,454,096 
Short Term Provisions  114,526  158,319 
Cash Generation From Operations  (13,119,042)  1,761,892 
Direct Taxes (Net)  (1,101,322) (1,362,027)
Net Cash from Operating Activities  (14,220,364)  399,865

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress)  (12,575,305)  (22,925,964)
Transfer of Fixed Assets to Inventories  -    903,344 
Sale of Fixed Assets  -    89,489 
Investments made in Subsidiary Companies  -    (3,000,000)
Loans and Advances (given to)/ received from:

- Subsidiary Companies  -    6,421,020 
- Partnership Firms  (12,661,303)  -   

Share of (Loss) Profit in Partnership Firms  27,446,182  11,918,797 
Interest Received  1,068  32,124 
Net Cash from Investing Activities 2,210,642 (6,561,190)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid  (126,474)  (135,365)
Dividend Paid  -    (3,782,702)
Dividend Tax paid  -    (642,870)
Repayment of Long Term Secured Loans  (647,946)  (445,450)
Long Term Borrowings from Directors  11,950,000  9,400,000 
Proceeds from Long Term Secured Loans  -    1,351,862 
Proceeds from Long Term Secured Loans (Current Maturity)  -    648,138 
Net Cash from Financing Activities  11,175,580 6,393,613 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)  (834,142) 232,288 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Opening) 1,094,204 861,916 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Closing)  260,062 1,094,204 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts -    520,125
Cash on Hand  22,305  877 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 
     Against Unpaid Dividend 126,707  126,542 
     Against Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Book Overdraft Balance (334,852)  -   

 260,062  1,094,204
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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stStatement of Profit And Loss For The Year Ended 31  March 2015

Particulars Note No 2014-15 2013-14

Revenue:

Revenue from Operations

- Rental Income  11,739,900  10,540,284 

- Project Management Services  2,594,000  1,946,000 

Other Income 17  27,447,250  11,950,921 

Total Revenue  41,781,150  24,437,205 

Expenses:

Operating Expenses 18  -    1,103,344 

(Increase) / decrease in Inventories 19  -    (1,103,344)

Employee Benefits Expense 20  12,257,746  11,128,790 

Financial Cost (Interest Expense)  126,474  135,365 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 10  1,199,007  830,426 

Other Expenses 21  5,039,606  10,005,341 

Total Expenses  18,622,833  22,099,922 

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Exceptional Items  -    - 

Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Profit Before Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283 

Tax Expense:

Current tax  -    -   

Taxes for earlier years  (114,073)  -   

Deferred tax  (1,290,300)  (2,965,300)

Profit for the Year  24,562,690  5,302,583 

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic  5.91  1.42 

(2) Diluted  5.91  1.42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 27

(Amount in `)
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stCash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015 (Amount in `)

PARTICULARS 2014-15 2013-14
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit (Loss) before Tax  23,158,317  2,337,283
Adjustments for Non-Operating Activities:
Depreciation  1,199,007  830,426 
Share of Loss (Profit) in partnership Firms  (27,446,182)  (11,918,797)
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets  -    4,087,395 
Interest paid  126,474  135,365 
Interest Received  (1,068)  (32,124)

 (26,121,769)  (6,897,735)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  (2,963,452) (4,560,452)
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Inventories  -   (1,103,344)
Trade Receivables  (836,281) (65,511)
Long Term Loans and Advances  (1,364,134) (2,018)
Short Term Loans and Advances  (458,349) (22,104)
Long Term Provisions  162,202 73,402 
Payable to Partnership Firms  (6,234,826) 3,829,504 
Other Current Liabilities  (1,538,728)  3,454,096 
Short Term Provisions  114,526  158,319 
Cash Generation From Operations  (13,119,042)  1,761,892 
Direct Taxes (Net)  (1,101,322) (1,362,027)
Net Cash from Operating Activities  (14,220,364)  399,865

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress)  (12,575,305)  (22,925,964)
Transfer of Fixed Assets to Inventories  -    903,344 
Sale of Fixed Assets  -    89,489 
Investments made in Subsidiary Companies  -    (3,000,000)
Loans and Advances (given to)/ received from:

- Subsidiary Companies  -    6,421,020 
- Partnership Firms  (12,661,303)  -   

Share of (Loss) Profit in Partnership Firms  27,446,182  11,918,797 
Interest Received  1,068  32,124 
Net Cash from Investing Activities 2,210,642 (6,561,190)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid  (126,474)  (135,365)
Dividend Paid  -    (3,782,702)
Dividend Tax paid  -    (642,870)
Repayment of Long Term Secured Loans  (647,946)  (445,450)
Long Term Borrowings from Directors  11,950,000  9,400,000 
Proceeds from Long Term Secured Loans  -    1,351,862 
Proceeds from Long Term Secured Loans (Current Maturity)  -    648,138 
Net Cash from Financing Activities  11,175,580 6,393,613 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)  (834,142) 232,288 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Opening) 1,094,204 861,916 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Closing)  260,062 1,094,204 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts -    520,125
Cash on Hand  22,305  877 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 
     Against Unpaid Dividend 126,707  126,542 
     Against Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Book Overdraft Balance (334,852)  -   

 260,062  1,094,204
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015
1. Background

TCI Developers Limited (“the Company”) is a Company registered under the 
thCompanies Act, 1956. It was incorporated on 14  May, 2008 as a real estate arm of 

TCI Group. The company is engaged in the business of Real estate and Warehousing 
development activities. 

The Real Estate and Warehousing division of Transport Corporation of India Ltd. 
ststood transferred to the Company effective from 1  April 2010 in terms of the Scheme 

of Arrangement between the Company and Transport Corporation of India Ltd. as 
thapproved vide order dated 15  September 2010 of The Hon'ble Andhra Pradesh High 

Court. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) All revenues and expenditures are generally accounted on accrual basis as 
they are earned or incurred. The accounts are prepared on historical cost 
basis, as a going concern and are consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles.

(b) Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of fixed 
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. 
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of 
such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment.

(c) Depreciation and amortization: 

Tangible Assets:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method 
over the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a 
period is proportionately charged.

Intangible assets:

These are amortized as under:

Particular Amortization

Computer Software Over a period of 6 years

(d) Investments are stated at cost. Investments intended to be held for more than a 
year are classified as long term investments. Long term investments are stated 
individually at cost less provision for diminution in value, if such diminution is 
other than temporary.

(e) Inventory comprises Buildings under work in progress

I. Work-in-progress - Buildings under work in progress represents cost 
incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate development projects 
or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. 
Buildings shown as work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value on FIFO Basis.

(f) The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any 
indication that any asset may be impaired and if such indication exists, the 
carrying value of such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and a provision 
is made for such impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Employees Benefits: The Company has not created any gratuity fund or any 
other funds. However adequate provisions have been made in the accounts for 
gratuity liability.

(h) Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes.  Provision for 
current income tax is made on the current tax rates based on assessable income. 
The company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing 
differences resulting from the recognition of items in the accounts and in 
estimating its current tax provision.  The effect on deferred taxes of a change in 
tax rate is recognized in the year in which the change is effected.

(i) Lease: Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets acquired are 
capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments 
under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in the 
statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

3.    Share Capital As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
 Number  Rupees Number  Rupees
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  7,000,000  70,000,000  7,000,000  70,000,000 
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

Total  7,959,431  79,594,310  7,959,431  79,594,310 
(a) (i) Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431 37,294,310 
     (ii) Reconciliation of Preference Shares Outstanding
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Shares Issued during the year  -    - - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -   
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of 
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Terms of Conversion/ redemption of Preference Shares

The 5% Preference Shares allotted by the company are Non-Convertiable Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable in a term not 
exceeding 20 years from the date of allotment and on such terms and conditions and in such manner as the Board may, deem fit.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Shares in the company

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder 

 No. of % of No. of % of 

Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  798,489 21.41%  798,489 21.41%

Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  557,910 14.96%  557,910 14.96%

D.P. Agarwal- TCI Trading  248,749 6.67%  248,749 6.67%

TCI India Ltd.  211,548 5.67%  211,548 5.67%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
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(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Preference Shares in the company

Name of Shareholder 

 No. of % of No. of % of 
Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Smt Urmila Agarwal  2,000,000 47.28%  2,000,000 47.28%
Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  850,000 20.09%  850,000 20.09%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  600,000 14.18%  600,000 14.18%
TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  300,000 7.09%  300,000 7.09%
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  280,000 6.62%  280,000 6.62%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

(e) Details of Shares allotted since incorporation of the Company, other than in cash:

Name of Shareholder Year (Aggregate No. of Shares)

 2008-09 Aggregate till
 (year of incorporation) 2010-11 31 March 2015 

Nos. Nos. Nos.
Equity Shares :
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash  -    3,629,431  3,629,431

4.  Reserves & Surplus As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

 Rupees  Rupees

Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 484,841,685 484,841,685 
(+) Additions - -   
(-) Deductions - -   
Closing Balance 484,841,685 484,841,685
Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance 25,080,322 19,777,739
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 24,562,690 5,302,583 
(-) Adjustment against Accumulated Depreciation (31,591)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares  (2,115,000) -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - -
(-) Tax on Dividends (422,876) -
Closing Balance 47,073,545 25,080,322

Total  531,915,230 509,922,007

5. Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term Loan from a Bank 190,597 906,412   

(Secured against cars purchased at Interest @10.00% p.a., payable in 36 equal monthly installments w.e.f. June 2013)
Unsecured 
Loans From Directors 41,350,000  29,400,000

(unsecured interest free loans taken from directors without any stipulation as to dates of repayment)
Total  41,540,597  30,306,412

6.  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
(Impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting)
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
Deferred Tax Assets  (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
(Impact of expenditures charged to the statements of profit and loss but allowable for tax purpose on payment basis)
Gross Deferred Tax Assets  (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,071,200  2,361,500

7. Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity & Other Funds 372,364  210,162

Total 372,364  210,162

8. Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturity of Long Term Debts 716,007  648,138 
Payable to Partnership Firms 7,711,709  13,946,535 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party 3,652,000  3,652,000 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Others 300,000  -   
Book Overdraft Balance 334,852  -   
Sundry Creditors 825,901  2,675,895 
Retention Money 879,286  816,181 
Unpaid Dividends 126,707  126,542 
Unpaid Fractional Share Entitlements 445,902  446,660 
Withholding and Other Taxes Payable 398,117  450,672 
Other Liabilities 423,150  421,841 

Total  15,813,631  23,184,464 
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stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015
1. Background

TCI Developers Limited (“the Company”) is a Company registered under the 
thCompanies Act, 1956. It was incorporated on 14  May, 2008 as a real estate arm of 

TCI Group. The company is engaged in the business of Real estate and Warehousing 
development activities. 

The Real Estate and Warehousing division of Transport Corporation of India Ltd. 
ststood transferred to the Company effective from 1  April 2010 in terms of the Scheme 

of Arrangement between the Company and Transport Corporation of India Ltd. as 
thapproved vide order dated 15  September 2010 of The Hon'ble Andhra Pradesh High 

Court. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) All revenues and expenditures are generally accounted on accrual basis as 
they are earned or incurred. The accounts are prepared on historical cost 
basis, as a going concern and are consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles.

(b) Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of fixed 
assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. 
Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of 
such assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment.

(c) Depreciation and amortization: 

Tangible Assets:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method 
over the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Companies Act 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a 
period is proportionately charged.

Intangible assets:

These are amortized as under:

Particular Amortization

Computer Software Over a period of 6 years

(d) Investments are stated at cost. Investments intended to be held for more than a 
year are classified as long term investments. Long term investments are stated 
individually at cost less provision for diminution in value, if such diminution is 
other than temporary.

(e) Inventory comprises Buildings under work in progress

I. Work-in-progress - Buildings under work in progress represents cost 
incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate development projects 
or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. 
Buildings shown as work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value on FIFO Basis.

(f) The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any 
indication that any asset may be impaired and if such indication exists, the 
carrying value of such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and a provision 
is made for such impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Employees Benefits: The Company has not created any gratuity fund or any 
other funds. However adequate provisions have been made in the accounts for 
gratuity liability.

(h) Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes.  Provision for 
current income tax is made on the current tax rates based on assessable income. 
The company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing 
differences resulting from the recognition of items in the accounts and in 
estimating its current tax provision.  The effect on deferred taxes of a change in 
tax rate is recognized in the year in which the change is effected.

(i) Lease: Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets acquired are 
capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments 
under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis in the 
statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

3.    Share Capital As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
 Number  Rupees Number  Rupees
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  7,000,000  70,000,000  7,000,000  70,000,000 
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

Total  7,959,431  79,594,310  7,959,431  79,594,310 
(a) (i) Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431 37,294,310 
     (ii) Reconciliation of Preference Shares Outstanding
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Shares Issued during the year  -    - - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -   
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of 
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Terms of Conversion/ redemption of Preference Shares

The 5% Preference Shares allotted by the company are Non-Convertiable Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable in a term not 
exceeding 20 years from the date of allotment and on such terms and conditions and in such manner as the Board may, deem fit.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Shares in the company

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder 

 No. of % of No. of % of 

Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  798,489 21.41%  798,489 21.41%

Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  557,910 14.96%  557,910 14.96%

D.P. Agarwal- TCI Trading  248,749 6.67%  248,749 6.67%

TCI India Ltd.  211,548 5.67%  211,548 5.67%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
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(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Preference Shares in the company

Name of Shareholder 

 No. of % of No. of % of 
Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Smt Urmila Agarwal  2,000,000 47.28%  2,000,000 47.28%
Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  850,000 20.09%  850,000 20.09%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  600,000 14.18%  600,000 14.18%
TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  300,000 7.09%  300,000 7.09%
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  280,000 6.62%  280,000 6.62%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

(e) Details of Shares allotted since incorporation of the Company, other than in cash:

Name of Shareholder Year (Aggregate No. of Shares)

 2008-09 Aggregate till
 (year of incorporation) 2010-11 31 March 2015 

Nos. Nos. Nos.
Equity Shares :
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash  -    3,629,431  3,629,431

4.  Reserves & Surplus As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

 Rupees  Rupees

Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 484,841,685 484,841,685 
(+) Additions - -   
(-) Deductions - -   
Closing Balance 484,841,685 484,841,685
Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance 25,080,322 19,777,739
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 24,562,690 5,302,583 
(-) Adjustment against Accumulated Depreciation (31,591)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares  (2,115,000) -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares - -
(-) Tax on Dividends (422,876) -
Closing Balance 47,073,545 25,080,322

Total  531,915,230 509,922,007

5. Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term Loan from a Bank 190,597 906,412   

(Secured against cars purchased at Interest @10.00% p.a., payable in 36 equal monthly installments w.e.f. June 2013)
Unsecured 
Loans From Directors 41,350,000  29,400,000

(unsecured interest free loans taken from directors without any stipulation as to dates of repayment)
Total  41,540,597  30,306,412

6.  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
(Impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting)
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
Deferred Tax Assets  (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
(Impact of expenditures charged to the statements of profit and loss but allowable for tax purpose on payment basis)
Gross Deferred Tax Assets  (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,071,200  2,361,500

7. Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity & Other Funds 372,364  210,162

Total 372,364  210,162

8. Other Current Liabilities
Current Maturity of Long Term Debts 716,007  648,138 
Payable to Partnership Firms 7,711,709  13,946,535 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party 3,652,000  3,652,000 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Others 300,000  -   
Book Overdraft Balance 334,852  -   
Sundry Creditors 825,901  2,675,895 
Retention Money 879,286  816,181 
Unpaid Dividends 126,707  126,542 
Unpaid Fractional Share Entitlements 445,902  446,660 
Withholding and Other Taxes Payable 398,117  450,672 
Other Liabilities 423,150  421,841 

Total  15,813,631  23,184,464 
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As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

9. Short Term Provisions Rupees  Rupees

Provision for Employee Benefits
Unavailed Leave 413,062 298,536 

Others
Proposed Dividend 2,115,000  -
Tax on Dividend 422,876  -
Taxation (net of payments)  -    497,000

Total 2,950,938  795,536

11. Non-current Investments

Trade Investments
Unquoted:
Investments in fully paid Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Companies
TCI Infrastructure Ltd.  48,000,000  48,000,000
4,800,000 (Previous year 4,800,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
TCI Properties (West) Ltd.  26,210,000  26,210,000
2,621,000 (Previous year 2,621,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.
200,000 (Previous year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  2,000,000  2,000,000
Investments in fully paid Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.
697,000 (Previous year 697,000) 5% Non Convertible non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 69,700,000  69,700,000
290,000 (Previous year 290,000) 5% Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 29,000,000  29,000,000

Investments in Partnership Firms (a) 126,945,154  126,945,154
Total 301,855,154  301,855,154

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 301,855,154  301,855,154

Rupees  Rupees

(a) Details of Investment in Partnership firms
TCI Developers TCI Infrastructure TCI Properties 

Capital Contributions  Ltd.  Ltd. (West) Ltd. Total
TCI Properties (Guj)  14,100,952  1,000  1,000  14,102,952 

99.986% 0.007% 0.007% 100.000%

TCI Properties (NCR)  22,019,560  1,000  1,000  22,021,560 

99.991% 0.005% 0.005% 100.000%

TCI Properties (Delhi)  47,316,029  2,500  2,500  47,321,029 

99.989% 0.005% 0.005% 100.000%

TCI Properties (South)  17,304,883  1,000  1,000  17,306,883 

99.988% 0.006% 0.006% 100.000%

TCI Warehousing (MH)  26,203,730  1,000  1,000  26,205,730 

99.992% 0.004% 0.004% 100.000%

Total  126,945,154  6,500  6,500  126,958,154 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.201412. Long-term Loans and Advances
Rupees Rupees

Loans and Advances to Subsidiary Company

         Unsecured, considered good  64,045,000 64,045,000

Capital Advances 1,366,152 2,018
Total  65,411,152  64,047,018 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 - 15 | 2726  | TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

13. Inventories

Rupees Rupees
Buildings under work in progress (at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets*  2,098,855  2,098,855 
Construction Costs  25,816,311  25,816,311 

Total  27,915,166  27,915,166

* Being Land & Building at Pune, transferred from Fixed Assets to Stock in trade to date. A housing project has been developed on the property and the relevant income will be 
accounted for at the time of its sale.

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts -  520,125

Cash on Hand  22,305  877

Earmarked Balances with Banks: 

Against Unpaid Dividend 126,707  126,542 

Against Fractional Share Entitlements 445,902  446,660 
Total 594,914  1,094,204

15. Trade Receivables
Unsecured
a) Overdue for more than six months

     Considered good  -    65,511

b) Others: Considered good  901,792  -
Total  901,792  65,511

16. Short-term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good

Loans and advances to related parties

 Due from Firms in which Company and its Subsidiary   Companies are Partners 12,661,303  -

Tax Deducted at Source  3,645,121  3,129,726

Balances with Service Tax and Income Tax Authorities  394,825  46,133

Other Advances  687,811  375,154
Total 17,389,060 3,551,013

17. Other Income 2014-15 2013-14

Profit From Partnership Firms
TCI Properties (Guj) 16,609,517  2,333,511
TCI Properties (NCR)  1,175,788  976,438
TCI Properties (South)  1,932,305  1,566,416
TCI Properties (Delhi)  7,232,450  6,425,434
TCI Warehousing (MH)  496,122  616,998

Interest Income  1,068  32,124
Total  27,447,250  11,950,921

18. Operating Expenses 
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets - 903,344
Construction Costs - 200,000

Total - 1,103,344

19. (Increase) / decrease in Inventories

Opening Work in Progress  27,915,166  26,811,822
Closing Work in Progress  27,915,166  27,915,166

Total  -    (1,103,344)

20. Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and Incentives 11,881,550  10,961,034 
Gratuity  159,692  73,402 
Staff Welfare Expenses  216,504  94,354 

Total 12,257,746  11,128,790 

21. Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes  489,161  424,588
Rent  132,000  132,000
Electricity  11,830  41,660
Telephone Expenses 14,750  14,145
Printing and Stationery 210,911  153,906
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 1,587,294  2,072,418
Postage Expenses 350,592 220,601
Advertisement Expenses 162,726  157,084
Building Maintenance Expenses  523,145  175,388
Car Maintenance Expenses  215,737  166,675
Computer Maintenance Expenses  23,263  29,213
Consultancy and Professional Charges  150,987  1,272,942
Loss on Sale of Assets (refer note no 24)  -    4,087,395
Office Maintenance Expenses 646,018  731,015
Subscription 318,771  117,460
Miscellaneous Expenses  70,903  92,952
Directors Fees  86,518  80,899
Remuneration To Auditors

Audit Fees  35,000 30,000
Tax Audit Fees  10,000  5,000

Total 5,039,606  10,005,341

stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015

(Figures in `)

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

12. Fixed Assets

Description of Assets AT COST             DEPRECIATION

As at Additions Deduction Upto For Adjusted Adjustment

01.04.2014 during during Balances 31.03.2014 the year Retained on Total 31 March 31 March
the year the year Earning deductions 2015 2014

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

   Land*  572,256,752  11,658,788  2,678,800  581,236,740  -    1,198,080  -    -    1,198,080  580,038,660  572,256,752 

   Buildings              53,255,214  253,962,394  -    307,217,608  9,642,723  10,269,706  -    -    19,912,429  287,305,179  43,612,491 

   Motor Cars  2,548,821  -    -    2,548,821  221,960  387,810  -    -    609,770  1,939,051  2,326,861 

   Computers  93,406  -    -    93,406  57,145  -    31,591  -    88,736  4,670  36,261 

   Furniture & Fittings  261,277  -    -    261,277  65,692  32,599  -    -    98,291  162,986  195,585 

   Electrical Installation & Equipments  656,276  11,031,345  -    11,687,621  124,691  1,191,733  -    -    1,316,424  10,371,197  531,585 

   Telephone Eqipments  66,101  -    -    66,101  10,378  52,418  -    -    62,796  3,305  55,723 

   Office Equipments  36,286  -    -    36,286  6,896  27,575  -    -    34,471  1,815  29,390 

   Plant & Machinery  -    21,306,956  -    21,306,956  -    1,420,464  -    -    1,420,464  19,886,492  -   

 B) Intangible Assets 

   Computer Software  85,000  -    -    85,000  44,372  20,314  -    -    64,686  20,314  40,628 

 C) Capital Work-in-Progress: 

    Building under construction  360,185,637  2,719,970  262,054,838  100,850,769  -    -    -    -    -    100,850,769  360,185,637 

 TOTAL  989,444,770  300,679,453  264,733,638  1,025,390,585  10,173,857  14,600,699  31,591  -    23,786,513  1,000,584,438  979,270,913 

 Previous Year  753,522,731  241,002,267  5,080,228  989,444,770  7,857,228  2,316,629  -    - 10,173,857 979,270,913 745,665,503 
* includes Leasehold land
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As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

9. Short Term Provisions Rupees  Rupees

Provision for Employee Benefits
Unavailed Leave 413,062 298,536 

Others
Proposed Dividend 2,115,000  -
Tax on Dividend 422,876  -
Taxation (net of payments)  -    497,000

Total 2,950,938  795,536

11. Non-current Investments

Trade Investments
Unquoted:
Investments in fully paid Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Companies
TCI Infrastructure Ltd.  48,000,000  48,000,000
4,800,000 (Previous year 4,800,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
TCI Properties (West) Ltd.  26,210,000  26,210,000
2,621,000 (Previous year 2,621,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.
200,000 (Previous year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  2,000,000  2,000,000
Investments in fully paid Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.
697,000 (Previous year 697,000) 5% Non Convertible non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 69,700,000  69,700,000
290,000 (Previous year 290,000) 5% Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 29,000,000  29,000,000

Investments in Partnership Firms (a) 126,945,154  126,945,154
Total 301,855,154  301,855,154

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 301,855,154  301,855,154

Rupees  Rupees

(a) Details of Investment in Partnership firms
TCI Developers TCI Infrastructure TCI Properties 

Capital Contributions  Ltd.  Ltd. (West) Ltd. Total
TCI Properties (Guj)  14,100,952  1,000  1,000  14,102,952 

99.986% 0.007% 0.007% 100.000%

TCI Properties (NCR)  22,019,560  1,000  1,000  22,021,560 

99.991% 0.005% 0.005% 100.000%

TCI Properties (Delhi)  47,316,029  2,500  2,500  47,321,029 

99.989% 0.005% 0.005% 100.000%

TCI Properties (South)  17,304,883  1,000  1,000  17,306,883 

99.988% 0.006% 0.006% 100.000%

TCI Warehousing (MH)  26,203,730  1,000  1,000  26,205,730 

99.992% 0.004% 0.004% 100.000%

Total  126,945,154  6,500  6,500  126,958,154 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.201412. Long-term Loans and Advances
Rupees Rupees

Loans and Advances to Subsidiary Company

         Unsecured, considered good  64,045,000 64,045,000

Capital Advances 1,366,152 2,018
Total  65,411,152  64,047,018 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
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13. Inventories

Rupees Rupees
Buildings under work in progress (at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets*  2,098,855  2,098,855 
Construction Costs  25,816,311  25,816,311 

Total  27,915,166  27,915,166

* Being Land & Building at Pune, transferred from Fixed Assets to Stock in trade to date. A housing project has been developed on the property and the relevant income will be 
accounted for at the time of its sale.

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts -  520,125

Cash on Hand  22,305  877

Earmarked Balances with Banks: 

Against Unpaid Dividend 126,707  126,542 

Against Fractional Share Entitlements 445,902  446,660 
Total 594,914  1,094,204

15. Trade Receivables
Unsecured
a) Overdue for more than six months

     Considered good  -    65,511

b) Others: Considered good  901,792  -
Total  901,792  65,511

16. Short-term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good

Loans and advances to related parties

 Due from Firms in which Company and its Subsidiary   Companies are Partners 12,661,303  -

Tax Deducted at Source  3,645,121  3,129,726

Balances with Service Tax and Income Tax Authorities  394,825  46,133

Other Advances  687,811  375,154
Total 17,389,060 3,551,013

17. Other Income 2014-15 2013-14

Profit From Partnership Firms
TCI Properties (Guj) 16,609,517  2,333,511
TCI Properties (NCR)  1,175,788  976,438
TCI Properties (South)  1,932,305  1,566,416
TCI Properties (Delhi)  7,232,450  6,425,434
TCI Warehousing (MH)  496,122  616,998

Interest Income  1,068  32,124
Total  27,447,250  11,950,921

18. Operating Expenses 
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets - 903,344
Construction Costs - 200,000

Total - 1,103,344

19. (Increase) / decrease in Inventories

Opening Work in Progress  27,915,166  26,811,822
Closing Work in Progress  27,915,166  27,915,166

Total  -    (1,103,344)

20. Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and Incentives 11,881,550  10,961,034 
Gratuity  159,692  73,402 
Staff Welfare Expenses  216,504  94,354 

Total 12,257,746  11,128,790 

21. Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes  489,161  424,588
Rent  132,000  132,000
Electricity  11,830  41,660
Telephone Expenses 14,750  14,145
Printing and Stationery 210,911  153,906
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 1,587,294  2,072,418
Postage Expenses 350,592 220,601
Advertisement Expenses 162,726  157,084
Building Maintenance Expenses  523,145  175,388
Car Maintenance Expenses  215,737  166,675
Computer Maintenance Expenses  23,263  29,213
Consultancy and Professional Charges  150,987  1,272,942
Loss on Sale of Assets (refer note no 24)  -    4,087,395
Office Maintenance Expenses 646,018  731,015
Subscription 318,771  117,460
Miscellaneous Expenses  70,903  92,952
Directors Fees  86,518  80,899
Remuneration To Auditors

Audit Fees  35,000 30,000
Tax Audit Fees  10,000  5,000

Total 5,039,606  10,005,341

stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015

(Figures in `)

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

12. Fixed Assets

Description of Assets AT COST             DEPRECIATION

As at Additions Deduction Upto For Adjusted Adjustment

01.04.2014 during during Balances 31.03.2014 the year Retained on Total 31 March 31 March
the year the year Earning deductions 2015 2014

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

   Land*  572,256,752  11,658,788  2,678,800  581,236,740  -    1,198,080  -    -    1,198,080  580,038,660  572,256,752 

   Buildings              53,255,214  253,962,394  -    307,217,608  9,642,723  10,269,706  -    -    19,912,429  287,305,179  43,612,491 

   Motor Cars  2,548,821  -    -    2,548,821  221,960  387,810  -    -    609,770  1,939,051  2,326,861 

   Computers  93,406  -    -    93,406  57,145  -    31,591  -    88,736  4,670  36,261 

   Furniture & Fittings  261,277  -    -    261,277  65,692  32,599  -    -    98,291  162,986  195,585 

   Electrical Installation & Equipments  656,276  11,031,345  -    11,687,621  124,691  1,191,733  -    -    1,316,424  10,371,197  531,585 

   Telephone Eqipments  66,101  -    -    66,101  10,378  52,418  -    -    62,796  3,305  55,723 

   Office Equipments  36,286  -    -    36,286  6,896  27,575  -    -    34,471  1,815  29,390 

   Plant & Machinery  -    21,306,956  -    21,306,956  -    1,420,464  -    -    1,420,464  19,886,492  -   

 B) Intangible Assets 

   Computer Software  85,000  -    -    85,000  44,372  20,314  -    -    64,686  20,314  40,628 

 C) Capital Work-in-Progress: 

    Building under construction  360,185,637  2,719,970  262,054,838  100,850,769  -    -    -    -    -    100,850,769  360,185,637 

 TOTAL  989,444,770  300,679,453  264,733,638  1,025,390,585  10,173,857  14,600,699  31,591  -    23,786,513  1,000,584,438  979,270,913 

 Previous Year  753,522,731  241,002,267  5,080,228  989,444,770  7,857,228  2,316,629  -    - 10,173,857 979,270,913 745,665,503 
* includes Leasehold land
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stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015
22. Related party transactions

a. List of Related Parties:
I. Associates:

• Transport Corporation of India Ltd. • TCI Global Logistics Ltd. • Bhoruka International Pvt. Ltd.
• Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd. • XPS Cargo Services Ltd.
Partnership Firms :
• TCI Properties – (Guj) • TCI Properties – (South) • TCI Warehousing – (MH)
• TCI Properties – (Delhi) • TCI Properties – (NCR) 

ii. Subsidiaries:
• TCI Infrastructure Ltd.  • TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. • TCI Properties (West) Ltd.

iii. Key Management Personnel
• Mr. D P Agarwal • Mr. N K Baranwal • Mr. Vineet Agarwal
• Mr. Mukesh Jain • Mr. Chander Agarwal • Mr. Rajesh Dhyani 

iv. Other Related Parties
• Mrs. Urmila Agarwal

b. Transactions with Related parties:
Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Amount (Rupees) 

2014-15  2013-14
Transactions During the year:
Income:
Rent Received Associates 11,739,900 10,540,284
Project Management Services Associates 2,094,000 346,000
Share in Profit Received Associates 27,446,182 11,918,797
Expense:
Rent Expense Associates 132,000 132,000
Remuneration Key Management Personnel 5,705,155 3,966,593
Finance & Investments:
Loan Given Subsidiary --- 17,914,560
Refund of Loan Given Subsidiary --- 24,335,580
Investment – Allotment of Share against Share Application Money Subsidiary — 3,000,000
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel  11,950,000 9, 400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates --- 415,716
Withdrawal from Partnership Firms Associates 8,550,054 15,748,301
Balances as at the end of Year 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Assets
Investments Made Associates 126,945,154 126,945,154

Subsidiaries 174,910,000 174,910,000
Trade receivables Associates 389,993 65,511
Loan & Advances Given Subsidiary 64,045,000 64,045,000
Receivable from Partnership Firms Associates 12,661,303 ---
Liabilities
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 41,350,000 29,400,000
Payable to Partnership Firms Associates 7,711,709 13,946,535
Security Deposits Taken Associates 3,652,000 3,652,000
23. In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, 

would not be less than the amount at which the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.
24. During the year 2013-14, the company had received Rs 89,489/- from the Government Authorities towards compensation against part of a land acquired for highway road 

widening, the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 4,176,884/-. The resultant loss of Rs. 4,087,395/- was accounted for as a Loss on Sale of Assets. The company also 
made a representation to the Government Authorities for enhancement in such compensation. However any further compensation shall be treated as capital gain, as and when 
received.

25.  Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Net Profit after Tax Rupees. 24,562,690 5,302,583
(-)Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares Rupees. (2,115,000) ---
(-) Tax on above Dividend Rupees. (422,876) —
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders - For 
Basic and Diluted EPS Rupees. 22,024,814 5,302,583
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Basic EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Diluted EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Nominal Value of Equity Shares Rupees. 10 10
Basic Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 5.91 1.42
Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 5.91 1.42

26. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Rupees   Rupees

Contingent Liabilities
Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed for Project in Progress - 8,520,157

27. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever found necessary.

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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stNotes to Financial Statements For the Year Ended 31  March 2015
22. Related party transactions

a. List of Related Parties:
I. Associates:

• Transport Corporation of India Ltd. • TCI Global Logistics Ltd. • Bhoruka International Pvt. Ltd.
• Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd. • XPS Cargo Services Ltd.
Partnership Firms :
• TCI Properties – (Guj) • TCI Properties – (South) • TCI Warehousing – (MH)
• TCI Properties – (Delhi) • TCI Properties – (NCR) 

ii. Subsidiaries:
• TCI Infrastructure Ltd.  • TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. • TCI Properties (West) Ltd.

iii. Key Management Personnel
• Mr. D P Agarwal • Mr. N K Baranwal • Mr. Vineet Agarwal
• Mr. Mukesh Jain • Mr. Chander Agarwal • Mr. Rajesh Dhyani 

iv. Other Related Parties
• Mrs. Urmila Agarwal

b. Transactions with Related parties:
Nature of Transaction Nature of Relation Amount (Rupees) 

2014-15  2013-14
Transactions During the year:
Income:
Rent Received Associates 11,739,900 10,540,284
Project Management Services Associates 2,094,000 346,000
Share in Profit Received Associates 27,446,182 11,918,797
Expense:
Rent Expense Associates 132,000 132,000
Remuneration Key Management Personnel 5,705,155 3,966,593
Finance & Investments:
Loan Given Subsidiary --- 17,914,560
Refund of Loan Given Subsidiary --- 24,335,580
Investment – Allotment of Share against Share Application Money Subsidiary — 3,000,000
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel  11,950,000 9, 400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates --- 415,716
Withdrawal from Partnership Firms Associates 8,550,054 15,748,301
Balances as at the end of Year 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Assets
Investments Made Associates 126,945,154 126,945,154

Subsidiaries 174,910,000 174,910,000
Trade receivables Associates 389,993 65,511
Loan & Advances Given Subsidiary 64,045,000 64,045,000
Receivable from Partnership Firms Associates 12,661,303 ---
Liabilities
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 41,350,000 29,400,000
Payable to Partnership Firms Associates 7,711,709 13,946,535
Security Deposits Taken Associates 3,652,000 3,652,000
23. In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, 

would not be less than the amount at which the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.
24. During the year 2013-14, the company had received Rs 89,489/- from the Government Authorities towards compensation against part of a land acquired for highway road 

widening, the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 4,176,884/-. The resultant loss of Rs. 4,087,395/- was accounted for as a Loss on Sale of Assets. The company also 
made a representation to the Government Authorities for enhancement in such compensation. However any further compensation shall be treated as capital gain, as and when 
received.

25.  Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Net Profit after Tax Rupees. 24,562,690 5,302,583
(-)Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares Rupees. (2,115,000) ---
(-) Tax on above Dividend Rupees. (422,876) —
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders - For 
Basic and Diluted EPS Rupees. 22,024,814 5,302,583
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Basic EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares For Diluted EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Nominal Value of Equity Shares Rupees. 10 10
Basic Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 5.91 1.42
Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 5.91 1.42

26. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for) As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
Rupees   Rupees

Contingent Liabilities
Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed for Project in Progress - 8,520,157

27. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever found necessary.

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

F
o

rm
 A

O
C

-I
 (

P
u

rs
u

a
n

t 
to

 f
ir

st
 p

ro
v
is

o
 t

o
 s

u
b

-s
e
ct

io
n

 (
3
) 

o
f 

se
ct

io
n

 1
2
9
 r

e
a
d

 w
it

h
 r

u
le

 5
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s 

(A
cc

o
u

n
ts

) 
R

u
le

s,
 2

0
1
4
) 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
co

n
ta

in
in

g
 s

a
li
e
n

t 
fe

a
tu

re
s 

o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n

ci
a
l 
st

a
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
su

b
si

d
ia

ri
e
s/

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

 c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s/

jo
in

t 
ve

n
tu

re
s

S
l. 

N
o

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

N
a
m

e
 o

f t
h

e
 s

u
b

si
d

ia
ry

 
T

C
I 

T
C

I D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

T
C

I P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s 

T
C

I P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

T
C

I P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

T
C

I P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

T
C

I P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

T
C

I
In

fr
a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 
C

e
n

te
rs

 
(W

e
st

)
 (
G

U
J)

 (
N

C
R

)
(D

e
lh

i)
(S

o
u

th
)

W
a
re

h
o

u
si

n
g

L
im

it
e
d

L
im

it
e
d

L
im

it
e
d

 (
M

H
)

Sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
 4

80
.0

0 
 2

,0
07

.9
4 

 4
36

.8
4 

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

R
es

er
ve

s 
&

 s
ur

pl
us

 
 6

0.
10

 
 (0

.5
5)

 2
7.

90
 

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

T
o
ta

l a
ss

et
s 

 3
,9

32
.5

6 
 2

,0
07

.5
4 

 4
73

.4
5 

 3
04

.3
2 

 2
27

.8
6 

 9
8.

94
 

 3
2.

51
 

 2
65

.9
0 

T
o
ta

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

 3
,3

92
.4

5 
 0

.1
5 

 8
.7

2 
 3

04
.3

2 
 2

27
.8

6 
 9

8.
94

 
 3

2.
51

 
 2

65
.9

0 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
 0

.0
7 

 - 
  

 0
.0

7 
 - 

  
 - 

  
 - 

  
 - 

  
 - 

  

T
ur

no
ve

r 
 4

86
.1

6 
 1

.7
7 

 1
8.

98
 

 2
07

.0
0 

 1
8.

71
 

 9
8.

94
 

 3
2.

51
 

 7
.5

0 

P
ro

fit
 b

ef
o
re

 ta
xa

ti
o
n 

 8
3.

86
 

 (0
.2

2)
 1

4.
31

 
 1

99
.1

2 
 1

5.
59

 
 9

3.
63

 
 2

6.
03

 
 6

.4
4 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n 

fo
r 

ta
xa

ti
o
n 

 2
3.

00
 

 - 
  

 2
.0

4 
 3

3.
00

 
 3

.8
3 

 2
1.

30
 

 6
.7

0 
 1

.4
8 

P
ro

fit
 a

ft
er

 ta
xa

ti
o
n

 6
0.

86
 

 (0
.2

2)
 1

2.
27

 
 1

66
.1

2 
 1

1.
76

 
 7

2.
33

 
 1

9.
33

 
 4

.9
6 

P
ro

po
se

d
 D

iv
id

en
d
 

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

 - 
  

%
 o

f s
ha

re
ho

ld
in

g
10

0.
00

%
50

.7
1%

60
.0

0%
10

0%
*

10
0%

*
10

0%
*

10
0%

*
10

0%
*

* 
Sh

ar
e 

to
ge

th
er

 w
it
h 

o
th

er
 s
ub

si
d
ia

ri
es

.

N
o

te
s:

1.
 T

he
 r

ep
o
rt

in
g 

pe
ri

o
d
 fo

r 
al

l s
ub

si
d
ia

ri
es

 is
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

5.

2.
 A

ls
o
 r

ef
er

 n
o
te

 3
 o

f t
he

 c
o
ns

o
lid

at
ed

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

3.
 T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ud

it
ed

 b
y 

a 
fir

m
 o

f C
ha

rt
er

ed
 A

cc
o
un

ta
nt

s 
o
th

er
 th

an
 M

 G
an

d
hi

 &
 C

o
.

Fo
r 

an
d
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

o
f 
th

e 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
ec

to
rs

D
 P

 A
g
a
rw

a
l

V
in

e
e
t 

A
g
a
rw

a
l

C
ha

ir
m

an
D

ir
ec

to
r

D
ir

ec
to

r

N
a
re

sh
 K

u
m

a
r 

B
a
ra

n
w

a
l

M
u

k
e
sh

 J
a
in

R
a
je

sh
 D

h
ya

n
i

P
la

ce
: G

ur
ga

o
n

W
ho

le
 T

im
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r
A

ss
t.
 C

o
m

pa
ny

 S
ec

re
ta

ry
D

y.
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r
D

at
e:

 M
ay

 2
5,

 2
01

5
&

 C
o
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

O
ffi

ce
r

A
m

it
av

a
 G

h
o

sh

REPORT ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTICE OF 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 - 15 | 3130  | TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF  TCI Developers Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TCI 

DEVELOPERS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) 

and its subsidiaries and Associate Concerns (the Holding Company, its 

subsidiaries and Associate Concerns together referred to as “the Group”), 

comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 

to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 

these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 

consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the Company 

and its subsidiaries are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

respective assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of these 

consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 

statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken 

into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 

and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 

Company’s preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate 

internal financial control system over financial reporting and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence 

obtained by the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter below, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 

required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2015 and the 

consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

7. We did not audit the financial statements of its three subsidiaries, and five 

associated partnership firms, whose financial statements / financial information 

reflect total assets of Rs.7843.37 Lacs as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues of Rs. 

347.41 Lacs and net cash flows amounting to Rs.246.57 Lacs for the year ended on 

that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 

statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 

furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 

143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on 

the reports of the other auditors.

8. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other 

Legal and Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above 

matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other 

auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (‘the Order’), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, 

based on the comments in the auditors’ report of the Company and on the 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on subsidiary companies 

incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other 

auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 

Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose 

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of 

the Company as on March 31, 2015, taken on record by the Board of 

Directors of the Company and the reports of the auditors of its subsidiary 

companies incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Company and 

its subsidiaries, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from 

being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us:

i) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position.

Consolidated Auditors’ Report
ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material 

foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Group during the year under 

report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 9 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report of even date)

Our reporting on the Order includes subsidiary companies incorporated in India on which 

the auditors have reported on in accordance with the Order. Our report in respect of these 

subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of their auditors.

1. In respect of the fixed assets of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries:

(a) The respective entities have maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified by the Management of the respective 

entities at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given 

to us and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. In respect of the inventories of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries:

(a) the aforesaid subsidiary companies do not hold any inventories; therefore 

paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to these subsidiary companies. 

However as explained to us and based on the auditors’ reports of the holding 

company issued in accordance with the Order, the inventories were physically 

verified by the Management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the 

management of the holding company are reasonable and adequate in relation 

to the size of the company and thenature of its business, and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

3. The aforesaid subsidiaries have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, except for the holding company who had granted unsecured interest 

free loans to a wholly owned subsidiary company as covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years. The 

opening balance of the loan is Rs 640 lacs and the balance at the end of the 

accounting year amounts to Rs. 640 lakhs. The same is eliminated in consolidation as 

per accounting standards.

(a) there are no stipulation about the repayment of principal. 

(b) in our opinion the interest not charged is prima facie prejudicial to the interest 

of the company as per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the 

management opinion, this interest free loan was given for real estate 

development before the commencement of the Companies Act 2013 and the 

loan amount came to the company books as per the scheme of arrangement 

between the company and Transport Corporation of India Limited in the 

accounting year 2010-11 approved by the Honorable High court of Andhra 

Pradesh vide its order dated 15-09-2010. Hence the interest need not be 

charged.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the 

size of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries and the nature of their business 

respectively with regard to purchase of inventory and fixed assets and the sale 

of goods and services. During the course of our audits and based on auditors’ 

reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid subsidiaries, we 

have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on 

the aforesaid subsidiaries, the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries have not 

accepted deposits during the year and do not have any unclaimed deposits.

6. As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 

of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act to the 

Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, in respect of statutory dues of the Company and its aforesaid 

subsidiaries:

(a) The respective entities have generally been regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax and Value Added Tax, Wealth Tax, 

Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Cess and other material 

statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities in India.

(b) There were no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, 

Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at 

March 31, 2015 on account of dispute.

(c) There has not been an occasion in case of the Group during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of reporting delay in transferring such 

sums does not arise.

8. The Group does not have accumulated losses. The Group has not incurred cash 

losses on a consolidated basis during the financial year covered by our audit and 

in the immediately preceding financial year.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, the respective entities have not defaulted in repayment of 

dues to a bank during the year and did not have any amount outstanding to 

financial institutions or debenture holders.

10. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries have not given 

guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions during 

the year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, the respective entities did not avail any term loan during the year.

12. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to us and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance 

with the Order on the aforesaid subsidiaries, no fraud by the Company and its 

aforesaid subsidiaries and no material fraud on the Company and its aforesaid 

subsidiaries has been noticed or reported during the year.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF  TCI Developers Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TCI 

DEVELOPERS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) 

and its subsidiaries and Associate Concerns (the Holding Company, its 

subsidiaries and Associate Concerns together referred to as “the Group”), 

comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 

to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 

these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 

consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the Company 

and its subsidiaries are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

respective assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of these 

consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 

statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken 

into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 

and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 

143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 

Company’s preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate 

internal financial control system over financial reporting and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence 

obtained by the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter below, is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 

required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2015 and the 

consolidated profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

7. We did not audit the financial statements of its three subsidiaries, and five 

associated partnership firms, whose financial statements / financial information 

reflect total assets of Rs.7843.37 Lacs as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues of Rs. 

347.41 Lacs and net cash flows amounting to Rs.246.57 Lacs for the year ended on 

that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 

statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 

furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 

143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on 

the reports of the other auditors.

8. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other 

Legal and Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above 

matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other 

auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (‘the Order’), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, 

based on the comments in the auditors’ report of the Company and on the 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on subsidiary companies 

incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other 

auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 

Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose 

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of 

the Company as on March 31, 2015, taken on record by the Board of 

Directors of the Company and the reports of the auditors of its subsidiary 

companies incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Company and 

its subsidiaries, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from 

being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us:

i) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position.

Consolidated Auditors’ Report
ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material 

foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Group during the year under 

report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 9 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report of even date)

Our reporting on the Order includes subsidiary companies incorporated in India on which 

the auditors have reported on in accordance with the Order. Our report in respect of these 

subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of their auditors.

1. In respect of the fixed assets of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries:

(a) The respective entities have maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified by the Management of the respective 

entities at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given 

to us and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

2. In respect of the inventories of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries:

(a) the aforesaid subsidiary companies do not hold any inventories; therefore 

paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to these subsidiary companies. 

However as explained to us and based on the auditors’ reports of the holding 

company issued in accordance with the Order, the inventories were physically 

verified by the Management at reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the 

management of the holding company are reasonable and adequate in relation 

to the size of the company and thenature of its business, and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

3. The aforesaid subsidiaries have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, except for the holding company who had granted unsecured interest 

free loans to a wholly owned subsidiary company as covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the earlier years. The 

opening balance of the loan is Rs 640 lacs and the balance at the end of the 

accounting year amounts to Rs. 640 lakhs. The same is eliminated in consolidation as 

per accounting standards.

(a) there are no stipulation about the repayment of principal. 

(b) in our opinion the interest not charged is prima facie prejudicial to the interest 

of the company as per section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the 

management opinion, this interest free loan was given for real estate 

development before the commencement of the Companies Act 2013 and the 

loan amount came to the company books as per the scheme of arrangement 

between the company and Transport Corporation of India Limited in the 

accounting year 2010-11 approved by the Honorable High court of Andhra 

Pradesh vide its order dated 15-09-2010. Hence the interest need not be 

charged.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the 

size of the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries and the nature of their business 

respectively with regard to purchase of inventory and fixed assets and the sale 

of goods and services. During the course of our audits and based on auditors’ 

reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid subsidiaries, we 

have not observed any major weakness in such internal control system.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on 

the aforesaid subsidiaries, the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries have not 

accepted deposits during the year and do not have any unclaimed deposits.

6. As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance 

of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act to the 

Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, in respect of statutory dues of the Company and its aforesaid 

subsidiaries:

(a) The respective entities have generally been regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax and Value Added Tax, Wealth Tax, 

Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Cess and other material 

statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities in India.

(b) There were no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, 

Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at 

March 31, 2015 on account of dispute.

(c) There has not been an occasion in case of the Group during the year 

under report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund. The question of reporting delay in transferring such 

sums does not arise.

8. The Group does not have accumulated losses. The Group has not incurred cash 

losses on a consolidated basis during the financial year covered by our audit and 

in the immediately preceding financial year.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, the respective entities have not defaulted in repayment of 

dues to a bank during the year and did not have any amount outstanding to 

financial institutions or debenture holders.

10. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the 

aforesaid subsidiaries, the Company and its aforesaid subsidiaries have not given 

guarantees for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions during 

the year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

auditors’ reports issued in accordance with the Order on the aforesaid 

subsidiaries, the respective entities did not avail any term loan during the year.

12. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and 

explanations given to us and based on the auditors’ reports issued in accordance 

with the Order on the aforesaid subsidiaries, no fraud by the Company and its 

aforesaid subsidiaries and no material fraud on the Company and its aforesaid 

subsidiaries has been noticed or reported during the year.

For M. Gandhi & Co.
Chartered Accountant

Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S

M. Gandhi
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 022958
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 4  79,594,310  79,594,310 

Reserves And Surplus 5  539,767,128  510,962,734 

Minority Interest  118,656,854  118,176,498 

Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 6  216,103,097  241,618,912 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 7  1,071,200  2,361,500 

Other Long Term Liabilities 8  58,614,760  7,500,000 

Long Term Provisions 9  372,364  210,162 

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities 10  54,434,362  62,124,061 

Short Term Provisions 11  10,292,811  4,557,817 

Total  1,078,906,886  1,027,105,994 

II. ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 12  899,713,355  619,044,648 

Intangible Assets  20,314  40,628 

Capital Work-In-Progress  100,850,769  360,185,637 

Goodwill On Consolidation  195,915  195,915 

Non-Current Investments 13  -    954,480 

Long Term Loans And Advances 14  2,536,152  3,145,373 

Other Non-Current Assets 15  1,328,458  1,770,558 

Current Assets

Inventories 16  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Trade Receivables 17  901,792  78,995 

Cash And Cash Equivalents 18  30,530,426  6,455,202 

Short Term Loans And Advances 19  14,914,539  7,319,392 

Total  1,078,906,886  1,027,105,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 31

(Amount in `)

stConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2015
stConsolidated Statement of Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

Revenue:

Revenue from Operations

-Rental Income  81,331,860  29,496,200

-Project Management Services  2,594,000  1,946,000

Other Income 20  17,562,186  327,347

Total Revenue  101,488,046  31,769,547

Expenses:

Operating Expenses 21  -    1,103,344

(Increase) / decrease in Inventories 22  -    (1,103,344)

Employee Benefits Expenses 23  12,776,213  11,128,790

Financial Cost (Interest Expense)  27,103,454  140,251

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 12  14,600,699  2,316,629

Other Expenses 24  7,414,887  11,327,444

Total Expenses  61,895,253  24,913,114

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Exceptional Items  -    -

Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Profit before Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Less: Tax Expense

Current tax  9,213,000  3,940,000

MAT credit  (69,000)  -

Taxes for earlier years  (115,124)  10,180

Deferred tax  (1,290,300)  (2,965,300)

Profit for the Year  31,854,217  5,871,553

Minority Interest  (480,356)  (239,023)

Net Profit / (Loss) after taxes, minority interest  31,373,861  5,632,530

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic  7.73  1.51

(2) Diluted  7.73  1.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part  of the Financial Statements 1 to 31

(Amount in `)

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
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Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 4  79,594,310  79,594,310 

Reserves And Surplus 5  539,767,128  510,962,734 

Minority Interest  118,656,854  118,176,498 

Non-Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 6  216,103,097  241,618,912 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 7  1,071,200  2,361,500 

Other Long Term Liabilities 8  58,614,760  7,500,000 

Long Term Provisions 9  372,364  210,162 

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities 10  54,434,362  62,124,061 

Short Term Provisions 11  10,292,811  4,557,817 

Total  1,078,906,886  1,027,105,994 

II. ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 12  899,713,355  619,044,648 

Intangible Assets  20,314  40,628 

Capital Work-In-Progress  100,850,769  360,185,637 

Goodwill On Consolidation  195,915  195,915 

Non-Current Investments 13  -    954,480 

Long Term Loans And Advances 14  2,536,152  3,145,373 

Other Non-Current Assets 15  1,328,458  1,770,558 

Current Assets

Inventories 16  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Trade Receivables 17  901,792  78,995 

Cash And Cash Equivalents 18  30,530,426  6,455,202 

Short Term Loans And Advances 19  14,914,539  7,319,392 

Total  1,078,906,886  1,027,105,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1 to 31

(Amount in `)

stConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2015
stConsolidated Statement of Profit And Loss for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

Revenue:

Revenue from Operations

-Rental Income  81,331,860  29,496,200

-Project Management Services  2,594,000  1,946,000

Other Income 20  17,562,186  327,347

Total Revenue  101,488,046  31,769,547

Expenses:

Operating Expenses 21  -    1,103,344

(Increase) / decrease in Inventories 22  -    (1,103,344)

Employee Benefits Expenses 23  12,776,213  11,128,790

Financial Cost (Interest Expense)  27,103,454  140,251

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 12  14,600,699  2,316,629

Other Expenses 24  7,414,887  11,327,444

Total Expenses  61,895,253  24,913,114

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Exceptional Items  -    -

Profit before Extraordinary Items and Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Profit before Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433

Less: Tax Expense

Current tax  9,213,000  3,940,000

MAT credit  (69,000)  -

Taxes for earlier years  (115,124)  10,180

Deferred tax  (1,290,300)  (2,965,300)

Profit for the Year  31,854,217  5,871,553

Minority Interest  (480,356)  (239,023)

Net Profit / (Loss) after taxes, minority interest  31,373,861  5,632,530

Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic  7.73  1.51

(2) Diluted  7.73  1.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part  of the Financial Statements 1 to 31

(Amount in `)

As per our Report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director
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Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
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stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

PARTICULARS 2014-15 2013-14
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit (Loss) before Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433 

Adjustments for Non-Operating Activities:
Depreciation  14,600,699  2,316,629 
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets  (15,451,011)  4,087,395 
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Invetsments  (1,123,170)  - 
Interest paid  27,103,454  140,251 
Dividend Received  (28,408)  (28,408)
Interest Received  (959,597)  (298,939)

 24,141,967  6,216,928 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  63,734,760  13,073,361 
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Inventories  -    (1,103,344)
Trade Receivables  (822,797)  (78,995)
Long Term Loans and Advances  644,221  7,921,171 
Short Term Loans & advances  (688,280)  212,417 
Other Long Term Liabilities  51,114,760  7,500,000 
Long Term Provisions  162,202  73,402 
Other Current Liabilities  (17,195,855)  20,767,856 
 Short Term Provisions  114,526  158,319 
Cash Generation From Operations  97,063,537  48,524,187 
Direct Taxes Paid (Net)  (12,888,151)  (5,168,476)
Net Cash from Operating Activities  84,175,386  43,355,711 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress)  (38,624,615)  (241,002,267)
Transfer of Fixed Assets to Inventories  -    903,344 
Sale of Fixed Assets  18,129,811  89,489 
Sale of Investments  2,077,650  -   
Interest Received  959,597  298,939 
Dividend Received  28,408  28,408 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Preliminary Expenses Written Off  442,100  -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Minority Interest/ Goodwill On Consolidation  -    14,000,000 
Net Cash from Investing Activities  (16,987,049)  (225,682,087)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid  (27,103,454)  (140,251)
Dividend Paid  -    (3,782,702)
Dividend Tax paid  -    (642,870)
Long Term Borrowings from Directors  11,950,000  9,400,000 
Repayment of Term Loan from Banks  (28,210,446)  (6,570,450)
Proceeds from Term Loan from Banks  -    183,758,667 
Net Cash from Financing Activities  (43,363,900)  182,022,394 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 23,824,437  (303,982)
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Opening)  6,371,137  6,675,119 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Closing)  30,195,574  6,371,137 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:
        In Current Accounts 11,917,410  3,880,083 
        in Deposit Accounts  18,000,000  2,000,000 
Cash on Hand  40,407  1,917 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 
     Against Unpaid Dividend  126,707  126,542 
     Against Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Book Overdraft Balance  (334,852)  (84,065)

 30,195,574  6,371,137 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(Amount in `)

stNotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
1. Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED (“the 
Company”) and its Subsidiary Companies, and Associate Concerns (“the group”) (Refer 
Note 3 for details of the Subsidiaries, and Associates). Subsidiary Companies and 
Associate Concerns have been consolidated as per Accounting Standards on Accounting 
for Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 21), and Accounting for Investments in 
Associate Companies (AS 23) respectively. The Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared on the following basis:

a. In respect of Subsidiary Companies and Associate Concerns, the financial 
statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the 
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully 
eliminating intra-group balances and unrealised profits/ losses on intra-group 
transactions as per Accounting Standard – AS 21 “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”

b. The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in subsidiary companies is 
recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill, which is tested for impairment 
on every Balance Sheet date. The excess of Company’s share of equity and 
reserves of the subsidiary companies over the cost of acquisition is treated as 
Capital Reserve.

c. Minority Interest’s in net profit/loss of the consolidated Subsidiaries for the year 
is identified and adjusted against income in order to arrive at the net income 
attributable to shareholders of the Company. Minorities’ interest in net asset of 
the consolidated Subsidiaries is identified and presented separately in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) All revenues and expenditures are generally accounted on accrual basis as they 
are earned or incurred. The accounts are prepared on historical cost basis, as a 
going concern and are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

(b) Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 
any. Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not 
yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. Intangible assets are 
recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried 
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

(c) Depreciation and amortization

Tangible assets:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the 
useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 
Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately 
charged.

Intangible assets:

These are amortized as under:

Particular Amortization

Computer Software Over a period of 6 years

(d) Investments are stated at cost. Investments intended to be held for more than a 
year are classified as long term investments. Long term investments are stated 
individually at cost less provision for diminution in value, if such diminution is 
other than temporary.

(e) Inventory comprises Buildings under work in progress 

i. Work-in-progress - Buildings under work in progress represents cost 
incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate development projects 
or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. 
Buildings shown as work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value based on FIFO Basis.

(f) The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication 
that any asset may be impaired and such indication exists, the carrying value of 
such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and a provision is made for such 
impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Retirement Benefits: The Company has not created any gratuity fund or any other 
fund. However adequate provisions have been made in the accounts for gratuity 
liability.

(h) Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes.  Provision for 
current income tax is made on the current tax rates based on assessable income. 
The company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing 
differences resulting from the recognition of items in the accounts and in 
estimating its current tax provision.  The effect on deferred taxes of a change in 
tax rate is recognized in the year in which the change is effected. 

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only if there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period

(i) Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets acquired 
are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum 
lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease 
payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a 
straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

2.1 Significant Accounting Policies followed by Subsidiaries and Associate 
Concerns to the extent different and unique from Parent Company:

TCI Infrastructure Ltd.:

(a) Preliminary expense incurred by the Company has been written off on the 
commencement of operation by the Company.

(b) The Company has been allotted 9 Acres of Land at MIHAN (Nagpur Rural 
District) on 99 years’ lease by M/s Maharashtra Airport Development 
Company Limited for establishing Warehousing facilities, Transport hub 
for air cargo and domestic cargo in the MIHAN SEZ. The amount spent for 
the same is being amortized since the commencement of the operation 
over the remaining period of lease.

TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.:

(a) Preliminary expenses incurred by the Company shall be written off in 5 
years from the date of commencement of operation by the Company.

Partnership Firms viz. TCI Properties (South), TCI Properties (Guj), TCI 
Properties (Delhi), TCI Properties (NCR) and TCI Warehousing (MH):

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method as per the 
useful lives of assets estimated by the management, or at the rates 
prescribed under Income Tax Act, 1961, whichever is higher.

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

PARTICULARS 2014-15 2013-14
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit (Loss) before Tax  39,592,793  6,856,433 

Adjustments for Non-Operating Activities:
Depreciation  14,600,699  2,316,629 
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Assets  (15,451,011)  4,087,395 
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Invetsments  (1,123,170)  - 
Interest paid  27,103,454  140,251 
Dividend Received  (28,408)  (28,408)
Interest Received  (959,597)  (298,939)

 24,141,967  6,216,928 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes  63,734,760  13,073,361 
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:
Inventories  -    (1,103,344)
Trade Receivables  (822,797)  (78,995)
Long Term Loans and Advances  644,221  7,921,171 
Short Term Loans & advances  (688,280)  212,417 
Other Long Term Liabilities  51,114,760  7,500,000 
Long Term Provisions  162,202  73,402 
Other Current Liabilities  (17,195,855)  20,767,856 
 Short Term Provisions  114,526  158,319 
Cash Generation From Operations  97,063,537  48,524,187 
Direct Taxes Paid (Net)  (12,888,151)  (5,168,476)
Net Cash from Operating Activities  84,175,386  43,355,711 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (including capital work in progress)  (38,624,615)  (241,002,267)
Transfer of Fixed Assets to Inventories  -    903,344 
Sale of Fixed Assets  18,129,811  89,489 
Sale of Investments  2,077,650  -   
Interest Received  959,597  298,939 
Dividend Received  28,408  28,408 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Preliminary Expenses Written Off  442,100  -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Minority Interest/ Goodwill On Consolidation  -    14,000,000 
Net Cash from Investing Activities  (16,987,049)  (225,682,087)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Paid  (27,103,454)  (140,251)
Dividend Paid  -    (3,782,702)
Dividend Tax paid  -    (642,870)
Long Term Borrowings from Directors  11,950,000  9,400,000 
Repayment of Term Loan from Banks  (28,210,446)  (6,570,450)
Proceeds from Term Loan from Banks  -    183,758,667 
Net Cash from Financing Activities  (43,363,900)  182,022,394 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 23,824,437  (303,982)
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Opening)  6,371,137  6,675,119 
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Closing)  30,195,574  6,371,137 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:
        In Current Accounts 11,917,410  3,880,083 
        in Deposit Accounts  18,000,000  2,000,000 
Cash on Hand  40,407  1,917 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 
     Against Unpaid Dividend  126,707  126,542 
     Against Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Book Overdraft Balance  (334,852)  (84,065)

 30,195,574  6,371,137 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

(Amount in `)

stNotes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
1. Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to TCI DEVELOPERS LIMITED (“the 
Company”) and its Subsidiary Companies, and Associate Concerns (“the group”) (Refer 
Note 3 for details of the Subsidiaries, and Associates). Subsidiary Companies and 
Associate Concerns have been consolidated as per Accounting Standards on Accounting 
for Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 21), and Accounting for Investments in 
Associate Companies (AS 23) respectively. The Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared on the following basis:

a. In respect of Subsidiary Companies and Associate Concerns, the financial 
statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the 
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully 
eliminating intra-group balances and unrealised profits/ losses on intra-group 
transactions as per Accounting Standard – AS 21 “Consolidated Financial 
Statements”

b. The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in subsidiary companies is 
recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill, which is tested for impairment 
on every Balance Sheet date. The excess of Company’s share of equity and 
reserves of the subsidiary companies over the cost of acquisition is treated as 
Capital Reserve.

c. Minority Interest’s in net profit/loss of the consolidated Subsidiaries for the year 
is identified and adjusted against income in order to arrive at the net income 
attributable to shareholders of the Company. Minorities’ interest in net asset of 
the consolidated Subsidiaries is identified and presented separately in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

(a) All revenues and expenditures are generally accounted on accrual basis as they 
are earned or incurred. The accounts are prepared on historical cost basis, as a 
going concern and are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

(b) Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 
any. Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not 
yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. Intangible assets are 
recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried 
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

(c) Depreciation and amortization

Tangible assets:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the 
useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 
Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately 
charged.

Intangible assets:

These are amortized as under:

Particular Amortization

Computer Software Over a period of 6 years

(d) Investments are stated at cost. Investments intended to be held for more than a 
year are classified as long term investments. Long term investments are stated 
individually at cost less provision for diminution in value, if such diminution is 
other than temporary.

(e) Inventory comprises Buildings under work in progress 

i. Work-in-progress - Buildings under work in progress represents cost 
incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate development projects 
or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. 
Buildings shown as work-in-progress are valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value based on FIFO Basis.

(f) The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication 
that any asset may be impaired and such indication exists, the carrying value of 
such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and a provision is made for such 
impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Retirement Benefits: The Company has not created any gratuity fund or any other 
fund. However adequate provisions have been made in the accounts for gratuity 
liability.

(h) Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes.  Provision for 
current income tax is made on the current tax rates based on assessable income. 
The company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing 
differences resulting from the recognition of items in the accounts and in 
estimating its current tax provision.  The effect on deferred taxes of a change in 
tax rate is recognized in the year in which the change is effected. 

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only if there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period

(i) Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets acquired 
are capitalized at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum 
lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease 
payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a 
straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term.

2.1 Significant Accounting Policies followed by Subsidiaries and Associate 
Concerns to the extent different and unique from Parent Company:

TCI Infrastructure Ltd.:

(a) Preliminary expense incurred by the Company has been written off on the 
commencement of operation by the Company.

(b) The Company has been allotted 9 Acres of Land at MIHAN (Nagpur Rural 
District) on 99 years’ lease by M/s Maharashtra Airport Development 
Company Limited for establishing Warehousing facilities, Transport hub 
for air cargo and domestic cargo in the MIHAN SEZ. The amount spent for 
the same is being amortized since the commencement of the operation 
over the remaining period of lease.

TCI Distribution Centers Ltd.:

(a) Preliminary expenses incurred by the Company shall be written off in 5 
years from the date of commencement of operation by the Company.

Partnership Firms viz. TCI Properties (South), TCI Properties (Guj), TCI 
Properties (Delhi), TCI Properties (NCR) and TCI Warehousing (MH):

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method as per the 
useful lives of assets estimated by the management, or at the rates 
prescribed under Income Tax Act, 1961, whichever is higher.

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015
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stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

3.The consolidated financial statement present the consolidated accounts of TCI developers Limited with its following Subsidiaries and 
Associate Concerns:

Proportion of Ownership of Interest

Country of As on As on 
Incorporation 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

A. Subsidiaries

(a) TCI Infrastructure Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%
(b) TCI Properties (West) Ltd. India   60.00%   60.00%
(c)  TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. India   50.71%   50.71%
B. Associate Concerns : Partnership Firm
(a) TCI Properties (Guj) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(b) TCI Properties (NCR) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(c) TCI Properties (Delhi) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(d) TCI Properties (South) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(e) TCI Warehousing (MH) India 100.00%* 100.00%*

* share together with subsidiaries

C. Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information

Name of the Entities Net Assets i.e. Total Assets Share in Profit / (Loss)
Minus Total Liabilities

As a % of  Amount As a % of Amount
Consolidated (` In Lacs) Consolidated (` In Lacs)

net Assets  Profit / (Loss)
Parent:
TCI Developers Limited 82.86% 6,115.09 77.11% 245.63
Subsidiary:
Indian:
TCI Infrastructure Ltd. 7.32% 540.10 19.11% 60.86
TCI Properties (West) Ltd. 6.30% 464.73 3.85% 12.27
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. 27.20% 2,007.39 (0.07)% (0.22)
Associate Partnership Firm:
TCI Properties (Guj) 3.62% 267.50 52.15% 166.12
TCI Properties (NCR) 2.87% 211.60 3.69% 11.76
TCI Properties (Delhi) 5.76%  425.32 22.71% 72.33
TCI Properties (South) 2.07% 152.48 6.07% 19.33
TCI Warehousing (MH) 3.55% 262.23 1.56% 4.96
Sub Total 10,446.44 593.04
Intercompany Elimination & Consolidation Adjustments (41.55)% (3,066.26) (86.17)% (274.50)
Grand Total 7,380.18 318.54
Minority interest in subsidiaries (1,186.57) (4.80)

Total 6,193.61 313.74

4. Share Capital As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Number  Rupees Number  Rupees

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,000,000 70,000,000 7,000,000 70,000,000
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each  8,000,000 80,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000 

Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  3,729,431 37,294,310 3,729,431 37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each  4,230,000  42,300,000 4,230,000 42,300,000

Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

Total  7,959,431  79,594,310  7,959,431  79,594,310

(a) (i) Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding:

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -   - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -   - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310

     (ii) Reconciliation of Preference Shares Outstanding

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -   - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -   - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of 
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Terms of Conversion/ redemption of Preference Shares

The 5% Preference Shares allotted by the company are Non-Convertiable Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable in a term not 
exceeding 20 years from the date of allotment and on such terms and conditions and in such manner as the Board may, deem fit.

stConsolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Shares in the company

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the company

Name of Shareholder 
 No. of % of No. of % of 

Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  798,489 21.41%  798,489 21.41%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  557,910 14.96%  557,910 14.96%
D.P. Agarwal- TCI Trading  248,749 6.67%  248,749 6.67%
TCI India Ltd. 211,548 5.67%  211,548 5.67%

(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Preference Shares in the company

Smt Urmila Agarwal 2,000,000 47.28%  2,000,000 47.28%
Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  850,000 20.09%  850,000 20.09%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  600,000 14.18%  600,000 14.18%
TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  300,000 7.09%  300,000 7.09%
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  280,000 6.62%  280,000 6.62%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

(e) Details of Shares allotted since incorporation of the Company, other than in cash:

Year (Aggregate No. of Shares)

Particulars 2008-09 Aggregate till
 (year of incorporation) 2010-11 31 March 2015

 Nos Nos Nos

Equity Shares :
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash  -    3,629,431  3,629,431

5. Reserves & Surplus As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

 Rupees  Rupees 

Capital Reserves
Opening Balance  484,841,685  484,841,685
(+) Additions  -    -
(-) Deductions  -    -
Closing Balance  484,841,685  484,841,685

Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  26,121,049  20,488,519
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 31,373,861  5,632,530
(-) Adjustment against Accumulated Depreciation (31,591)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares (2,115,000)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares  -    -
(-) Tax on Dividends (422,876)  -
Closing Balance  54,925,443  26,121,049

Total  539,767,128  510,962,734

6. Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term Loans from Banks (*)  174,753,097  212,218,912

Unsecured 
Loans From Directors  41,350,000  29,400,000 
(unsecured interest free loans taken from directors without any stipulation as to dates of repayment)

Total  216,103,097  241,618,912 

* Security Details & Repayments terms for Term Loan

- Secured by equitable mortgage on Immovable Property owned by a Subsidiary company. Further, the loan has also been guaranteed by way of corporate guarantee given by 
Transport Corporation of India Limited. The Loan is repayable in Quarterly installments of amounts as mentioned in the repayment schedule commenced from March 31, 2014. 
Interest Rate is charged @ 11.50% p.a.( Previous Year @ 11.50% p.a.)

 - Secured against cars purchased at Interest @10.00% p.a., payable in 36 equal monthly installments w.e.f. June 2013.

7. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
(Impact of differences between  tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting)
Gross Deferred Tax liabilities 6,121,600  5,954,300 
Deferred Tax Assets (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
(Impact of expenditures charged to the statements of profit and loss but allowable for tax purpose on payment basis)
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,071,200  2,361,500

8. Other Long Term Liabilities

Other Payables
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party 58,614,760  7,500,000 

Total 58,614,760  7,500,000

9. Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity & Other Funds  372,364  210,162 

Total 372,364  210,162 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
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stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31  March 2015

3.The consolidated financial statement present the consolidated accounts of TCI developers Limited with its following Subsidiaries and 
Associate Concerns:

Proportion of Ownership of Interest

Country of As on As on 
Incorporation 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

A. Subsidiaries

(a) TCI Infrastructure Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%
(b) TCI Properties (West) Ltd. India   60.00%   60.00%
(c)  TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. India   50.71%   50.71%
B. Associate Concerns : Partnership Firm
(a) TCI Properties (Guj) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(b) TCI Properties (NCR) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(c) TCI Properties (Delhi) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(d) TCI Properties (South) India 100.00%* 100.00%*
(e) TCI Warehousing (MH) India 100.00%* 100.00%*

* share together with subsidiaries

C. Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information

Name of the Entities Net Assets i.e. Total Assets Share in Profit / (Loss)
Minus Total Liabilities

As a % of  Amount As a % of Amount
Consolidated (` In Lacs) Consolidated (` In Lacs)

net Assets  Profit / (Loss)
Parent:
TCI Developers Limited 82.86% 6,115.09 77.11% 245.63
Subsidiary:
Indian:
TCI Infrastructure Ltd. 7.32% 540.10 19.11% 60.86
TCI Properties (West) Ltd. 6.30% 464.73 3.85% 12.27
TCI Distribution Centers Ltd. 27.20% 2,007.39 (0.07)% (0.22)
Associate Partnership Firm:
TCI Properties (Guj) 3.62% 267.50 52.15% 166.12
TCI Properties (NCR) 2.87% 211.60 3.69% 11.76
TCI Properties (Delhi) 5.76%  425.32 22.71% 72.33
TCI Properties (South) 2.07% 152.48 6.07% 19.33
TCI Warehousing (MH) 3.55% 262.23 1.56% 4.96
Sub Total 10,446.44 593.04
Intercompany Elimination & Consolidation Adjustments (41.55)% (3,066.26) (86.17)% (274.50)
Grand Total 7,380.18 318.54
Minority interest in subsidiaries (1,186.57) (4.80)

Total 6,193.61 313.74

4. Share Capital As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

Particulars Number  Rupees Number  Rupees

Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,000,000 70,000,000 7,000,000 70,000,000
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each  8,000,000 80,000,000 8,000,000 80,000,000 

Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  3,729,431 37,294,310 3,729,431 37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each  4,230,000  42,300,000 4,230,000 42,300,000

Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
5% Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 

Total  7,959,431  79,594,310  7,959,431  79,594,310

(a) (i) Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding:

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -   - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -   - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  3,729,431  37,294,310  3,729,431  37,294,310

     (ii) Reconciliation of Preference Shares Outstanding

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -   - -
Shares bought back during the year  -    -   - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  4,230,000  42,300,000  4,230,000  42,300,000

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of 
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Terms of Conversion/ redemption of Preference Shares

The 5% Preference Shares allotted by the company are Non-Convertiable Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemable in a term not 
exceeding 20 years from the date of allotment and on such terms and conditions and in such manner as the Board may, deem fit.

stConsolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Shares in the company

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Equity Shares in the company

Name of Shareholder 
 No. of % of No. of % of 

Shares held Holding Shares held  Holding

Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  798,489 21.41%  798,489 21.41%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  557,910 14.96%  557,910 14.96%
D.P. Agarwal- TCI Trading  248,749 6.67%  248,749 6.67%
TCI India Ltd. 211,548 5.67%  211,548 5.67%

(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the Preference Shares in the company

Smt Urmila Agarwal 2,000,000 47.28%  2,000,000 47.28%
Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.  850,000 20.09%  850,000 20.09%
Bhoruka International (P) Ltd.  600,000 14.18%  600,000 14.18%
TCI Global Logistics Ltd.  300,000 7.09%  300,000 7.09%
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  280,000 6.62%  280,000 6.62%

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

(e) Details of Shares allotted since incorporation of the Company, other than in cash:

Year (Aggregate No. of Shares)

Particulars 2008-09 Aggregate till
 (year of incorporation) 2010-11 31 March 2015

 Nos Nos Nos

Equity Shares :
Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash  -    3,629,431  3,629,431

5. Reserves & Surplus As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

 Rupees  Rupees 

Capital Reserves
Opening Balance  484,841,685  484,841,685
(+) Additions  -    -
(-) Deductions  -    -
Closing Balance  484,841,685  484,841,685

Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  26,121,049  20,488,519
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 31,373,861  5,632,530
(-) Adjustment against Accumulated Depreciation (31,591)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares (2,115,000)  -
(-) Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares  -    -
(-) Tax on Dividends (422,876)  -
Closing Balance  54,925,443  26,121,049

Total  539,767,128  510,962,734

6. Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term Loans from Banks (*)  174,753,097  212,218,912

Unsecured 
Loans From Directors  41,350,000  29,400,000 
(unsecured interest free loans taken from directors without any stipulation as to dates of repayment)

Total  216,103,097  241,618,912 

* Security Details & Repayments terms for Term Loan

- Secured by equitable mortgage on Immovable Property owned by a Subsidiary company. Further, the loan has also been guaranteed by way of corporate guarantee given by 
Transport Corporation of India Limited. The Loan is repayable in Quarterly installments of amounts as mentioned in the repayment schedule commenced from March 31, 2014. 
Interest Rate is charged @ 11.50% p.a.( Previous Year @ 11.50% p.a.)

 - Secured against cars purchased at Interest @10.00% p.a., payable in 36 equal monthly installments w.e.f. June 2013.

7. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities  6,121,600  5,954,300 
(Impact of differences between  tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting)
Gross Deferred Tax liabilities 6,121,600  5,954,300 
Deferred Tax Assets (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
(Impact of expenditures charged to the statements of profit and loss but allowable for tax purpose on payment basis)
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (5,050,400)  (3,592,800)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  1,071,200  2,361,500

8. Other Long Term Liabilities

Other Payables
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party 58,614,760  7,500,000 

Total 58,614,760  7,500,000

9. Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity & Other Funds  372,364  210,162 

Total 372,364  210,162 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
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13. Non Current Investments As at 31.03.2014As at 31.03.2015

Current Maturity of Long Term Debts  37,466,007  28,210,638 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party  10,211,997  10,211,997 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Others  300,000  450,000 
Book Overdraft Balance  334,852  84,065 
Sundry Creditors  3,127,158  14,360,913 
Retention Money  1,550,822  6,533,399 
Unpaid Dividends  126,707  126,542 
Unpaid Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Withholding and Other Taxes Payable  399,179  826,611 
Other Liabilities  471,738  873,236 

Total 54,434,362  62,124,061

11. Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Unavailed Leave  413,062  298,536 
Others

Proposed Dividend  2,115,000  -   
Tax on Dividend  422,876  -   
Taxation  7,341,873  4,259,281 

Total 10,292,811  4,557,817 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.201410.Other Current Liabilities

Rupees  Rupees 

Trade Investments
Unquoted:
Investments in fully paid equity instruments
TCI Global Logistics limited  -    250,000
Nil (previous year 7000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
Bhoruka International P Ltd.  -    200,000
Nil (Previous year 20,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  -    504,480
Nil (Previous year 16,816) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Total -    954,480

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    954,480

14. Long-term Loans and Advances

Capital Advance  1,366,152  2,035,373 
Security Deposits  1,135,000  1,110,000 
MAT Credit Entitlement  35,000  -

Total  2,536,152  3,145,373

15. Other Non Current Assets

Other
Preliminary Expenses to be written Off  1,328,458  1,770,558 

Total 1,328,458 1,770,558

16. Inventories
Buildings under work in progress 
(at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets*  2,098,855  2,098,855 
Construction Costs  25,816,311  25,816,311 

Total 27,915,166  27,915,166

* Being Land & Building at Pune, transferred from Fixed Assets to Stock in trade to date. A housing project has been developed on the property and the relevant income will 
be accounted for at the time of its sale.

stConsolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.201417. Trade Receivables
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12. Fixed Assets

Description of Assets AT COST             DEPRECIATION

As at Additions Deduction Upto For Adjusted Adjustment

01.04.2014 during during Balances 31.03.2014 the year Retained on Total 31 March 31 March
the year the year Earning deductions 2015 2014

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

   Land*  572,256,752  11,658,788  2,678,800  581,236,740  -    1,198,080  -    -    1,198,080  580,038,660  572,256,752 

   Buildings              53,255,214  253,962,394  -    307,217,608  9,642,723  10,269,706  -    -    19,912,429  287,305,179  43,612,491 

   Motor Cars  2,548,821  -    -    2,548,821  221,960  387,810  -    -    609,770  1,939,051  2,326,861 

   Computers  93,406  -    -    93,406  57,145  -    31,591  -    88,736  4,670  36,261 

   Furniture & Fittings  261,277  -    -    261,277  65,692  32,599  -    -    98,291  162,986  195,585 

   Electrical Installation & Equipments  656,276  11,031,345  -    11,687,621  124,691  1,191,733  -    -    1,316,424  10,371,197  531,585 

   Telephone Eqipments  66,101  -    -    66,101  10,378  52,418  -    -    62,796  3,305  55,723 

   Office Equipments  36,286  -    -    36,286  6,896  27,575  -    -    34,471  1,815  29,390 

   Plant & Machinery  -    21,306,956  -    21,306,956  -    1,420,464  -    -    1,420,464  19,886,492  -   

 B) Intangible Assets 

   Computer Software  85,000  -    -    85,000  44,372  20,314  -    -    64,686  20,314  40,628 

 C) Capital Work-in-Progress: 

    Building under construction  360,185,637  2,719,970  262,054,838  100,850,769  -    -    -    -    -    100,850,769  360,185,637 

 TOTAL  989,444,770  300,679,453  264,733,638  1,025,390,585  10,173,857  14,600,699  31,591  -    23,786,513  1,000,584,438  979,270,913 

 Previous Year  753,522,731  241,002,267  5,080,228  989,444,770  7,857,228  2,316,629  -    - 10,173,857 979,270,913 745,665,503 
* includes Leasehold land

NET BLOCK

with 

Unsecured

a) Overdue for more than six months
Considered good  -    78,995

b) Others: Considered good  901,792  -  
Total 901,792  78,995

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts  11,917,410  3,880,083 
in Deposit Accounts  18,000,000  2,000,000 

Cash on Hand  40,407  1,917 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 

Against Unpaid Dividend  126,707  126,542 
Against Fractional Share Entitiltments  445,902  446,660 

Total 30,530,426  6,455,202

19. Short-term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good :
MAT Credit Entitlement  44,100  10,100 
Tax Deducted at Source  13,548,665  6,878,798 
Balances with Service Tax and Income Tax Authorities  484,128  47,707 
Other Advances  837,646  382,787 

Total 14,914,539 7,319,392

2014-15 2013-14

20. Other Income Rupees Rupees

Profit on Sale of Assets (refer note no 28)  15,451,011  -   
Profit on Sale of Invetsment  1,123,170  -   
Interest Income  959,597  298,939 
Dividend Income  28,408  28,408 

Total 17,562,186  327,347

21. Operating Expenses 

Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets  -    903,344 
Construction Costs  -    200,000 

Total  -    1,103,344 

22. (Increase) / decrease in Inventories
Opening Work in Progress  27,915,166  26,811,822 
Closing Work in Progress  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Total  -    (1,103,344)

23. Employee Benefits Expenses  
Salaries and Incentives  12,400,017  10,961,034 
Gratuity  159,692  73,402 
Staff Welfare Expenses 216,504  94,354 

Total  12,776,213  11,128,790 

24. Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes 1,751,884  1,494,157 
Rent  132,000  132,000 
Electricity  11,830  41,660 
Telephone Expenses  14,750  14,145 
Printing And Stationery  210,911  153,906 
Travelling And Conveyance Expenses  1,637,016  2,072,418 
Legal Expenses 195,060  -   
Postage And Telegram  350,592  220,601 
Advertisement Expenses  162,726  157,084 
Building Maintenance Expenses  563,145  175,388 
Car Maintenance Expenses  215,737  166,675 
Computer Maintenance Expenses  23,263  29,213 
Consultancy And Professional Charges  208,150  1,335,363 
Loss on Sale of Assets (refer note no 27)  -    4,087,395 
Office Maintenance Expenses  849,025  832,139 
Subscription  318,771  117,460 
Miscellaneous Expenses  134,340  130,547 
Directors Fees  86,518  80,899 
Remuneration To Auditors

Audit Fees  97,069  81,394 
Tax Audit Fees  10,000  5,000

Preliminary expenses Written off  442,100  -   
Total  7,414,887  11,327,444 
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13. Non Current Investments As at 31.03.2014As at 31.03.2015

Current Maturity of Long Term Debts  37,466,007  28,210,638 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Related Party  10,211,997  10,211,997 
Tenant/ Security Deposits from Others  300,000  450,000 
Book Overdraft Balance  334,852  84,065 
Sundry Creditors  3,127,158  14,360,913 
Retention Money  1,550,822  6,533,399 
Unpaid Dividends  126,707  126,542 
Unpaid Fractional Share Entitlements  445,902  446,660 
Withholding and Other Taxes Payable  399,179  826,611 
Other Liabilities  471,738  873,236 

Total 54,434,362  62,124,061

11. Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits

Unavailed Leave  413,062  298,536 
Others

Proposed Dividend  2,115,000  -   
Tax on Dividend  422,876  -   
Taxation  7,341,873  4,259,281 

Total 10,292,811  4,557,817 

As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.201410.Other Current Liabilities

Rupees  Rupees 

Trade Investments
Unquoted:
Investments in fully paid equity instruments
TCI Global Logistics limited  -    250,000
Nil (previous year 7000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
Bhoruka International P Ltd.  -    200,000
Nil (Previous year 20,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
XPS Cargo Services Ltd.  -    504,480
Nil (Previous year 16,816) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Total -    954,480

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  -    954,480

14. Long-term Loans and Advances

Capital Advance  1,366,152  2,035,373 
Security Deposits  1,135,000  1,110,000 
MAT Credit Entitlement  35,000  -

Total  2,536,152  3,145,373

15. Other Non Current Assets

Other
Preliminary Expenses to be written Off  1,328,458  1,770,558 

Total 1,328,458 1,770,558

16. Inventories
Buildings under work in progress 
(at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets*  2,098,855  2,098,855 
Construction Costs  25,816,311  25,816,311 

Total 27,915,166  27,915,166

* Being Land & Building at Pune, transferred from Fixed Assets to Stock in trade to date. A housing project has been developed on the property and the relevant income will 
be accounted for at the time of its sale.
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12. Fixed Assets

Description of Assets AT COST             DEPRECIATION

As at Additions Deduction Upto For Adjusted Adjustment

01.04.2014 during during Balances 31.03.2014 the year Retained on Total 31 March 31 March
the year the year Earning deductions 2015 2014

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

   Land*  572,256,752  11,658,788  2,678,800  581,236,740  -    1,198,080  -    -    1,198,080  580,038,660  572,256,752 

   Buildings              53,255,214  253,962,394  -    307,217,608  9,642,723  10,269,706  -    -    19,912,429  287,305,179  43,612,491 

   Motor Cars  2,548,821  -    -    2,548,821  221,960  387,810  -    -    609,770  1,939,051  2,326,861 

   Computers  93,406  -    -    93,406  57,145  -    31,591  -    88,736  4,670  36,261 

   Furniture & Fittings  261,277  -    -    261,277  65,692  32,599  -    -    98,291  162,986  195,585 

   Electrical Installation & Equipments  656,276  11,031,345  -    11,687,621  124,691  1,191,733  -    -    1,316,424  10,371,197  531,585 

   Telephone Eqipments  66,101  -    -    66,101  10,378  52,418  -    -    62,796  3,305  55,723 

   Office Equipments  36,286  -    -    36,286  6,896  27,575  -    -    34,471  1,815  29,390 

   Plant & Machinery  -    21,306,956  -    21,306,956  -    1,420,464  -    -    1,420,464  19,886,492  -   

 B) Intangible Assets 

   Computer Software  85,000  -    -    85,000  44,372  20,314  -    -    64,686  20,314  40,628 

 C) Capital Work-in-Progress: 

    Building under construction  360,185,637  2,719,970  262,054,838  100,850,769  -    -    -    -    -    100,850,769  360,185,637 

 TOTAL  989,444,770  300,679,453  264,733,638  1,025,390,585  10,173,857  14,600,699  31,591  -    23,786,513  1,000,584,438  979,270,913 

 Previous Year  753,522,731  241,002,267  5,080,228  989,444,770  7,857,228  2,316,629  -    - 10,173,857 979,270,913 745,665,503 
* includes Leasehold land

NET BLOCK

with 

Unsecured

a) Overdue for more than six months
Considered good  -    78,995

b) Others: Considered good  901,792  -  
Total 901,792  78,995

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts  11,917,410  3,880,083 
in Deposit Accounts  18,000,000  2,000,000 

Cash on Hand  40,407  1,917 
Earmarked Balances with Banks: 

Against Unpaid Dividend  126,707  126,542 
Against Fractional Share Entitiltments  445,902  446,660 

Total 30,530,426  6,455,202

19. Short-term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good :
MAT Credit Entitlement  44,100  10,100 
Tax Deducted at Source  13,548,665  6,878,798 
Balances with Service Tax and Income Tax Authorities  484,128  47,707 
Other Advances  837,646  382,787 

Total 14,914,539 7,319,392

2014-15 2013-14

20. Other Income Rupees Rupees

Profit on Sale of Assets (refer note no 28)  15,451,011  -   
Profit on Sale of Invetsment  1,123,170  -   
Interest Income  959,597  298,939 
Dividend Income  28,408  28,408 

Total 17,562,186  327,347

21. Operating Expenses 

Land & Building transferred from Fixed Assets  -    903,344 
Construction Costs  -    200,000 

Total  -    1,103,344 

22. (Increase) / decrease in Inventories
Opening Work in Progress  27,915,166  26,811,822 
Closing Work in Progress  27,915,166  27,915,166 

Total  -    (1,103,344)

23. Employee Benefits Expenses  
Salaries and Incentives  12,400,017  10,961,034 
Gratuity  159,692  73,402 
Staff Welfare Expenses 216,504  94,354 

Total  12,776,213  11,128,790 

24. Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes 1,751,884  1,494,157 
Rent  132,000  132,000 
Electricity  11,830  41,660 
Telephone Expenses  14,750  14,145 
Printing And Stationery  210,911  153,906 
Travelling And Conveyance Expenses  1,637,016  2,072,418 
Legal Expenses 195,060  -   
Postage And Telegram  350,592  220,601 
Advertisement Expenses  162,726  157,084 
Building Maintenance Expenses  563,145  175,388 
Car Maintenance Expenses  215,737  166,675 
Computer Maintenance Expenses  23,263  29,213 
Consultancy And Professional Charges  208,150  1,335,363 
Loss on Sale of Assets (refer note no 27)  -    4,087,395 
Office Maintenance Expenses  849,025  832,139 
Subscription  318,771  117,460 
Miscellaneous Expenses  134,340  130,547 
Directors Fees  86,518  80,899 
Remuneration To Auditors

Audit Fees  97,069  81,394 
Tax Audit Fees  10,000  5,000

Preliminary expenses Written off  442,100  -   
Total  7,414,887  11,327,444 
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stConsolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
25. Related party transactions

a. List of Related Parties:

I. Associates:

• Transport Corporation of India Ltd. • TCI Global Logistics Ltd. • Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.

• XPS Cargo Services Ltd. • Bhoruka International Pvt. Ltd

ii. Key Management Personnel:

• Mr. D P Agarwal • Mr. N K Baranwal • Mr. Vineet Agarwal

• Mr. Mukesh Jain • Mr. Chander Agarwal • Mr. Rajesh Dhyani 

iii. Other Related Parties: 

• Mrs. Urmila Agarwal • Master Vihaan Agarwal • Mrs. Priyanka Agarwal

• Dharmpal & Sons (HUF)

26. In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, 
would not be less than the amount at which the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.

27. During the year 2013-14, the company had received Rs. 89,489/- from the Government Authorities towards compensation against part of a land acquired for highway road widening, 
the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 4,176,884/-. The resultant loss of Rs. 4,087,395/-  was accounted for as a Loss on Sale of Assets. The company also made a 
representation to the Government Authorities for enhancement in such compensation. However any further compensation shall be treated as capital gain, as and when received.

28. During the year, an associate partnership firm has received Rs. 18,129,811/- towards compensation from the Government Authorities against part of a land acquired for highway 
road widening, the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 2,678,800/-. The resultant profit of Rs. 15,451,011/- has been accounted for as a Profit on Sale of Assets.

b. Transactions with Related parties: (Amount in ̀ )
Nature of  Transaction Nature of Relation 2014-15 2013-14

Income :
Rent Received Associates 81,331,860 29,496,200
Project Management Services Associates 2,094,000 346,000
Sale of Investment (Sale Price) Other Related Parties 2,077,650 ---
Dividend Received Associates 28,408 28,408
Expense :
Rent Expense Associates 132,000 132,000
Remuneration Key Management Personnel 5,705,155 3,966,593
Finance & Investments :
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 11,950,000 9,400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates 51,114,760 8,669,208
Refund of Security Deposits Taken Associates --- 36,408
Balances as at the end of period 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Assets :
Investment Made Associates --- 954,480
Trade receivables Associates 389,993 78,995
Liabilities :
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 41,350,000 29,400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates 68,826,757 17,711,997

thNOTICE is hereby given that the 7 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 
Saturday, 1st August, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of 
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation 
House,11-6-841 , FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 500004 (Telangana).

1. Consider, approve and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March 2015 together with the Reports of Directors’ & Auditors’ 
thereon.

2. Declaration of Dividend on preference shares.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Agarwal (DIN: 00380300),who retires by rotation 
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and appoint M/s. M. Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants having firm 
registration no.000851S , Bangalore, as Statutory Auditors to hold office from the 
conclusion of this meeting until conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and 
to fix their remuneration. M/s. M. Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants are the 
retiring auditors and being eligible offers themselves for reappointment.

Special Business:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) read together with 
Schedule V of the said Act, and Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014( including any statutory modification(s) from 
time to time or any re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to 
the  approval of the Central Government, if necessary, consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to Board of Directors for revision in the  

stremuneration of Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director w.e.f. 1  April, 
2015 for remainder of duration of appointment up to July 31, 2016 within the limits 
as per the details as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice 
convening this meeting.

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 94 (1) and other applicable sections if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Company be and 
is hereby given to the Board of Directors to keep the Register of Members/ 
debenture holders at the Corporate Office/at the premises of Share Transfer 
Agent/Registrar of the Company to make it convenient for the members/ 
debenture holders to have easily access over it.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be  and is hereby 
severally authorized to sign and execute all such documents, deeds and writings and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and 
incidental thereto for giving effect to this resolution(s).

Place: Gurgaon BY Order of the Board

Date: 25th May, 2015 For TCI Developers Ltd

Mukesh Jain

Asst. Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

1. PROXY: A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON A POLL, 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. Proxy Form, in order to be effective, must be received at the registered 
office of the company not less than forty eight hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting. A proxy form is enclosed for this purpose.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 
FIFTY AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF 
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A 
MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON 
SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Business at Item Nos. 5 and 6 of is annexed to and 
forms part of this Notice.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorising their 
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

4. A statement giving the details of the Director seeking re appointment under Item No.3 
of the accompanying Notice, as required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered 
into with the Stock Exchanges is annexed herewith.

5. Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
Saturday, the 25th July, 2015 to Saturday, the 1st August, 2015 (both days inclusive). The 
book closure dates have been fixed in consultation with the Stock Exchanges.

6. Members are requested to note that as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
dividends not encashed/claimed within seven years from the date of declaration of 
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dividend will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
After transfer of the said amount to IEPF, no claims in this respect shall lie against 
IEPF or the Company. Members are requested to contact Investors Service 
Department of the Company’s Corporate Office at Gurgaon (Haryana) for 
encashing the unclaimed dividends standing to the credit of their account.

7. Reserve Bank of India has initiated NECS for credit of dividend directly to the bank 
accounts of the Members. Members are requested to register their bankaccount 
details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number,9 digit MICR and 11 digit 
IFS Code), in respect of shares held in dematerialised form with their respective 
Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with RTA or 
with the Company.

8. Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the 
change in their respective addresses or Bank details to the Company and always 
quote their Folio Numbers in all correspondence with the Company. Those 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify any change in addresses 
or Bank details to their respective Depository Participants.

9. Members who are still holding shares in physical form are advised to dematerialize 
their shareholding to avail of the benefits of dematerialization which include easy 
liquidity since trading is permitted only in dematerialized form, electronic transfer, 
savings in stamp duty, prevention of forgery, etc.

10. Non-resident Indian members are requested to inform Company on:

a. the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, 
and

b. the particulars of the bank accounts maintained in India with complete name of 
Bank, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank, if not 
furnished earlier.

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. 
Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit their 
PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the 
Company.

12. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 individual shareholders 
holding shares in the company singly or jointly may nominate an individual to 
whom all the rights in the Shares in the Company shall vest in the event of death of 
the sole / all joint shareholders.

13. Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as under:

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Clause 35B of the Listing 
Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide to its members facility to 
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the 
Meeting by electronic means. The members may cast their votes using an 
electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the Meeting 
(‘remote e-voting’).

II. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend 
the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

III. The Company has engaged the services of Karvy Computer share Private 
Limited (“Karvy”) as the Agency to provide e-voting facility.

IV. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Shri Vasanth Bajaj, a 
Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.5827), Hyderabad as Scrutinizer to 
scrutinise the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and 
he has communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available 
for same purpose.

V. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid- up value of shares registered in 
the name of the member/ beneficial owner( incase of electronic 
shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. 25th July, 2015.

VI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the 
register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-
off date, i.e. 25th July, 2015 only, shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voting.

VII. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the 
Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 25th July, 
2015, may obtain the User ID and password in the manner as mentioned 
below:

(a) If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / 
DP ID Client ID, the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+ Folio No. or DP ID 
Client ID to 1-800-3454-001

Example for NSDL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> In12345612345678

Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

REPORT ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTICE OF 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Rupees   Rupees 

Contingent Liabilities
Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed for Project in Progress --- 41,453,157

31. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever found necessary.

 (to the extent  not provided for) As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

29. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

Net Profit after Tax 31,373,861 5,632,530
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares (2,115,000) ---
(-) Tax on above Dividend (422,876) ---
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders - For Basic and Diluted EPS Rupees. 28,835,985 5,632,530
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares For Basic EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares For Diluted EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Nominal Value of Equity Shares Rupees. 10 10
Basic Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 7.73 1.51
Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 7.73 1.51
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stConsolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31  March 2015
25. Related party transactions

a. List of Related Parties:

I. Associates:

• Transport Corporation of India Ltd. • TCI Global Logistics Ltd. • Bhoruka Finance Corporation of India Ltd.

• XPS Cargo Services Ltd. • Bhoruka International Pvt. Ltd

ii. Key Management Personnel:

• Mr. D P Agarwal • Mr. N K Baranwal • Mr. Vineet Agarwal

• Mr. Mukesh Jain • Mr. Chander Agarwal • Mr. Rajesh Dhyani 

iii. Other Related Parties: 

• Mrs. Urmila Agarwal • Master Vihaan Agarwal • Mrs. Priyanka Agarwal

• Dharmpal & Sons (HUF)

26. In the opinion of Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realization of current assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of business, 
would not be less than the amount at which the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.

27. During the year 2013-14, the company had received Rs. 89,489/- from the Government Authorities towards compensation against part of a land acquired for highway road widening, 
the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 4,176,884/-. The resultant loss of Rs. 4,087,395/-  was accounted for as a Loss on Sale of Assets. The company also made a 
representation to the Government Authorities for enhancement in such compensation. However any further compensation shall be treated as capital gain, as and when received.

28. During the year, an associate partnership firm has received Rs. 18,129,811/- towards compensation from the Government Authorities against part of a land acquired for highway 
road widening, the proportionate book value of such land being Rs. 2,678,800/-. The resultant profit of Rs. 15,451,011/- has been accounted for as a Profit on Sale of Assets.

b. Transactions with Related parties: (Amount in ̀ )
Nature of  Transaction Nature of Relation 2014-15 2013-14

Income :
Rent Received Associates 81,331,860 29,496,200
Project Management Services Associates 2,094,000 346,000
Sale of Investment (Sale Price) Other Related Parties 2,077,650 ---
Dividend Received Associates 28,408 28,408
Expense :
Rent Expense Associates 132,000 132,000
Remuneration Key Management Personnel 5,705,155 3,966,593
Finance & Investments :
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 11,950,000 9,400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates 51,114,760 8,669,208
Refund of Security Deposits Taken Associates --- 36,408
Balances as at the end of period 31st March 2015 31st March 2014
Assets :
Investment Made Associates --- 954,480
Trade receivables Associates 389,993 78,995
Liabilities :
Loans Taken Key Management Personnel 41,350,000 29,400,000
Security Deposits Taken Associates 68,826,757 17,711,997

thNOTICE is hereby given that the 7 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 
Saturday, 1st August, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of 
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation 
House,11-6-841 , FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 500004 (Telangana).

1. Consider, approve and adopt the Audited Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March 2015 together with the Reports of Directors’ & Auditors’ 
thereon.

2. Declaration of Dividend on preference shares.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Agarwal (DIN: 00380300),who retires by rotation 
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and appoint M/s. M. Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants having firm 
registration no.000851S , Bangalore, as Statutory Auditors to hold office from the 
conclusion of this meeting until conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and 
to fix their remuneration. M/s. M. Gandhi & Co., Chartered Accountants are the 
retiring auditors and being eligible offers themselves for reappointment.

Special Business:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) read together with 
Schedule V of the said Act, and Companies ( Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014( including any statutory modification(s) from 
time to time or any re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to 
the  approval of the Central Government, if necessary, consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to Board of Directors for revision in the  

stremuneration of Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director w.e.f. 1  April, 
2015 for remainder of duration of appointment up to July 31, 2016 within the limits 
as per the details as set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice 
convening this meeting.

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 94 (1) and other applicable sections if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the Company be and 
is hereby given to the Board of Directors to keep the Register of Members/ 
debenture holders at the Corporate Office/at the premises of Share Transfer 
Agent/Registrar of the Company to make it convenient for the members/ 
debenture holders to have easily access over it.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be  and is hereby 
severally authorized to sign and execute all such documents, deeds and writings and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and 
incidental thereto for giving effect to this resolution(s).

Place: Gurgaon BY Order of the Board

Date: 25th May, 2015 For TCI Developers Ltd

Mukesh Jain

Asst. Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

1. PROXY: A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON A POLL, 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. Proxy Form, in order to be effective, must be received at the registered 
office of the company not less than forty eight hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting. A proxy form is enclosed for this purpose.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 
FIFTY AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF 
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A 
MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON 
SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Business at Item Nos. 5 and 6 of is annexed to and 
forms part of this Notice.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the 
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorising their 
representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

4. A statement giving the details of the Director seeking re appointment under Item No.3 
of the accompanying Notice, as required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered 
into with the Stock Exchanges is annexed herewith.

5. Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
Saturday, the 25th July, 2015 to Saturday, the 1st August, 2015 (both days inclusive). The 
book closure dates have been fixed in consultation with the Stock Exchanges.

6. Members are requested to note that as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
dividends not encashed/claimed within seven years from the date of declaration of 
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dividend will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
After transfer of the said amount to IEPF, no claims in this respect shall lie against 
IEPF or the Company. Members are requested to contact Investors Service 
Department of the Company’s Corporate Office at Gurgaon (Haryana) for 
encashing the unclaimed dividends standing to the credit of their account.

7. Reserve Bank of India has initiated NECS for credit of dividend directly to the bank 
accounts of the Members. Members are requested to register their bankaccount 
details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number,9 digit MICR and 11 digit 
IFS Code), in respect of shares held in dematerialised form with their respective 
Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with RTA or 
with the Company.

8. Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the 
change in their respective addresses or Bank details to the Company and always 
quote their Folio Numbers in all correspondence with the Company. Those 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify any change in addresses 
or Bank details to their respective Depository Participants.

9. Members who are still holding shares in physical form are advised to dematerialize 
their shareholding to avail of the benefits of dematerialization which include easy 
liquidity since trading is permitted only in dematerialized form, electronic transfer, 
savings in stamp duty, prevention of forgery, etc.

10. Non-resident Indian members are requested to inform Company on:

a. the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, 
and

b. the particulars of the bank accounts maintained in India with complete name of 
Bank, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank, if not 
furnished earlier.

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. 
Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit their 
PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the 
Company.

12. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 individual shareholders 
holding shares in the company singly or jointly may nominate an individual to 
whom all the rights in the Shares in the Company shall vest in the event of death of 
the sole / all joint shareholders.

13. Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as under:

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Clause 35B of the Listing 
Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide to its members facility to 
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the 
Meeting by electronic means. The members may cast their votes using an 
electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the Meeting 
(‘remote e-voting’).

II. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend 
the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

III. The Company has engaged the services of Karvy Computer share Private 
Limited (“Karvy”) as the Agency to provide e-voting facility.

IV. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Shri Vasanth Bajaj, a 
Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.5827), Hyderabad as Scrutinizer to 
scrutinise the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner and 
he has communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available 
for same purpose.

V. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid- up value of shares registered in 
the name of the member/ beneficial owner( incase of electronic 
shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. 25th July, 2015.

VI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the 
register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-
off date, i.e. 25th July, 2015 only, shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voting.

VII. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the 
Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 25th July, 
2015, may obtain the User ID and password in the manner as mentioned 
below:

(a) If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / 
DP ID Client ID, the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+ Folio No. or DP ID 
Client ID to 1-800-3454-001

Example for NSDL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> In12345612345678

Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678

As per our Report of even date attached

For M. Gandhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 000851S D P Agarwal Vineet Agarwal Amitava Ghosh

Chairman Director Director

M. Gandhi Naresh Kumar Baranwal Mukesh Jain Rajesh Dhyani
Proprietor Whole Time Director Asst. Company Secretary Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 022958 & Compliance Officer
Camp: Gurgaon
Date: May 25, 2015

REPORT ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTICE OF 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Rupees   Rupees 

Contingent Liabilities
Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed for Project in Progress --- 41,453,157

31. Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever found necessary.

 (to the extent  not provided for) As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014

29. Earning Per Share (EPS)
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

Net Profit after Tax 31,373,861 5,632,530
(-) Proposed Dividend on Preference Shares (2,115,000) ---
(-) Tax on above Dividend (422,876) ---
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders - For Basic and Diluted EPS Rupees. 28,835,985 5,632,530
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares For Basic EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares For Diluted EPS Nos. 3,729,431 3,729,431
Nominal Value of Equity Shares Rupees. 10 10
Basic Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 7.73 1.51
Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share Rupees. 7.73 1.51
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Example for Physical:

MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890

(b) If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered 
against Folio No./DP ID Client ID, then on the home page of 
https://evoting.karvy.com , the member may click “Forgot 
Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to 
generate a password.

(c) Member may call Karvy’s toll free number 1-800-3454-001.

(d) Members may send an e-mail request to evoting@karvy.com.

VIII. If the member is already registered with Karvy e-voting platform then he 
can use his existing User ID and password for casting the vote through 
remote e-voting.

period:

Commencement of remote e-voting: From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on 29th July, 2015

End of remote e-voting: Up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on 31st July, 2015

The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and 
the e-voting module shall be disabled by Karvy upon expiry of aforesaid period.

IX. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting (Insta Poll) 
and through remote e-voting, will, not later than three days of conclusion 
of the Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the 
same to the Chairman. The results declared along with the consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.tc ideve lopers .com and on the webs i te  of  Karvy 
https://evoting.karvy.com. The results shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

X. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e. 1st August, 2015.

XI. Instructions and other information relating to remote e-voting:

A. Shareholders of the Company holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the record 
date, may cast their vote electronically.

a. L aunch  i n t e rne t  b rowser  by  t yp i n g  t he  URL :  
https://evoting.karvy.com.

b. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password) which will 
be sent separately. The E-Voting Event Number, Folio No. or DP 
ID Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with Karvy for e-voting, you canuse your existing User 
ID and password for casting your vote. If required, please visit 
https://evoting.karvy.com or contact toll free number 1-800-
3454-001 for your existing password.

c. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

d. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are 
required to mandatorily change your password. The new 
password shall comprise minimum 8 characters with at least one 
upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a- z), one numeric (0-9) and a 
special character (@,#,$,etc.). The system will prompt you to 
change your password and update your contact details like 
mobile number, email address, etc. on first login. You may also 
enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve 
your password in case you forget it. It is strongly 
recommended that you do not share your password with 
any other person and that you take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

e. You need to login again with the new credentials.

f. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-
Voting Event Number for TCI Developers Limited

g. On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents 
the number of votes) as on the cut-off date under“FOR/ 
AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number 
in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in 
“FOR/ AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your total 
shareholding as on the cut- off date. You may also choose the 
option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted 
under either head.

h. Members holding shares under multiple folios / demat accounts 
shall choose the voting process separately for each of the folios / 
demat accounts.

i. Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In 
case you do not desire to cast your vote on any specific item it 
will be treated as abstained.

j.  You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option 
and click on “Submit”.

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following 

k. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else 
“CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote. During the voting period, members can login 
any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

l. Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, 
etc.) are also required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) 
of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter, etc., 
together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: scrutinizer_ 
tdl@vkbajajassociates.com. They may also upload the same in the e-voting 
module in their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned 
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENT 
NO.”

B. In case a member receives physical copy of the Notice by Post [for 
members whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the Company 
/ Depository  Participant(s)]:

a. User ID and initial password - These will be provided at the bottom of 
the Attendance Slip for the AGM.

b. Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (a) To (l) as mentioned in (A) above, 
to cast your vote.

2. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not 
be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

3. In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s 
section available at Karvy’s website https://evoting.karvy.com.

The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 
Annual General Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two(2) witnesses not in the employment of the 
Company and make not later than three(3) days of conclusion of the 
meeting a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor 
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing 
who shall countersign the same.

The results declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be 
placed on the website of the Company www.tcidevelopers.com and on 
https://evoting.karvy.com immediately after the result is declared by the 
Chairman. The Company shall, simultaneously, forward the results to the 
stock exchanges where the shares are listed.

Explanatory Statement under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No.5

The members of the Company had appointed Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal as whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period of 4 years w.e.f. 1st August, 2012 and also approved 
the remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal within the limit (Rs. 1,25,000 p.m. 
to Rs. 175,000) as approved at their Annual General Meeting held on 25th July, 2013.

Since, the validity of shareholder approval for remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Baranwal has been expired & also the Companies Act, 2013 specifies the revised limits for 
remuneration, which can be paid to the managerial personnel of the Company in case of 
inadequacy of profits or no profits, it is proposed to obtain a fresh shareholder’s approval for 
payment of minimum remuneration as prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director.

Further, the Company intends to pay double the amount prescribed under Section II of Part 
II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is proposed to pass the special 
resolution in this regard.

Subsequently, at the meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of 
Directors as held on 25th May, 2015, revised the remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Baranwal with effect from 1st April, 2015 till the expiry of his present term of office 
i.e. up to 31st July, 2016 as set out below:

a. Basic Salary: Rs. 2,00,000 lacs p.m. (in the range of Rs. 1,75,000 Lacs p.m. to 
Rs.3,00,000 lacs p.m.) (With liberty to the Board or any Committee thereof in its 
absolute discretion to decide the basic salary & annual increments within the 
above range).

b. Perquisites, Allowances and Other Benefits:

In addition to the basic salary, Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal will also be entitled to 
various perquisites, allowances and benefits such as House rent allowance (50% 
of basic salary), medical reimbursement, leave travel concession, personal 
accident insurance, medical insurance, Car and telephone benefit, 
earned/privilege leaves and encashment thereof, company contribution to PF and 
Superannuation fund and Gratuity etc. as per policy/rules of the Company in 
force and/or as may be approved by Board from time to time.

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V TO THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS GIVEN HEREUNDER:

I. GENERAL INFORMATION:

i. Nature of Industry: Construction & Development of Logistics and 
Warehousing activities.

ii. Date or expected date of Commercial Production: Not Applicable. 
Since the Company has already commenced its business activities.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Item No.6
As per Section 94(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of 
Member/debenture holders to be maintained by the Company alongwith the 
index thereto and copies of the annual return filed under section 92 of the Act 
shall be kept at the Registered Office of the company.

However, the above mentioned documents may also be kept at any other place 
in India in which more than 1/10th of the total number of members entered in 
the register of members reside, if the same is duly approved by the 
shareholders of the Company vide Special Resolution.

Being a listed entity, the above mentioned documents of the company are kept 
with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company.

Accordingly, it is proposed to keep the register of Members and related 
documents at the premises of Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company or at the Corporate Office of the Company.

The Board of directors recommends this resolution for approval of the 
members by way of Special Resolution.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
this resolution.

Place: Gurgaon BY Order of the Board
Date: 25th May, 2015 For TCI Developers Ltd

Mukesh Jain

Asst. Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED 
UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT ENTERED WITH 
THE STOCK EXCHANGES:

Name of the Director Mr. Vineet Agarwal

Date of Birth 16-09-1973

Qualification B.Sc. (Econ.)

Date of Joining the Board 14.05.2008

Profile of Director Mr. Vineet Agarwal is associated with the 
Company since incorporation. Mr. Agarwal is 
the Managing Director of Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd. He has been 
instrumental in leading TCI into high growth 
segments like Third Party Logistics, Supply 
Chain Management, Warehousing etc.

Directorship held in other Companies 1. Transport Corporation of India Limited
(excluding section 8 Companies) 2. Transcorp International Ltd.

3. TCI-CONCOR Multimodal Solutions Pvt. 
Ltd.

4. Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd.
5. TCI Infra Developers Pvt. Ltd.
6. Gloxinia farms Pvt. Ltd

Memberships/Chairmanships of Member- Stakeholders’ Relationship
committees of other companies Committee Member- Share Transfer 

Commi t t ee  Member -Corpor a t e  &  
Restructuring Committee
Transport Corporation of India Ltd.
Member- Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance 
Committee
Member- Audit Committee
Member- Remuneration Committee
Transcorp International Ltd

Number of shares held in the Company 171685

iii. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of 
activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus: Not Applicable

iv. Financial Performance based on given indicators as per the audited 
financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2014 -15 2013-14 2012 -13

Total Income 41,781,150 24,437,205 19,868,560

Total expenditure 18,622,833 22,099,922 8,411,433

Net profit or net loss 
(before tax and appropriation) 23,158,317 2,337,283 11,457,127

v. Foreign investment or collaboration if any: The Company has not entered 
into any foreign collaborations. The Company has not made any foreign 
investments. The Foreign Institutional Investors are holding shares in the 
Company within permitted limits.

2. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:

I) Background details

a) Name Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal

b) Age 57 years

c)Qualifications Chartered Accountant

d)Expertise 31 years rich experience in maintaience & 
finanilisation of accounts & audits, working capital 
management, profit monitoring, capital 
restructuring etc. in various Companies.

e)Directorship in other Companies 1. TCI Infra Developers Limited

2. TCI Exim Pvt Ltd.

f) Chairmanship/Membership of the 
   Committees as on31.03.2015 None

II) Past Remuneration 2012-13-Rs.23,63,069*

(*Paid from the period 01.08.2012 to 31.03.2013)
2013-14- Rs. 39,66,593
2014-15 –Rs. 45,03,458

III) Recognition of awards NIL

IV) Job profile and his suitability He is actively involved in the business and manages 
day to day affairs of the Company. Taking into 
consideration his expertise, he is best suited for 
the responsibilities currently assigned to him by 
the Board of Directors.

V) Remuneration Proposed As per the proposed Resolution

VI) Comparative remuneration The remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar
     profile  with respect to industry Baranwal is justified in comparison to 
     size of the Company, profile  remuneration paid in the industry and 
     of the position and person the size of the Company. 

VII) Pecuniary relationship directly  Except for receiving remuneration as a  
      or indirectly with the Company  whole time director, Mr. Naresh Kumar 
      or relationship with the  Baranwal or any of his relative do not have 
      managerial personnel, if any any pecuniary relationship with the 

Company.

3. OTHER INFORMATION:
1. Reasons for inadequate profits: The Company has managed to earn a net profit of Rs. 

24,562,690/-during the financial year 2014-15.Company has explored all the 
possibilities to develop its properties, however due to prevailing market conditions 
and increasing input costs, the Company has adopted a conscious approach.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company will take every 
necessary and possible step for its improvement and future growth.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: Since the Company 
is in the initial stage of development of its projects, revenue from these projects will 
flow in coming years. It is difficult at this stage to quantify the effect of the measures 
taken/to be taken by the Company to improve the overall performance in financial 
terms.

4. DISCLOSURES:
The information and disclosures of the remuneration package of the managerial 
personnel have been mentioned in the Annual report in the Corporate Governance 
Report Section under the heading “Remuneration paid / payable to Executive 
Director (Whole time Director) for the year ended 31st March, 2015.
The Board of directors recommends this resolution for approval of the members by 
way of Special Resolution.
Except Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.
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Example for Physical:

MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890

(b) If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered 
against Folio No./DP ID Client ID, then on the home page of 
https://evoting.karvy.com , the member may click “Forgot 
Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to 
generate a password.

(c) Member may call Karvy’s toll free number 1-800-3454-001.

(d) Members may send an e-mail request to evoting@karvy.com.

VIII. If the member is already registered with Karvy e-voting platform then he 
can use his existing User ID and password for casting the vote through 
remote e-voting.

period:

Commencement of remote e-voting: From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on 29th July, 2015

End of remote e-voting: Up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on 31st July, 2015

The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and 
the e-voting module shall be disabled by Karvy upon expiry of aforesaid period.

IX. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting (Insta Poll) 
and through remote e-voting, will, not later than three days of conclusion 
of the Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the 
same to the Chairman. The results declared along with the consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.tc ideve lopers .com and on the webs i te  of  Karvy 
https://evoting.karvy.com. The results shall simultaneously be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.

X. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be 
deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e. 1st August, 2015.

XI. Instructions and other information relating to remote e-voting:

A. Shareholders of the Company holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the record 
date, may cast their vote electronically.

a. L aunch  i n t e rne t  b rowser  by  t yp i n g  t he  URL :  
https://evoting.karvy.com.

b. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password) which will 
be sent separately. The E-Voting Event Number, Folio No. or DP 
ID Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with Karvy for e-voting, you canuse your existing User 
ID and password for casting your vote. If required, please visit 
https://evoting.karvy.com or contact toll free number 1-800-
3454-001 for your existing password.

c. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

d. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are 
required to mandatorily change your password. The new 
password shall comprise minimum 8 characters with at least one 
upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a- z), one numeric (0-9) and a 
special character (@,#,$,etc.). The system will prompt you to 
change your password and update your contact details like 
mobile number, email address, etc. on first login. You may also 
enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve 
your password in case you forget it. It is strongly 
recommended that you do not share your password with 
any other person and that you take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

e. You need to login again with the new credentials.

f. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-
Voting Event Number for TCI Developers Limited

g. On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents 
the number of votes) as on the cut-off date under“FOR/ 
AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number 
in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in 
“FOR/ AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your total 
shareholding as on the cut- off date. You may also choose the 
option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted 
under either head.

h. Members holding shares under multiple folios / demat accounts 
shall choose the voting process separately for each of the folios / 
demat accounts.

i. Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In 
case you do not desire to cast your vote on any specific item it 
will be treated as abstained.

j.  You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option 
and click on “Submit”.

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following 

k. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else 
“CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote. During the voting period, members can login 
any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

l. Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, 
etc.) are also required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) 
of the Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter, etc., 
together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized 
representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: scrutinizer_ 
tdl@vkbajajassociates.com. They may also upload the same in the e-voting 
module in their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned 
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENT 
NO.”

B. In case a member receives physical copy of the Notice by Post [for 
members whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the Company 
/ Depository  Participant(s)]:

a. User ID and initial password - These will be provided at the bottom of 
the Attendance Slip for the AGM.

b. Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (a) To (l) as mentioned in (A) above, 
to cast your vote.

2. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not 
be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

3. In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s 
section available at Karvy’s website https://evoting.karvy.com.

The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 
Annual General Meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting, 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two(2) witnesses not in the employment of the 
Company and make not later than three(3) days of conclusion of the 
meeting a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor 
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing 
who shall countersign the same.

The results declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be 
placed on the website of the Company www.tcidevelopers.com and on 
https://evoting.karvy.com immediately after the result is declared by the 
Chairman. The Company shall, simultaneously, forward the results to the 
stock exchanges where the shares are listed.

Explanatory Statement under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No.5

The members of the Company had appointed Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal as whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period of 4 years w.e.f. 1st August, 2012 and also approved 
the remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal within the limit (Rs. 1,25,000 p.m. 
to Rs. 175,000) as approved at their Annual General Meeting held on 25th July, 2013.

Since, the validity of shareholder approval for remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Baranwal has been expired & also the Companies Act, 2013 specifies the revised limits for 
remuneration, which can be paid to the managerial personnel of the Company in case of 
inadequacy of profits or no profits, it is proposed to obtain a fresh shareholder’s approval for 
payment of minimum remuneration as prescribed under Section II of Part II of Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director.

Further, the Company intends to pay double the amount prescribed under Section II of Part 
II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is proposed to pass the special 
resolution in this regard.

Subsequently, at the meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of 
Directors as held on 25th May, 2015, revised the remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Baranwal with effect from 1st April, 2015 till the expiry of his present term of office 
i.e. up to 31st July, 2016 as set out below:

a. Basic Salary: Rs. 2,00,000 lacs p.m. (in the range of Rs. 1,75,000 Lacs p.m. to 
Rs.3,00,000 lacs p.m.) (With liberty to the Board or any Committee thereof in its 
absolute discretion to decide the basic salary & annual increments within the 
above range).

b. Perquisites, Allowances and Other Benefits:

In addition to the basic salary, Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal will also be entitled to 
various perquisites, allowances and benefits such as House rent allowance (50% 
of basic salary), medical reimbursement, leave travel concession, personal 
accident insurance, medical insurance, Car and telephone benefit, 
earned/privilege leaves and encashment thereof, company contribution to PF and 
Superannuation fund and Gratuity etc. as per policy/rules of the Company in 
force and/or as may be approved by Board from time to time.

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V TO THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS GIVEN HEREUNDER:

I. GENERAL INFORMATION:

i. Nature of Industry: Construction & Development of Logistics and 
Warehousing activities.

ii. Date or expected date of Commercial Production: Not Applicable. 
Since the Company has already commenced its business activities.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
Item No.6
As per Section 94(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of 
Member/debenture holders to be maintained by the Company alongwith the 
index thereto and copies of the annual return filed under section 92 of the Act 
shall be kept at the Registered Office of the company.

However, the above mentioned documents may also be kept at any other place 
in India in which more than 1/10th of the total number of members entered in 
the register of members reside, if the same is duly approved by the 
shareholders of the Company vide Special Resolution.

Being a listed entity, the above mentioned documents of the company are kept 
with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company.

Accordingly, it is proposed to keep the register of Members and related 
documents at the premises of Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company or at the Corporate Office of the Company.

The Board of directors recommends this resolution for approval of the 
members by way of Special Resolution.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
this resolution.

Place: Gurgaon BY Order of the Board
Date: 25th May, 2015 For TCI Developers Ltd

Mukesh Jain

Asst. Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED 
UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT ENTERED WITH 
THE STOCK EXCHANGES:

Name of the Director Mr. Vineet Agarwal

Date of Birth 16-09-1973

Qualification B.Sc. (Econ.)

Date of Joining the Board 14.05.2008

Profile of Director Mr. Vineet Agarwal is associated with the 
Company since incorporation. Mr. Agarwal is 
the Managing Director of Transport 
Corporation of India Ltd. He has been 
instrumental in leading TCI into high growth 
segments like Third Party Logistics, Supply 
Chain Management, Warehousing etc.

Directorship held in other Companies 1. Transport Corporation of India Limited
(excluding section 8 Companies) 2. Transcorp International Ltd.

3. TCI-CONCOR Multimodal Solutions Pvt. 
Ltd.

4. Transystem Logistics International Pvt. Ltd.
5. TCI Infra Developers Pvt. Ltd.
6. Gloxinia farms Pvt. Ltd

Memberships/Chairmanships of Member- Stakeholders’ Relationship
committees of other companies Committee Member- Share Transfer 

Commi t t ee  Member -Corpor a t e  &  
Restructuring Committee
Transport Corporation of India Ltd.
Member- Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance 
Committee
Member- Audit Committee
Member- Remuneration Committee
Transcorp International Ltd

Number of shares held in the Company 171685

iii. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of 
activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing 
in the prospectus: Not Applicable

iv. Financial Performance based on given indicators as per the audited 
financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2014 -15 2013-14 2012 -13

Total Income 41,781,150 24,437,205 19,868,560

Total expenditure 18,622,833 22,099,922 8,411,433

Net profit or net loss 
(before tax and appropriation) 23,158,317 2,337,283 11,457,127

v. Foreign investment or collaboration if any: The Company has not entered 
into any foreign collaborations. The Company has not made any foreign 
investments. The Foreign Institutional Investors are holding shares in the 
Company within permitted limits.

2. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:

I) Background details

a) Name Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal

b) Age 57 years

c)Qualifications Chartered Accountant

d)Expertise 31 years rich experience in maintaience & 
finanilisation of accounts & audits, working capital 
management, profit monitoring, capital 
restructuring etc. in various Companies.

e)Directorship in other Companies 1. TCI Infra Developers Limited

2. TCI Exim Pvt Ltd.

f) Chairmanship/Membership of the 
   Committees as on31.03.2015 None

II) Past Remuneration 2012-13-Rs.23,63,069*

(*Paid from the period 01.08.2012 to 31.03.2013)
2013-14- Rs. 39,66,593
2014-15 –Rs. 45,03,458

III) Recognition of awards NIL

IV) Job profile and his suitability He is actively involved in the business and manages 
day to day affairs of the Company. Taking into 
consideration his expertise, he is best suited for 
the responsibilities currently assigned to him by 
the Board of Directors.

V) Remuneration Proposed As per the proposed Resolution

VI) Comparative remuneration The remuneration payable to Mr. Naresh Kumar
     profile  with respect to industry Baranwal is justified in comparison to 
     size of the Company, profile  remuneration paid in the industry and 
     of the position and person the size of the Company. 

VII) Pecuniary relationship directly  Except for receiving remuneration as a  
      or indirectly with the Company  whole time director, Mr. Naresh Kumar 
      or relationship with the  Baranwal or any of his relative do not have 
      managerial personnel, if any any pecuniary relationship with the 

Company.

3. OTHER INFORMATION:
1. Reasons for inadequate profits: The Company has managed to earn a net profit of Rs. 

24,562,690/-during the financial year 2014-15.Company has explored all the 
possibilities to develop its properties, however due to prevailing market conditions 
and increasing input costs, the Company has adopted a conscious approach.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: The Company will take every 
necessary and possible step for its improvement and future growth.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: Since the Company 
is in the initial stage of development of its projects, revenue from these projects will 
flow in coming years. It is difficult at this stage to quantify the effect of the measures 
taken/to be taken by the Company to improve the overall performance in financial 
terms.

4. DISCLOSURES:
The information and disclosures of the remuneration package of the managerial 
personnel have been mentioned in the Annual report in the Corporate Governance 
Report Section under the heading “Remuneration paid / payable to Executive 
Director (Whole time Director) for the year ended 31st March, 2015.
The Board of directors recommends this resolution for approval of the members by 
way of Special Resolution.
Except Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

REPORT ON 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTICE OF 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



 

 
 

CIN – L70102TG2008PLC059173 
Regd. Office: 306 & 307, 1-8-271 to 273, 3rd Floor, Ashoka Bhoopal Chambers, S.P. Road, Secunderabad-500003 (TG) 

Corporate Office: TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector–32, Gurgaon – 122 207, Haryana 
Web: www.tcidevelopers.com   E-mail Id: secretarial@tcidevelopers.com Tel.: +91 124 2381603 - 07 

 

 

 

 

 
                                      

 
I hereby record my presence at the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company at at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and 

Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation House,11-6-841 , FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 500004 (Telangana) on 

Saturday, 1st August, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. 

 

 

……………………………………………          ………………………………………                     …..……………………………… 

Member’s Folio/DP ID-Client ID                         Member’s/Proxy’s Name in Block Letters      Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 

 

Note: Please fill the Folio / DP ID–Client ID, Name & sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE HALL. 

 

 

Note: Please read the instructions given at point no. 13 of the Notice of the 7th Annual General Meeting carefully before voting electronically.  

TCI Developers Limited 
CIN – L70102TG2008PLC059173 

Regd. Office: 306 & 307, 1-8-271 to 273, 3rd Floor, Ashoka Bhoopal Chambers, S.P. Road, Secunderabad-500003 (TG) 
Corporate Office: TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector–32, Gurgaon – 122 207, Haryana 

Web: www.tcidevelopers.com   E-mail Id: secretarial@tcidevelopers.com Tel.: +91 124 2381603 - 07 
 

 

Name of the Member(s):  Registered Address: 

Folio No./Client ID: 

D P ID Email ID 

 

I/We, being the member(s) of _______________________________________________shares of above named company, hereby appoint: 

 

1. Name:…………………………………….Address:……………………………………………………………………………………. 

E-mail Id:……………………………………………………………………..Signature……………………………………… or failing him: 

2. Name:…………………………………….Address:……………………………………………………………………………………. 

E-mail Id:……………………………………………………………………..Signature……………………………………… or failing him: 

3. Name:…………………………………….Address:……………………………………………………………………………………. 

E-mail Id:……………………………………………………………………..Signature……………………………………… ……………; 

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote, (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 

Saturday, 1st August, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. at KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh Chambers of Commerce 

and Industry, 3rd Floor, Federation House,11-6-841 , FAPCCI Marg, Hyderabad – 500004 (Telangana) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of 

such resolutions and in such manner as are indicated below: 

 

 

 

 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) User ID Password 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

PROXY FORM 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  



 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S. No Resolutions Description Optional* 

 Ordinary Business For Against 

1 Adoption of Annual Accounts and Reports thereon for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.   

2 Declaration of Dividend on Preference Shares.   

3 Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Agarwal as Director   

4 Re-appointment of M/s M Gandhi & Co., the Statutory Auditors of the Company   

 Special Business   

5 Revision in Remuneration package of Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director   

6 Authorization to keep Register of Member & other related documents at a place other than Regd. office of 

the Company 

  

 

 

Signed this ……………………. Day of ……………2015. 

 

Signature of shareholder…………………………………… 

 

Signature of Proxy holders(s)……………………………… 

 

 

Notes: 

 
1. This form of Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not later than FORTY-EIGHT 

HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. 

2. For the text of the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement & Notes, please refer to the Notice convening the 7th Annual General Meeting. 

*3. It is optional to put a 'X' in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against' 

column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

 



Description For* Against*

Adoption of Annual Accounts and Reports thereon for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015. 

Declaration of Dividend on Preference Shares.

Re-appointment of Mr. Vineet Agarwal as Director.

Re-appointment of  M/s M Gandhi & Co., the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Revision in Remuneration package of Mr. Naresh Kumar Baranwal, Whole Time Director.

Authorization to keep Register of Member & other related documents at a place other than Regd. office of the Company.

Resolution 

No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

Signed this ___________________day of _______________2015

Signature of Shareholder(s):

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Notes:
* Please put a 'X' in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will 

be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 
* A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty 

Members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the 
Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other Member. 

* This form of Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Flat Nos. 306 & 307, I-8-273, Third Floor,  Ashoka Bhoopal Chamber, S P Road, 
Secunderabad – 500003, not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the aforesaid meeting. 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp

CORPORATE OFFICE
TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector -32, Gurgaon - 122 207, Haryana. 

Phone : +91-124-2381603-07  Fax : +91-124-2381611
E-mail : secretarial@tcidevelopers.com   Website : www.tcidevelopers.com

CIN: L70102TG2008PLC059173

TCI Developers Limited
CORPORATE OFFICE

TCI House, 69 Institutional Area, Sector -32, Gurgaon - 122 207, Haryana. 
Phone : +91-124-2381603-07  Fax : +91-124-2381611

E-mail : secretarial@tcidevelopers.com   Website : www.tcidevelopers.com
CIN: L70102TG2008PLC059173
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